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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
FFT  FEFT EEFT  BETFT | BETT
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$’000
E44 Results
BB AT A Profit before taxation 486,020 272,087 536,923 610,526 593,585
EREHi 1 Income tax expense (8,681) (6,475) (20,033) (32,436) (22,099)
KA R REREN Profit attributable to
BF shareholders of the Company 477,339 265,612 516,890 578,090 571,486
78 8] iR R PR AL & R
PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
T T
HKS Thousand
600,000 578,090 571,486
516,890
500,000 477,339
400,000
300,000 265,612
200,000
100,000
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
BRI (EE) ME
NATURE OF PROFIT/(LOSS)
BT T
HKS Thousand
600,000
470,000
340,000
210,000
80,000
0
(50,000)
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
[ Ordinary business B & %% B Dilution in shareholding BR#E# % B Disposal HE

* ARAMBFEEERZ BEMBREEL - DA RFRBREL IR R - SRR FHEHIINAEEMRA P mRTE22
Due to the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards that came into effect during the financial year, the above five-year financial
summary has not been prepared on a consistent basis. Changes in accounting policies are set out in Note 2.2 to the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.

4 F{Z%£EAR AT Min Xin Holdings Limited
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY"

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
BT BEFT JEEFT BB FoT BEFT
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$’000 HK$'000
ME  BERRE Property, plant and equipment 19,061 17,999 16,878 20,935 26,499
mp A E Intangible assets - - 2,504 1,573 735
REE Investment properties 179,215 170,536 169,818 169,632 159,415
BENE Associates 3263977 4,082,002 4842032 4988673 | 5,532,229
YNSRI NCY ) Financial assets at fair value through
FEHERNERERE other comprehensive income - - - 570,417 423,343
AENESEEE  Available-for-sale financial assets 728,713 551,158 503,514 - -
BN AT EMSAMEE Financial assets at amortised cost - - - 3,129 =
SREBHSREE Held-to-maturity financial assets - 3,001 3,119 - =
REESRRER Loans to customers and
FS interest receivable 1,519 436 39 - -
BRREE Reinsurance assets 2,479 4,420 213 1,546 1,029
Hib R RIBRA = Other debtors and prepayments 1,549 1,500 180 6 15,777
Eﬁ(ﬁ&ﬁiﬁ,%ﬁ Cash and bank balances - - - 227,800 506,009
BLENEE Deferred income tax assets 6,746 10,767 10,150 535 451
TEEE Current assets 1,684,713 1,497,393 1,693,972 1,312,644 1,037,740
mENA R Current liabilities (226,823) (928,549) (467,330) (323,516)|  (254,225)
RBED Insurance contracts (33,844) (38,268) (37,659) (17,482) (19,316)
BEam Lease liabilities - - Z - (65)
RITER \ Bank borrowings (502,116) (552,774) (198,131) (199,966) (199,965)
by Hxﬂxﬁém Loan from the controlling shareholder - - - - (149,943)
RIEERER Deferred income tax liabilities (41,960) (32,614) (28,397) (24,106) (36,376)
EEFE Net assets 5083229  4787,097 6510902  6731,820 | 7,043,337
(&N Share capital 891,135 891,135 1,715,377 1,715,377 1,715,377
HinFEEe Other reserves 1,501,099 1,036,270 1,628,236 1,504,672 | 1,393,720
R &M Retained profits
BURIRE Proposed dividend 22,971 22,971 47,781 59,726 59,726
Hi Others 2,666,165 2,836,721 3,119,508 3,452,045 3,874,514
PR EREER Amount recognised in other
MR AR 2t B comprehensive income and
FIELENEE accumulated in equity relating
BEmNEIR to assets held for sale 1,859 - - - -
ERRIRRELER Total equity attributable to
wam shareholders of the Company 5,083,229 4,787,097 6,510,902 6,731,820 | 7,043,337
AATREREGERERE
TOTAL EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLETO SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
BT T
800,000 HKS Thousand
700,000 6,510,902 6,731,820 7,043,337
600,000
5,083,229 4,787,097
500,000
400,000
300,000
200,000
100,000
0
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
*  ARAMBERERZ BN REER - EAFUSREWIHEG —FEERH - TR 2 EHDHIINAEBES S P IERERTE22 -

Due to the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards that came into effect during the financial year, the above five-year financial
summary has not been prepared on a consistent basis. Changes in accounting policies are set out in Note 2.2 to the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

ARANTRARERALEE 2019 FEEXTF
BHINRBERA -

I am pleased to report that the
Group recorded an expected
stable full-year results for 2019.

T/FE BRIE
Chairman YAN Zheng

HRIRHREBEM S 2019 F 2 mkER —
FoREBEFA  FENREKBUOGMEEN
MEUBEFEREERIMRERE - RIK
OB EE RN BRI RARBEEN T
7] -

FeAM iy F B

HMIR2019FEISIBE LS - H£2019F
NRAJNBLEFE AEEHESLEZRRE
JEMRH A B 57,1498 T LR EFER D
1.1% « BREAZFTE1.1% =5 95.69
ily »

AREEBMBEEREBEER - $R2019F12A
31VHEEBE77E T LLE2018FFRH
B 73ETTIER5.6% °

BEEEHREZIRE 2019FERER BT

B0l - 2018 FE AR B A4EIFIERIK
IFO

B @ABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited

The year 2019 was a challenging one for the global economy.
Ongoing global political and economic uncertainties
have significantly affected the investment activities and
household consumption during the year under review. The
global economic well-being faced a difficult time and the
downward pressures were prominent.

OUR PERFORMANCE

We managed to achieve a stable result in 2019. For the year
ended 31 December 2019, the Group recorded an audited
profit attributable to shareholders of HK$571.49 million,
decreased by 1.1% when compared to the previous year.
Basic earnings per share decreased by 1.1% to 95.69 HK
cents.

Total assets of the Group continued to grow and recorded
an increase of 5.6% to HK$7.7 billion at 31 December 2019
as compared to HKS$7.3 billion at the end of 2018.

The Directors have resolved to recommend a final dividend
of 10 HK cents per share for 2019, maintained at the same
level as compared to the final dividend for 2018.



R2019F 12 A31H  BMMEITEBRE
ENEAEEEERTENT7I2% - R20194F
12A318 ARAMNBRFEEBRELSYE
11.797C + #977.8% 2K B EFTEI R R1T I 0
ERAAE ([ER] ERERBRITERA
a ([&&]) RMERFIEBRIRITRMHD AR AR
(B mBAEIEREE] ) WRE - B
TTEFE DR 2019 FE (5 AL B R E(Lm
FH796.1% ©

AEBSEENERMIREERN2019FER
BAAREEEAE496.1% ° KEEN2019FE
BHEIREEEE Y 2018 FH B 61,407 &
TN #63% 285751787 FEREHR
EREBENERLREREEREEHSE L
FHRTER ©

RATRABERE-_RBRFR  EREERETR
SAREMEERBERER  1M2019F 12 A
31 HABEEL 2018 FFRA AR 8,064.2
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AT  EREBEBERENATNE
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EMRFGES - BEREEERABRESMRE
MEFERIGENHFED  BRABEHS
mERERE TS AEEY BRI
MREERITRNERNE—ERS - EiRE
EEEEIZCERINEESRERNE -
AR b B E BIEER o 1£2019F 7 A (iR
TR HMEETE R [2019 2 371000 K #8717 5E
Zlth o BIRUNEEEERESIRE 158141 -
NMA— R ER@EMNY| 2 ERE 1930 - £
(2019 F MERTTRRF N HER | b - EIRHES
F 80N - ERBIMMEERITHHERES -
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Total assets of our banking business accounted for 71.2% of
the Group's total assets at 31 December 2019. The net asset
value per share of the Company amounted to HK$11.79 at
31 December 2019, about 77.8% came from the investment
in Xiamen International Bank Co., Ltd. (“XIB”, together with
its subsidiaries, Chiyu Banking Corporation Limited (“CYB")
and Luso International Banking Ltd. (“LIB”), are collectively
referred to as “XIB Group”). The results of banking business
segment represented 96.1% of the Group’s profit attributable
to shareholders in 2019.

XIB, the most significant financial investment of the Group,
has contributed about 96.1% of the results of the Group
in 2019. The Group’s share of results of XIB Group was
HK$575.17 million in 2019, a decrease of 6.3% as compared
to HK$614.07 million in 2018 mainly due to the increase in
impairment provision rate of loans and financial assets of
XIB Group.

The Company is the second largest shareholder of XIB, XIB
Group has achieved a satisfactory growth in its balance
sheet and the total assets grew by 13.9% to RMB918.34
billion at 31 December 2019 as compared to RMB806.42
billion at the end of 2018.

XIB Group strived to expand its branch network in the
Greater China region during the year under review. XIB
Group continued to invest in people and the systems
infrastructure and in turn, XIB Group achieved its digital
innovations and operational enhancements aimed
at delivering convenient solutions and better service
experience to its customers. XIB Group integrated its
competitive strengths in cross-border financial services
and systems infrastructure to conduct business through
“cross-border financial blockchain service platform”, being
the first transaction successfully completed by China city
commercial bank. XIB Group continued to increase effects
in developing green finance and inclusive finance and to
strengthen its assets management business. XIB was ranked
158th in total assets and 193th in Tier-one Capital in the
2019 Top 1000 World Banks announced by The Banker in
July 2019. XIB was also ranked 80th in 2019 Asian Bank
Competitiveness Ranking and was ranked 4th among the
China city commercial banks.

—ZT—HFFR Annual Report 2019
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

ERVE A B AR D 8BRS B A I B
HWEEIRIT RRBUBELRRB AR
T EREREMNAUREER  BURET
BAEERNEESRBE  WEERLE
EENgERAERSBERE - A k—10
REMBETEEEEET - WABARITE
BRESRFRENMBRE  REMFHE
WMERAFENEEER

REBEFA  RMEEE TNERERELHN
EiE - UYEHSRIMNRKR - BFKRPIRE
E¥BHRERBERESE  BERBUAR
2019 @ EF+48.3% E 518,982 BT ° #
IR 2019 FERMHBAREBNEEERE
B 7R S T B B8 1,041 BT 0 L2018 F A
#4098 BT EFH109%  EZEmAmEREF
BRI INLA R BRI A FEFTIRMS TR
TETEHIR AR RERANFTEL

HMNREBE AR AEINE XL 6,000
BTN RFRBEBNREER - HMHOR
SEBETIEEFBEESEER  EHFH
HARNTTSRERBRINFTH#E - UEE N
BB ERTE - RETFENER
BERNEBREITNMEEE -

{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

XIB, being one of the very few banks in Mainland China that
owns subsidiaries both in Hong Kong and Macau, takes
advantage of cross-border financial services hub so as to
seek high-quality and sustainable development, maintains
the economic and financial links closely between Mainland
China, Hong Kong and Macau, and continues to deepen
inclusive and green finance services in order to serve the
real economy, and as always, fulfills the corporate social
responsibility. We expect the banking business will continue
to maintain a solid financial performance and achieve
sustainable growth and long-term value.

We continued to focus on improving the operation of our
insurance business and achieved a good performance during
the year under review. The premiums growth momentum
continues for both Hong Kong and Macau insurance
business. The total gross insurance premiums increased
significantly by 48.3% to HK$89.82 million in 2019. We have
achieved an underwriting profit after charging management
expenses for underwriting business of HK$10.41 million in
2019, an increase of 109% as compared to HK$4.98 million
in 2018 which was mainly due to the increase in net earned
insurance premiums and the write back of the expected
costs of claims of employees’ compensation insurance
business made in previous years.

We have injected an additional capital of HK$60 million
during the year under review to support the long-term
development of our insurance business. The management
team of our insurance business will further allocate
resources to identify new opportunities in an increasingly
competitive market environment and endeavour to
implement the anticipated business plan in order to
enhance sustainable business development and achieve a
better financial performance.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

PROSPECTS

Looking ahead to 2020, the combined effects of turbulence
in international financial markets and public health issues
will continue to assert pressure on the local and global
economic growth. Our Group possessing healthy financial
position and sufficient financial capability, is confident to
seize opportunities and respond to challenges, continue to
adhere to prudent financial management strategies, take
actions to optimise operational efficiency and enhance
competitive strengths, remain focused on developing
our core businesses, and last but not least, strengthen
our financial services investments in the Greater China
region. Our Group will continue in exploration of new
market opportunities, striving for diversification of income
sources, creation and realisation of the real and long-term
value to assure the uphold of the stakeholders’ long-term
expectations.

I wish to take this opportunity to express my heartfelt
appreciation to my fellow board members for their
invaluable advice and support and thank the management
team and all our staff for their commitment and dedicated
services. Also, on behalf of the Board, | wish to offer sincere
thanks to our business partners and shareholders for their
long-standing loyalty and continued support.

YAN Zheng
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2020

L

4

ZZ—NFFR Annual Report 2019

V-

o

"



10

B P wm M o A

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SE5 [m] g

TXEZERBENFETEEELRTHH
PIRTE » 2019 F 5 A2 B 7T im DL Y
—F - RERRTENTR  HFHEEREX
HAEAEERSS - BEFEZETR -

TR KK A e
A E ST

REBER019FMERBENESE BREE
1% F) B ¥ 57,1498 7T 0 12018 F A B
57,8098 L N B 6608 TH1.1% © FA
FRlREARBF B 95691l © tL2018F 1B
¥ 96.79 ISR A EEE 1111 1.1% ©

<5 b B

AEENESRRGEHEREBRHANTR
R NP EREED NP EAM BER
BFIEDIRITER - RRPEAMEE/ R

IR ) & B AR TS RS 2019 SFERAS B AR T

E B 56,087 8 7T ¢ L2018 FF H) B ¥ 58,500
BT T E4.1% °

RITHEF

EREBEFEBTENDTHABMBHEREE
PEAM - FERFREEE SRR -

EREBEERBENBARE2E T
2018 F M) A R #53618 0 0 Tk AR
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{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

BUSINESS REVIEW

The ongoing uncertainties of Sino-US trade tensions and
market instability made 2019 a challenging year for the
global economy. The adverse impact was revealed gradually
with signs of decline in economic growth accompanied by
weakened investment spending and domestic consumption.

Operating Results

The Group achieved a stable results in 2019 and the profit
attributable to shareholders was HK$571.49 million,
representing a decrease of HK$6.6 million or 1.1%, as
compared to HK$578.09 million in 2018. Basic earnings per
share for the year was 95.69 HK cents, a decrease of 1.1 HK
cents or 1.1%, as compared to 96.79 HK cents in 2018.

Financial Services

The financial services business of the Group includes
the engagement of banking business through its major
associates, XIB Group in Mainland China, Hong Kong and
Macau respectively, and the provision of micro credit
business in Mainland China.

The Group's financial services business reported a profit
after tax of HK$560.87 million in 2019, a decrease of 4.1% as
compared to HK$585 million in 2018.

Banking Business

XIB Group offers comprehensive financial services in
Mainland China, Hong Kong and Macau through its
well-established branch network and technological
infrastructures.

XIB Group reported a profit after tax of RMB5.2 billion, a
decrease of RMB167.88 million or 3.1%, as compared to
RMBS5.36 billion in 2018. Net interest income grew by 16.4%
in 2019 as compared with 2018, which was achieved by
the growth in loan portfolios, however, it continued to be
affected by the narrowed interest margin. Non-interest
income increased significantly in 2019 due to the increase in
investment income and decrease in foreign exchange loss.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Financial Services (Continued)

Banking Business (Continued)

XIB Group achieved a record high in its total assets in 2019
of over RMB900 billion with double-digit annual growth in
both loan books and customers’ deposit. At 31 December
2019, the total assets grew by 13.9% to RMB918.34 billion
as compared to RMB806.42 billion at the end of 2018. Gross
loans to customers were RMB466.63 billion, an increase of
29.7% as compared to RMB359.86 billion at the end of 2018.
XIB substantially grew its loans portfolio while continuing to
uphold good asset quality with non-performing loan ratio
less than 1%. Total deposits from customers were up 18.2%
to RMB634.68 billion from RMB537.16 billion at the end of
2018.

XIB will continue to develop green finance and inclusive
finance in order to serve the real economy despite the
fact that the difficult operating conditions are expected
to be continued in 2020. XIB will continue to enhance its
competitive strengths in cross-border financial services and
technological financial services infrastructure in order to
deliver the best services and experiences to its customers.
With the new branch network set up by CYB and LIB in the
more prosperous cities in the Greater China region coupled
with the existing branch network of XIB, XIB Group will
endeavour to strengthen its cross-border banking services
to boost new profit growth point.

Micro Credit Business

Sanming Sanyuan District Minxin Micro Credit Company
Limited (“Sanyuan Micro Credit”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, had been engaged in the provision of micro
loans to small and medium-sized enterprises and individuals
in Sanming City, Fujian Province. Sanyuan Micro Credit will
continue to proactively manage and use all measures to
recover its non-performing loans.

At 31 December 2019, non-performing loan balances
were RMB233.97 million (equivalent to HK$261.7 million),
a decrease of 4.2% from RMB244.12 million (equivalent
to HK$278.05 million) at the end of 2018. The allowances
to total loans and interest receivable ratio was 92.3% at
31 December 2019, an increase of 0.2 percentage points
as compared to 92.1% at the end of 2018. Sanyuan Micro
Credit received RMB1.24 million (equivalent to HK$1.4
million) interest income from customers during the year,
as compared to RMB0.04 million (equivalent to HK$0.04
million) in 2018. Sanyuan Micro Credit recorded a profit
after tax of RMB10.5 million (equivalent to HK$11.92 million)
in 2019, as compared to a loss after tax of RMB3.27 million
(equivalent to HK$4.01 million) in 2018, mainly due to the
derecognition of deferred tax assets in 2018.

ZZ—NFFR Annual Report 2019
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Insurance Business

Min Xin Insurance Company Limited (“Min Xin Insurance”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, underwrites
general insurance businesses in Hong Kong and Macau.

Min Xin Insurance recorded gross insurance premium of
HK$89.82 million in 2019, increased by 48.3% as compared
to HK$60.57 million in 2018. The Macau insurance business
has again outperformed the Hong Kong insurance business
during the year. The gross insurance premium of Macau
insurance business registered a 38.1% growth to HK$73.59
million supported by high-quality bancassurance business,
and the gross insurance premium of Hong Kong insurance
business recorded an increase of 122.3% to HK$16.23
million.

Underwriting profit before deducting management
expenses for underwriting business increased by 65.3%
to HK$22.14 million as compared to HK$13.39 million in
2018, mainly due to the increase in net earned insurance
premiums and the write back of the expected ultimate costs
of claims of employees’ compensation business made in
previous years. Min Xin Insurance recorded an underwriting
profit of HK$10.41 million in 2019, increased by 109% as
compared to an underwriting profit of HK$4.98 million in
2018, after charging management expenses for underwriting
business.

Min Xin Insurance recorded a profit after tax of HK$3.45
million in 2019, representing a decrease of 58.4% as
compared to a profit after tax of HK$8.3 million in 2018,
mainly due to the decrease in gain on revaluation of
investment properties of HK$11.73 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Insurance Business (Continued)

In order to support the long-term development of Min
Xin Insurance, an additional capital of HK$60 million was
injected during the year under review. The management
team of Min Xin Insurance will continue to develop new
distribution channels and new market segments and grasp
new future opportunities in Hong Kong and regionally. The
management team of Min Xin Insurance will make great
efforts to gradually implement the anticipated business
plan.

Min Xin Insurance will continue to broaden its distribution
channels and strengthen its online distribution system to
meet the clients’ needs and market conditions in order to
uphold service reputation and optimise the overall customer
services. Min Xin Insurance will further allocate resources to
identify new opportunities in an increasingly competitive
market to achieve a better financial performance.

Investment in Huaneng Power International, Inc.
(“Huaneng A-Shares”)

At 31 December 2019, the Shanghai Composite Index
increased by about 22.3% as compared to that at the end of
2018. However, the closing bid price per A-Share of Huaneng
Power International, Inc. (“Huaneng”) as quoted on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange decreased from RMB7.37 per share
at 31 December 2018 to RMB5.57 per share at 31 December
2019. The fair value of the Huaneng A-Shares measured with
reference to the closing bid price per A-Share of Huaneng
stood at HK$423.34 million (equivalent to RMB378.49
million). In 2019, the Group recorded a loss of HK$147.07
million (2018: gain of HK$66.9 million) arising from the net
movement in its fair value change in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the fair
value reserve (non-recycling).

The Group aimed to hold Huaneng A-Shares in the
long term. Huaneng A-Shares continues to contribute a
satisfactory dividend yield to the Group. In 2019, Huaneng
paid a final dividend for 2018 of RMBO0.1 per share. The
Group recorded dividend income totalling RMB6.8 million
(equivalent to HK$7.71 million) in 2019, maintained at the
same level as compared to the final dividend for 2017 of
RMBO.1 per share totalling RMB6.8 million (equivalent to
HK$8.42 million) recorded by the Group in 2018.

ZZ—NFFR Annual Report 2019
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Investment in Huaneng Power International, Inc.
(“Huaneng A-Shares”) (Continued)

Huaneng announced that its total power generation by
power plants within Mainland China on consolidated
basis amounted to 405 billion kWh in 2019, representing
a decrease of 5.9% as compared to that of 2018. Its total
electricity sold amounted to 388.18 billion kWh in 2019,
representing a decrease of 4.4% as compared to that of 2018,
which was mainly attributable to the significant decline in
the growth rate of the electricity consumption nation-wide
in 2019 as compared to that of 2018 and the decline in the
demand for power. The accumulated power generation of
Tuas Power Limited accounted for a market share of 20.7%
in 2019, representing a decrease of 0.4 percentage points as
compared to 21.1% in 2018, which was due to the optimal
adjustment of its competition strategy in Singapore energy
market.

Property Investment

The property investment business of the Group represents
the leasing of certain investment properties in Mainland
China. In 2019, the property investment business reported a
profit after tax of HK$3.27 million as compared to a loss after
tax of HK$0.11 million in 2018, mainly due to a decrease in
the revaluation loss of investment properties.

The market rental of office space in Fuzhou, Fujian Province
was soft in 2019. Although the occupancy rate of the
commercial properties and parking spaces (the “Fuzhou
Property”) of the Group in Fuzhou improved, the monthly
rental of new lettings declined reflecting the market
conditions. As one of the tenants of the Fuzhou Property
had not paid the rent as scheduled, the Group decided to
cancel the lease prior to the expiration date and changed
the unit to its own use during the year. Due to the decrease
in total lettable area, the Group recorded a rental income
of RMB3.59 million in 2019, a decrease of 8.4% as compared
to RMB3.92 million in 2018. At 31 December 2019, the fair
value of the Fuzhou Property was HK$55.41 million (excluded
owner-occupied portion), a decrease of 14.5% as compared
to the fair value of HK$64.83 million at the end of 2018. The
Group recorded a fair value loss of HK$3.38 million and a
fair value loss after deferred tax of HK$1.39 million in 2019,
decreased by 58.7% and 54.7% respectively as compared to
a fair value loss of HK$8.19 million and a fair value loss after
deferred tax of HK$3.07 million in 2018.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Trading in Motor Vehicles

Fujian Minxin Investments Co., Ltd., a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, had been engaged in the trading
in motor vehicles business, among other businesses. We had
ceased the business in March 2019.

The revenue from the sale of motor vehicles was RMB9.44
million (equivalent to HK$11.05 million) in 2019, as
compared to RMB772.84 million (equivalent to HK$930.62
million) in 2018. The cost of motor vehicles sold was
RMB9.37 million (equivalent to HK$10.96 million) in 2019, as
compared to RMB762.55 million (equivalent to HK$918.22
million) in 2018. Gross profit amounted to RMB0.04 million
(equivalent to HK$0.05 million) in 2019, as compared to
RMB8.49 million (equivalent to HK$10.23 million) in 2018.
The loss after tax generated from trading in motor vehicles
business was RMB0.16 million (equivalent to HK$0.19
million) in 2019, as compared to profit after tax of RMB4.83
million (equivalent to HK$5.82 million) in 2018.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group adheres to the principle of prudent financial
management and strives to maintain a healthy financial
position.

Net Asset Value per Share

Based on 597,257,252 shares in issue at 31 December 2019
(2018: 597,257,252 shares), the net asset value per share was
HKS$11.79 at 31 December 2019 (2018: HK$11.27).

Total Liabilities to Equity Ratio and Current Ratio

At 31 December 2019, the total liabilities of the Group were
HK$659.89 million (2018: HK$565.07 million) and the ratio
of total liabilities to total equity attributable to shareholders
of the Company was 9.4% (2018: 8.4%). At 31 December
2019, the current assets and current liabilities of the Group
were HK$1,037.74 million (2018: HK$1,312.64 million) and
HK$254.23 million (2018: HK$323.52 million) respectively
with a current ratio of 4.1 (2018: 4.1).

ZZ—NFFR Annual Report 2019



B BT

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

A5 el ()

fH AR % I

0

0|

AEENEHLFHELERE RS ES
2 IREERSAEBNERLHEN
;éS o

Al

=

R2019F12A31H AEBEBMEREE
46,000 8 T © B HE AN i 3R 17 B 7B H5 26,000
& T M BRI R E 300 20,0008 0T 0 L
2018 4F F [ /9 78 %5 40,000 8 7T 32 1115% °©
BEERXHMENTHERBE B
11,000 E TR HBEHR —FREHAREE -

S—EBEE 25000 B TTHHREBNEN—F
BRMFREERESE  mE%100008
THHREENERREER=ZFREHRE
B -AEEBRTFERERAZSENLH
BFRME - ZZEFHYABE RILEB R
P8 e R2019F 12 A318 ' EBRFEHEN
F35EE45F (20184 31 [EE52/E) °

AN - AREBPN2019F12 A31 BH 5 A KR
BRRTTIRIRE K REE B 22,0008 7T °

2019512 A31H 5% 6,000 8 THIRTT
BEREFAREDFESEMELHE A
EERMEEET - B 20,000 & THRTT
THEZRUERBETARS ANERERAE
VEIRIR - ZERERABEURRQ RN R A
M—REEWNBRRIMH—%F AR 20,0005
TC (ZEE® 22,3708 70) (20184F : AR
20,000 8 7T, S{EB 122,780 & 7T) B =FH
RITFHIEREIRG ©

Br Pl E N AEBMNEMEER
20195 22018412 A 31 A MK -

B xR

R2019F 128318 KREBMEREEL

K (RIEFBRINEEFE) £6.5% (2018 4F -
5.9%) °

{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Borrowings and Charged Assets

The Group monitors its liquidity requirement on a short to
medium term basis and arranges refinancing of the Group's
borrowings as appropriate.

At 31 December 2019, the Group had borrowings of HK$460
million, comprised HK$260 million granted by local banks
and HK$200 million granted by the controlling shareholder,
increased by 15% as compared to HK$400 million at the end
of 2018. Based on the scheduled repayment dates set out in
the loan facilities, an outstanding amount of HK$110 million
will mature and is repayable within one year, and another
outstanding amount of HK$250 million will mature and is
repayable more than one year but within two years whilst
the balance of HK$100 million will mature and is repayable
more than two years but within three years. The Group
will consider to arrange refinancing of the borrowings if
necessary. These loans are in Hong Kong dollars and subject
to floating interest rates. The effective interest rate at 31
December 2019 ranged from 3.5% to 4.5% (2018: 3.1% to
5.2%) per annum.

In addition, the Group had undrawn revolving bank loans of
HK$220 million at 31 December 2019.

At 31 December 2019, the revolving bank loan of HK$60
million was secured by the self-use office building with a
net book value of HK$9.41 million and the term bank loan
of HK$200 million was secured by a standby letter of credit
issued in favour of the lending bank. The standby letter
of credit was collateralised by a three-year bank deposit
of RMB200 million (equivalent to HK$223.7 million) (2018:
RMB200 million, equivalent to HK$227.8 million) placed by
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company in Mainland
China.

Save for the above, no other assets of the Group were
pledged at 31 December 2019 and 2018 respectively.

Gearing Ratio
At 31 December 2019, the gearing ratio of the Group (total

borrowings divided by total net assets) was 6.5% (2018:
5.9%).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Cash Position

The Group’s bank deposits are interest bearing at prevailing
market rates. At 31 December 2019, the total bank deposits
of the Group amounted to HK$1,352.64 million (2018:
HK$1,405.37 million) of which 7.2% were in Hong Kong
Dollars, 87.6% in Renminbi and 5.2% in other currencies
(2018: 12.7% in Hong Kong Dollars, 86.1% in Renminbi and
1.2% in other currencies).

Pursuant to the requirements from the Insurance Authority,
a wholly-owned subsidiary shall maintain at all times a
portion of its funds of not less than HK$16 million in the
name of Insurance Authority account in bank deposits. At 31
December 2019, that subsidiary has placed fixed deposits
of HK$16 million (2018: HK$16 million) in the name of
Insurance Authority account with a bank in Hong Kong for
fulfillment of such requirements. That subsidiary has also
maintained bank deposits of MOP15.32 million (equivalent
to HK$14.87 million) (2018: MOP15.1 million, equivalent
to HK$14.66 million) and HK$26.21 million (2018: HKS$17.1
million) for fulfilling certain requirements under the Macau
Insurance Companies Ordinance (Decree-Law no.27/97/M of
30 June) (the “Macau Insurance Companies Ordinance”).

Risk of Exchange Rate Fluctuation

The Group operates in Hong Kong, Mainland China and
Macau, the exposure in exchange rate risks mainly arises
from currency fluctuation between Hong Kong Dollars and
Renminbi. As the Hong Kong Dollars and Renminbi are both
under managed floating systems, the Group reviews and
monitors periodically its foreign currency exposure and
considers hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise. The Group did not enter into any
derivative contracts aimed at minimising exchange rate risks
during the year.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Capital Commitments

At 31 December 2019, the Group’s capital commitments
relating to property, plant and equipment and investment
properties amounted to HK$0.19 million (2018: HKS$0.2
million).

Contingent Liabilities

At 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group had no
significant contingent liabilities.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

At 31 December 2019, the Group had 82 employees. The
remuneration of employees is based on individual merits
and experience. The Group also provides other benefits to
employees included but not limited to retirement benefits
and medical scheme.

The Group regards human resources as its valuable assets.
The Group offers numerous employee benefits and group
activities to our staff members. To motivate our employees
to enhance and develop their professional knowledges
and skills, the Group provides on-the-job trainings and
workshops for our employees as well as encourages them
to attend seminars and trainings with topics of relevance
to their jobs and duties funded by the Group. The Group
also organises recreational and sports activities such as
Christmas party, monthly birthday party and company trip.

CUSTOMER RELATIONSHIPS

With respect to the Group’s insurance business, we are
committed to establishing a good long-term business
relationship with our brokers and agents. Insurance
products together with the pricing philosophy and other
guidelines will be provided to brokers and agents if needed.
Our staff of business department visit our brokers and
agents regularly to maintain a good relationship. Our claims
and customer service staff swiftly and carefully manage and
respond to our brokers’ and agents’ enquiries in relation to
the insurance products and other related matters.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

Being a responsible corporate citizen, the Group continues
to support the environmental protection initiatives to
conserve the natural resources. We place a high priority on
minimisation of the environmental impact of our business
activities by promoting energy-efficient lighting and use
of public transportation to reduce energy consumption.
In addition, we proactively encourage staff to consume
less energy, water and paper, such as e-filings and paper
recycling in our offices.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

Compliance is an integral part of the Group’s corporate
governance and we are aware of the potential risks of
regulatory non-compliance. As far as the Board is aware, the
Group has complied in material aspects with the relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
business and operation of the Group.

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s businesses, financial condition, results of
operations and prospects may be affected by a number
of risks and uncertainties. The following key risks and
uncertainties identified by the Group are not exhaustive
or comprehensive, and there may be other risks and
uncertainties in addition to those shown below which are
not known to the Group or which may not be material now
but could turn out to be material in the future.

Insurance and Financial Risks

The Group’s business activities are exposed to a variety
of insurance risk and financial risks including market risk
(foreign exchange risk, price risk and interest rate risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The details of the Group’s insurance
risk and financial risks exposures are set out in Note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (Continued)
Business Risks

Banking Business

The growth of XIB Group depends on the macroeconomic
factors that affect Mainland China, Hong Kong and Macau,
including the growth of gross domestic product, inflation
levels, changes in laws and regulations related to banks
and financial products, changes in macroeconomic control
policies, market liquidity, changes in credit policies, changes
in loan demands as well as progress of financial reform and
interest rate liberalisation. XIB Group may be unable to
maintain its growth rate as a result of an adverse change in
any one or more of the above factors or any other factors,
which could have a material and adverse effect on its
financial condition, results of operations and prospects.

Insurance Business

The insurance industries in Hong Kong and Macau are
highly regulated. Companies carrying on insurance business
in Hong Kong and Macau must obtain authorisation
from Insurance Authority and Autoridade Monetaria De
Macau respectively and are subject to the requirements
imposed by Insurance Authority and Autoridade Monetéria
De Macau from time to time. Authorisation will only be
granted to insurers when certain requirements under the
Insurance Ordinance (Chapter 41 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
(the “Insurance Ordinance”) and the Macau Insurance
Companies Ordinance are met. Compliance with applicable
laws, rules and regulations may restrict the operations of
the Group’s insurance business and requires the Group to
deploy significant resources and to devote considerable
time to such compliance efforts. New or revised laws, rules
and regulations may be introduced from time to time and
such changes may have an adverse effect on the insurance
business of the Group in Hong Kong and Macau.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (Continued)
Business Risks (Continued)

Huaneng A-Shares

Huaneng is listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange and
Huaneng A-Shares is classified as a long-term financial asset
of the Group. The dividend income from Huaneng A-Shares
is affected by various factors which are beyond the Group’s
control, included but not limited to the results of operations,
liquidity position and dividend policy of Huaneng.

The Group is required to measure Huaneng A-Shares at
its fair value at the end of each reporting period and the
change in fair value is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity. The fair value
of Huaneng A-Shares is measured with reference to the
closing bid price of A-Share of Huaneng. The closing bid
price of A-Share of Huaneng may be volatile and is affected
by various factors which are beyond the Group’s control,
included but not limited to the results of operations of
Huaneng, investor sentiment or confidence in the stock
market and changes in economic conditions of Mainland
China.

Property Investment

The monthly rental and the occupancy rate will depend
on various factors, including but not limited to prevailing
supply and demand conditions of office building, economic
conditions of Mainland China as well as the quality of the
properties. There is no assurance that the Group is able to
look for new tenants within a short period of time or procure
new leases or renew existing leases at the prevailing market
rental.

The Group is required to revalue its investment properties
at the end of each reporting period and the change in fair
value is recognised in the consolidated income statement.
There is no assurance that changes in market conditions will
continue to generate gains or losses on revaluation at similar
level or at same level, or there will be no further decline in
the fair value of the Group’s investment properties.
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{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr YAN Zheng, aged 58, has been appointed as an
Executive Director, the Chairman of the Board, the Chairman
of both the Executive Committee and the Nomination
Committee, and an Authorised Representative of the
Company since April 2018. He holds a Bachelor degree in
Economics from the Department of Economics of Xiamen
University and a Postgraduate degree in Economics
(Economics Management) from the Party School of the
Central Committee of C.P.C.. He is a Senior Economist in
Mainland China and has been appointed as a member of
Fujian Provincial Senior Economist Evaluation Committee
since 2006. He has also been elected as deputy to the 13th
National People’s Congress since 2018. He has extensive
experience in financial institutions management, corporate
management and capital operations. He is currently the
secretary of the Party Committee, the chairman of the
board of directors and the legal representative of Fujian
Investment & Development Group Co., Ltd. which is a
controlling shareholder of the Company. He is also the
secretary of the Party Committee of Xiamen International
Bank Co., Ltd..

He was the deputy director of the Department of Education
from 1987 to 1991, the deputy director of the Rural
Commercial Credit Department from 1991 to 1995, and
successively served as the deputy general manager and the
general manager of the International Business Department
from 1995 to 1996 at Fujian Branch of Agricultural Bank of
China. He was the deputy general manager from 1996 to
2000 and the deputy secretary of the Party Committee from
1998 to 2000 at Xiamen Branch of Agricultural Bank of China.
He served as the deputy general manager, a member of the
Party Committee and the secretary of the Commission for
Discipline Inspection from 2000 to 2005 at Fujian Branch of
BRI E EE I A A (China Great Wall Asset Management
Corporation*, the predecessor of China Great Wall Asset
Management Co., Ltd.). He was the deputy director-general
and a member of the Party Committee from 2005 to 2009,
and the director-general, the vice chairman and the deputy
secretary of the Party Committee from 2009 to 2016 of
Fujian Rural Credit Union.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr WANG Fei, aged 53, has been appointed as an Executive
Director, the Vice Chairman of the Board and a member of
the Executive Committee of the Company since August 2014.
He holds a Master’s degree in Business Administration and a
Doctorate degree in Economics. He is a Senior Economist in
Mainland China. He has extensive experience in corporate
development and management, financial investment
management as well as venture capital management. He is
currently the deputy general manager of Fujian Investment
& Development Group Co., Ltd. which is a controlling
shareholder of the Company. He is a director of Industrial
Securities Co., Ltd. (Stock code: 601377), a company listed on
the Shanghai Stock Exchange. He is also a director of Xiamen
International Bank Co., Ltd., a director and the vice chairman
of Haixia Capital Management Co., Ltd., the chairman of
Fujian Innovation Venture Investment Management Co.,
Ltd., a director of Alltrust Insurance Company Limited and
the chairman of BEE EXKERELE B A A (Fujian

Industrial Equity Investment Fund Company Limited*).

He had previously assumed the positions of the deputy
general manager of Investment Management Department
of Fujian Investment and Enterprise Corporation, the deputy
general manager of Development and Research Department
of Fujian International Trust and Investment Corporation, the
general manager of Development Department and Financial
Investment Management Department of Fujian Investment &
Enterprise Holdings Corporation and the assistant to general
manager of Fujian Investment & Development Group Co.,
Ltd.. He was the chairman of Haixia Goldenbridge Insurance
Co., Ltd. and was also a director and the chairman of Vigour
Fine Company Limited which is a controlling shareholder of
the Company.
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B @ABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr CHEN Yu, aged 56, has been appointed as an Executive
Director, the General Manager, and a member of the
Executive Committee and the Remuneration Committee of
the Company since September 2018. He joined the Company
as the Executive Deputy General Manager in August 2018.
He is also the chairman of the board of directors of Min Xin
Insurance Company Limited and Fujian Minxin Investments
Co., Ltd., and a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. He holds a Bachelor degree in Water Resources
and Hydropower Engineering from Department of Civil
Engineering and Architecture of Fuzhou University. He is
a Senior Economist in Mainland China. He has extensive
experience in financial technology, capital operations and
financing re-guarantee. He is the general manager, a director
and the chairman of Vigour Fine Company Limited which is a
controlling shareholder of the Company. He is also a director
of Samba Limited which is a substantial shareholder of the
Company.

He worked in Fujian Branch of China Construction Bank from
July 1985 to April 2000, and successively served as a clerk
of the Investment Department and the Sales Department,
the deputy manager of the Sales and Credit Department,
the manager of the Business Development Department,
and the section chief of the Asset Preservation Department.
He successively served as the deputy general manager
of the Private Business Department, the principal of the
Credit Management Department and the deputy general
manager of the Office Management Department of Fuzhou
Branch of China Everbright Bank from April 2000 to July
2004. He was the general manager of Gulou Sub-branch,
Fuzhou Branch of China Everbright Bank from July 2004
to April 2007. He worked in Fujian Rural Credit Union from
April 2007 to February 2018, and successively served as the
deputy director of the Technology Department from April
2007 to December 2007, the director of the Technology
Department and the general manager of the Technology
Service Center from February 2008 to September 2009,
the director of Technology Department, the general
manager of Technology Service Center and the director
of Ningde Office from September 2009 to June 2011, the
director of the Technology Department and the general
manager of the Technology Service Center from June 2011
to February 2015, the general manager of the Technology
Department (Technology Service Center) and the Innovation
Development Department from February 2015 to February
2018. He was the general manager from February 2018 to
August 2018 and the chairman of the board of directors
and the legal representative from February 2018 to
November 2019 of BEEMKRFMEBEREREET AT
(Fujian Provincial Mintou Financing Re-guarantee Company
Limited*, fiEEET NEXRERABERERETLA)

He was also the chairman of the board of directors and the
legal representative of {8 #4& & ¥ 5 EER AR AT (Fujian
Provincial Agricultural Credit Guarantee Company Limited*)
from February 2018 to September 2018.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr HON Hau Chit, aged 45, has been appointed as a Non-
executive Director of the Company since March 2016. He
is currently the managing director of Citychamp Dartong
Company Limited (“Citychamp Dartong”, Stock code:
600067), a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange.
He joined Citychamp Dartong in December 2004 as the
deputy managing director and then appointed as the
managing director since April 2006. He is currently the vice
chairman of Fujian Youth Chamber of Commerce, the vice
chairman of Development Committee of Fujian Real Estate
Association and a member of the Standing Committee of
Fuzhou Municipal Committee of Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference.

Mr YANG Jingchao, aged 54, has been appointed as a Non-
executive Director of the Company since December 2018.
He holds a Bachelor degree in International Finance from
Department of Finance of Renmin University of China and
a Master of Business Administration of La Trobe University.
He is an economist in Mainland China. He has extensive
experience in financial investment and capital operations.
He is currently the general manager of Finance Capital
Department of Fujian Investment & Development Group
Co., Ltd. and a director of Vigour Fine Company Limited,
both of which are controlling shareholders of the Company.
He is also a director of each of Huafu Securities Co., Ltd.,
Haixia Goldenbridge Insurance Co., Ltd., Fujian Innovation
Venture Investment Management Co., Ltd., \Bi 2 EEZWRK
R EEEAPR AT (Fujian Industrial Equity Investment
Fund Company Limited*) and 2B2&BEEE LRI ER
/2 A] (Fujian Guoteng Information Technology Company
Limited*).
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{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr YANG successively served as a clerk of the Finance
Department, the Foreign Exchange Department and
the Fund Management Department from July 1987 to
September 1992, the deputy chief officer of the Fund
Management Department from September 1992 to January
1994 and the deputy manager of the Treasury Department
from January 1994 to December 1995 of Fujian Investment
and Enterprise Corporation. He served as the deputy general
manager of the International Finance Department of Fujian
International Trust and Investment Corporation from
December 1995 to April 2003. He was the deputy general
manager of the Financial Investment Department of Fujian
Investment & Enterprise Holdings Corporation from April
2003 to September 2005 and from September 2006 to May
2009 respectively. He served as the deputy general manager
of F/E A MBEEF LR AR A 7 (CNOOC Fujian New Energy
Company Limited*) from May 2009 to January 2015. He was
also the general manager and the legal representative of &
EHREYR AR AR (Fujian Zhongmin Logistics Company
Limited*) from March 2012 to January 2015. He served as
the deputy general manager of the Integrated Investment
Department of Fujian Investment & Development Group Co.,
Ltd. from January 2015 to October 2016. He was the general
manager from October 2016 to September 2018 and was
also the secretary of the Party Committee, the chairman
of the board of directors and the legal representative from
August 2017 to September 2018 of B4 A B IE SR
T B B R /A A (Pingtan Comprehensive Experimental
Zone Financial Holding Group Company Limited¥).

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr IP Kai Ming, aged 68, has been appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
since July 1998. He is the Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee of the Company. He is currently the
chairman of the Supervisory Board of Xiamen International
Bank Co., Ltd. and the senior advisor to the board of
directors of Luso International Banking Limited. He is a
fellow member of both The Hong Kong Institute of Bankers
and The Hong Kong Institute of Directors, and has over 40
years’ extensive experience in banking and finance. He is
also a director of the Macao Chamber of Commerce. He has
a Master of Science degree in Corporate Governance and
Directorship from the Hong Kong Baptist University.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr CHEUNG Man Hoi, aged 49, FCCA, CPA, has been
appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director
and the Chairman of the Audit Committee since April
2017 and has also been appointed as a member of the
Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee
of the Company since April 2018. He graduated from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a Bachelor of Arts
(Hons) in Accountancy in 1993 and the Chinese University
of Hong Kong with a MBA degree in 2003. He is also a
fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. He has accumulated over 20
years of experience in professional accounting, business
consulting and corporate management. He was the chief
financial officer and the company secretary of Wuzhou
International Holdings Limited (Stock code:1369) from
2014 to 2018, the executive director and the chief financial
officer of Greenland Hong Kong Holdings Limited (formerly
known as SPG Land (Holdings) Limited) (Stock code: 337)
from 2011 to 2012 and from 2009 to 2012 respectively, the
group financial controller of Nine Dragons Paper (Holdings)
Limited (Stock code: 2689) from 2007 to 2008, and the group
financial controller and the company secretary of Tianjin
Development Holdings Limited (Stock code: 882) from 2000
to 2003, all these companies are listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange.
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{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr LEUNG Chong Shun, aged 54, has been appointed as
an Independent Non-executive Director and a member of
the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee of the Company since May 2018.
He graduated from the University of Hong Kong in 1988
and obtained a Bachelor’s degree in laws with honors. He
is qualified as a solicitor in Hong Kong and England and a
China Appointed Attesting Officer appointed by the Ministry
of Justice of the PRC. He is currently a partner of Woo Kwan
Lee & Lo and has been a practicing solicitor in Hong Kong
since 1991. He was the chief representative of Woo Kwan
Lee & Lo Beijing Office. He has accumulated extensive
experience in corporate finance, mergers and acquisitions
and commercial law and has been involved in various listing
and acquisition transactions of Chinese H Share companies
and red chip companies. He is currently an independent
non-executive director of SSY Group Limited (Stock code:
2005), China Coal Energy Company Limited (Stock code:
1898) and China Medical System Holdings Limited (Stock
code: 867). He was an independent non-executive director
of China Communications Construction Company Limited
(Stock code: 1800) from January 2011 to November 2017
and China National Materials Company Limited (Stock
code: 1893) from July 2007 to May 2018, respectively. All
these companies are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange.

* The relevant English name is only a transliteration of the Chinese name
for reference only.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr CHAN Kwong Yu, is the Deputy General Manager,
Financial Controller and Company Secretary of the Company.
He is also a member of the Remuneration Committee of
the Company, the Chief Representative of the Fuzhou
Representative Office of the Company, and a director of Min
Xin Insurance Company Limited, Fujian Minxin Investments
Co., Ltd., Sanming Sanyuan District Minxin Micro Credit
Company Limited and certain subsidiaries of the Company.
He joined the Company in April 2000 and was appointed as
Deputy Financial Controller in July 2004, Financial Controller
in January 2008, Deputy General Manager in March 2014
and Company Secretary in May 2019 respectively. He holds
a Bachelor of Commerce in Accounting, and is a Certified
Public Accountant, a Fellow of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and Senior Associate of Australian and
New Zealand Institute of Insurance and Finance (ANZIIF). He
is also a member of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors and
a Technical Specialist of the Institute of Risk Management.
Before joining the Company, he had worked for various
listed companies in Hong Kong.

Mr WU Xubin, joined the Company as Deputy General
Manager in June 2017. He is also a director and the Acting
Chief Executive of Min Xin Insurance Company Limited
which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. He
holds a Master Degree in Engineering, Economics and
Management from University of Oxford and is certified as
Project Management Professional by Project Management
Institute (USA) and Construction Project Manager (Senior) by
China National Offshore Qil Corporation. He has extensive
experience in project management.

Ms WENG Wei Jian, joined the Company as Group Chief
Auditor in January 2018. She is also the supervisor of Min
Xin Insurance Company Limited, Fujian Minxin Investments
Co., Ltd. and Sanming Sanyuan District Minxin Micro Credit
Company Limited. She graduated in the major of finance and
accounting from Minjiang University and in the major of law
from East China University of Political Science and Law. She
is a Senior Accountant in Mainland China. She has over 26
years’ extensive experience in risk management and control,
accounting, asset management and financial management.
She is also a director of Samba Limited which is a substantial
shareholder of the Company and a non-executive director of
Fujian Holdings Limited (Stock code: 181) which is listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Company is
committed to maintaining and upholding high standards
of corporate governance with a view to achieving business
objectives and sustainable development of the Company.
The Company has adopted the principles and the code
provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code") contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied
with all the applicable code provisions set out in the CG
Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2019 except
for the following deviations:

CG Code A.4.1 provides that non-executive directors should
be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. The
Non-executive Directors of the Company are not appointed
for a specific term, but they are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at annual general meetings in
accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company.

CG Code E.1.2 provides that the chairman of the board
should attend the annual general meeting. Mr YAN Zheng,
the Chairman of the Board and an Executive Director of the
Company, and Mr WANG Fei, the Vice Chairman of the Board
and an Executive Director of the Company, were unable to
attend the annual general meeting of the Company held
on 19 June 2019 (the “2019 AGM”) due to other business
commitments. Mr CHEN Yu, the General Manager and an
Executive Director of the Company took the chair at the
2019 AGM, was of sufficient calibre and knowledge to
answer questions, if any.

The Board will continue to monitor and periodically review
the Company'’s corporate governance practices to ensure its
compliance with the CG Code.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Composition

The Board of the Company currently comprises a total of
eight members, with three Executive Directors, two Non-
executive Directors and three Independent Non-executive
Directors.

The composition of the current Board members represents
a balanced mixture of skills, experiences and qualifications.
Members of the Board, who come from a variety of different
backgrounds, have a diverse range of business and
professional expertise. The Executive Directors and Non-
executive Directors have extensive experiences in financial
institutions management, corporate development and
management, capital operations, financial technology,
financial investment and financing re-guarantee. The three
Independent Non-executive Directors possess appropriate
academic and professional qualifications and have
experiences in banking, accounting, legal, corporate finance
and mergers and acquisitions which would contribute
to the long-term development of the Company. All the
Independent Non-executive Directors have shared their
experiences and expertise to the Board and demonstrated
their ability to provide independent view and judgement in
the Company's affairs.

The Board has adopted a policy setting out the approach
to achieve diversity on the Board (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) with the aim of enhancing Board effectiveness and
corporate governance as well as achieving our business
objectives and sustainable development. Board diversity has
been considered from a number of perspectives, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, required expertise,
skills, knowledge and length of service.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Board Composition (Continued)

R2019F12A31H EFT2HNREHRED An analysis of the Board’s composition at 31 December 2019

ot is as follows:
5=
Directors
A" Bt
Number Percentage
B Designation
WITES Executive Directors 3 37.5%
BRIESE (F/E) Mr YAN Zheng (Chairman)
FIREE (BIEE) Mr WANG Fei (Vice Chairman)
BRFSCHE (AEACHE) Mr CHEN Yu (General Manager)
FHITES Non-executive Directors 2 25.0%
PRERE L Mr HON Hau Chit
HAEA & Mr YANG Jingchao
WY FEWITES Independent Non-executive Directors 3 37.5%
HRIASE Mr IP Kai Ming
SRXB A Mr CHEUNG Man Hoi
2RI E Mr LEUNG Chong Shun
331l Gender
St Male 8 100%
F A Bl Age Group
61-70 5% 61-70 years old 1 12.5%
51-60 5% 51-60 years old 4 50.0%
41-50 5%, 41-50 years old 3 37.5%
BEAQARESNFH Directorship with the Company
(&) (Number of years)
iR 20F over 20 years 1 12.5%
1-104F 1-10 years 7 87.5%
EEHM LT ARNES Directorship with other listed companies
(AEIEE) (Number of Companies)
3 3 1 12.5%
1 1 2 25.0%
0 0 5 62.5%

{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

An updated list of Directors and their roles and functions
together with the information of their roles as Independent
Non-executive Directors is posted on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange. The updated biographical
details of the Directors are set out in the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management”
on pages 22 to 29 of this annual report. Independent
Non-executive Directors are also identified as such in all
corporate communications that disclose the names of the
Company's Directors.

The Company has a formal procedure for the appointment
of new directors. Any proposed appointment will be first
reviewed by the Nomination Committee of the Board,
taking into account the balance of skills, knowledge and
experience on the Board. Upon recommendation of the
Nomination Committee, the proposed appointment will
then be reviewed by the Board and, if thought fit, approved
by the Board or by the shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) in any general meeting.

All directors are subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years. All retiring directors are eligible for
re-election at each annual general meeting in accordance
with the Articles of Association of the Company. Any new
director appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition
to the Board shall hold office only until the next following
general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible
for re-election.

Role and Function of the Board

The Board determines the Group’s overall corporate
objectives, business strategies and operational policies. The
Board continuously monitors and evaluates its operational
and financial performance, maintains effective oversight
over the management, risks assessment and controls over
business operations. The Board also decides on matters such
as annual budgets and business plans, major transactions,
appointment of new directors, re-appointment or re-
designation of directors, and dividend distribution and
accounting policies. The Board has delegated the authority
and responsibility for implementing its business strategies
and managing the daily operations of the Group’s businesses
to the General Manager Meeting which is led by the General
Manager of the Company.

ZZ—NFFR Annual Report 2019



34

B IR

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EHEE ()
HRGH A G RREE (8D

FMTES (BRBIUIFNTESR) BBRH
BY  BRRUEREAREBENERYARRA]S
EEEER  XBRE L2 ERRIEHER
LEERUENER - tPEBEHEEES
EREHENEEZSZE RG22 EE
NEREE EXEANBLRERYEZSNES
SZEEFHER -

CEREHELBRAARANEEERR

EXZ2AFHITARRECEELRRE - NF
A
KER - WREESENT

BRI MRS AR BN EEABR M E
B BREETERRELERBR,;

6 5 FIB 2R B AN LS IR A B s
BAEREHE

BENERADFERMEEERNE
AR R R

HE B RERESREENTAT
Ak ARES (WA) &

BAARBNERE AREHEEER
SRR WERKMERIFN -

EREFHARNARARBENEM ETAR
NAIHABBEENRAL  HMEAZENUKL
BXER-

{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Role and Function of the Board (Continued)

Non-executive Directors (including the Independent Non-
executive Directors) have made positive and constructive
contributions to the development of the Company’'s
corporate objectives, business strategies and operational
policies through independent, constructive and informed
advices. They gave the Board and the Board Committees
on which they served the benefit of their skills, expertise
and experiences through regular attendance and active
participation.

The Board is responsible for determining the corporate
governance policies of the Company. During the year,
the Board developed and reviewed the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance and made
recommendations as below:

. To develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance, including but
not limited to the Approval Authority Policy of the
Company;

. To review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior
management;

. To review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

. To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to the
directors and employees; and

. To review the Company’s compliance with the code of
corporate governance and disclosure requirements in
the Corporate Governance Report.

All Directors are required to disclose to the Company
their offices held in other listed public companies or
organisations, other major appointments and professional
qualifications.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Board Meetings

The Board meets regularly, and at least four times a year,
to review business development and performance of the
Group and additional meetings will be held as and when
required. Board meetings are normally scheduled in advance
to facilitate fullest possible attendance. Each Director is
invited to present any businesses that he wishes to discuss
or propose at such meetings. The Company Secretary assists
the Board in preparing the agenda for meetings. Directors or
Board Committee members receive the meeting agenda and
accompanying Board papers or Board Committee papers at
least three days before the date of Board meeting or Board
Committee meeting. Management also supplies the Board
and the Board Committees with sufficient information and
explanations so as to enable them to make an informed
assessment of financial and other information put before
the Board and the Board Committees for review and
approval. Draft and final versions of minutes are circulated
to all the Directors and Board Committee members for
their comments and records respectively. Minutes of Board
meetings and Board Committee meetings are kept by the
Company Secretary and are open for inspection by the
Directors.

All Directors have full access to business documents and
information on the Group on a timely basis. Furthermore,
management provides all Directors with monthly updates
which give a balanced and understandable assessment
of the Group's performance, position and prospects in
sufficient detail to enable the Board as a whole and each
Director to discharge their duties under the Listing Rules.
The Board and each Director has separate and independent
access to senior management and Company Secretary of the
Company.

Directors may seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expense upon
making requests to the Board.
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HHE () BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
HETER () Board Meetings (Continued)

SEFHaLEESET e s A RAEEE Directors make their best efforts to contribute to the
& BREFERRRE  BRRELR development of strategy, policies and decision-making by

=R o attending the Board meetings in person or via telephone
conferencing.

ARBR2019FRBITHRANEEEEZ LK The attendance records of five scheduled Board meetings

HASEAKSNHBOsEEET held in 2019 and the annual general meeting of the
Company are set out below:

HERTE BERE
Attendance/Number of Meetings
BRRBFARE
EET Annual
Board General
EEHE Name of Directors Meetings Meeting
WITES Executive Directors
ERIERAE (F/F) Mr YAN Zheng (Chairman) 4/5 0/1
FIELE (BIEE) Mr WANG Fei (Vice Chairman) 4/5 0/1
BRFSCHE (AEACHE) Mr CHEN Yu (General Manager) 5/5 1/1
FPITES Non-executive Directors
BERRE Mr HON Hau Chit 5/5 11
A& Mr YANG Jingchao 5/5 11
WY FERITES Independent Non-executive Directors
HERRAR A Mr IP Kai Ming 5/5 11
RIBEE Mr CHEUNG Man Hoi 5/5 11
2B B4 Mr LEUNG Chong Shun 5/5 11
F 0 KA AR E Chairman and Chief Executive

ARmEEeXE ([EFE]) REKIE (LA The positions of the Chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”)

TRBRZFD1TE) 2BBBETRALTE and the General Manager (acting in the capacity of a Chief

T UFEESeEERAEERTEKERE Executive) of the Company are held by separate individuals

HEE SUERES ° with a view to maintain an effective segregation of duties
regarding the management of the Board and the day-to-day
management of the Group’s businesses.

36 {5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Chairman and Chief Executive (Continued)

One of the important roles of Mr YAN Zheng, the Chairman,
is to provide leadership to the Board to ensure that the
Board acts in the best interests of the Group. The Chairman
ensures that the Board works effectively and discharges its
responsibilities, and that all key and appropriate issues are
discussed by the Board in a timely manner. The Chairman
has delegated the responsibility for drawing up the agenda
for each Board meeting to the General Manager, Mr CHEN
Yu.

Senior management is responsible for the day-to-day
management and operations of the Group under the
leadership of the General Manager of the Company. The
General Manager, supported by senior management, is
responsible for managing the businesses of the Group,
including implementation of strategies adopted by the
Board and assuming full accountability to the Board for the
operations of the Group.

Other than regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held
meetings with the Independent Non-executive Directors
without the presence of other Directors and senior
management.

Independence of Independent Non-executive Directors

More than one-third of the members of the Board consist
of independent non-executive directors and at least one
of whom has appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has made
an annual confirmation of independence to the Company
and their independence have been assessed with reference
to the criteria as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
Following such assessment, the Board has affirmed that all
Independent Non-executive Directors remain independent.

The re-election of an Independent Non-executive Director
who has served the Board for more than nine years will
be subject to a separate resolution to be approved by the
Shareholders in the annual general meeting. The Board will
assess the independence of the Independent Non-executive
Directors and state the reasons why the Board considers the
Independent Non-executive Directors are still independent
and recommend the Shareholders to vote in favor of the re-
election of the Independent Non-executive Directors.

ZZ—NFFR Annual Report 2019
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Term of appointment of Non-executive Directors

The Non-executive Directors of the Company have not
been appointed for a specific term as required by CG Code
A.4.1 but they are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the annual general meetings of the Company in
accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company.

Directors’ Training

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills to ensure their contribution to
the Board remains informed and relevant. In 2019, the
Company has arranged one seminar for the Directors and
senior management with topics covered the requirements
of notifiable transactions and connected transactions.
The Company has also provided training materials to the
Directors with the emphasis on latest updates of the Listing
Rules regarding corporate governance, new disclosure
requirements regarding non-Hong Kong companies and
the duties of directors regarding corporate acquisitions or
disposals.

According to the records maintained by the Company, the
Directors received trainings in the following areas:

HEERE HEER
Attended Read
EENSR Name of Directors seminar materials
HWITES Executive Directors
BIELRE (F/E) Mr YAN Zheng (Chairman) v/ v/
FIEEE (FIEE) Mr WANG Fei (Vice Chairman) v/ v/
PRI A (AEASTE ) Mr CHEN Yu (General Manager) v/ 4
EITES Non-executive Directors
RERSLAE Mr HON Hau Chit v/ v
HEEA ST A Mr YANG Jingchao v/ v
WU IEHITES Independent Non-executive Directors
ERAALE Mr IP Kai Ming v v
SRS AE Mr CHEUNG Man Hoi v/ v
2B %A+ Mr LEUNG Chong Shun v/ v

{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Liability Insurance for Directors

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance coverage
on directors’ and officers’ liabilities against possibility of
legal action to be taken against the directors and the senior
management. No claim under such insurance policy was
made in 2019.

BOARD COMMITTEE

The Board has established four Board Committees, namely
Executive Committee, Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee. Each of the
Board Committees has its terms of reference with defined
powers and authorities given to the Committee members
to discharge their duties. The terms of reference of all the
Non-executive Board Committees have been made available
on the Company’s website (www.minxin.com.hk) and the
website of the Stock Exchange.

Audit Committee comprises solely of Independent Non-
executive Directors. Majority of the Remuneration
Committee members and Nomination Committee members
are Independent Non-executive Directors while the
Executive Committee comprises all Executive Directors.
The General Manager Meeting set up by the Executive
Committee comprises the General Manager, who is also an
Executive Director, and senior management.

Executive Committee

The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility
for implementing its business strategies and managing the
daily operations of the Group’s businesses to the Executive
Committee which currently consists of three Executive
Directors, namely Mr YAN Zheng (Chairman), Mr WANG Fei
and Mr CHEN Yu.
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BOARD COMMITTEE (Continued)

Executive Committee (Continued)

To further improve the work process and enhance the
effectiveness, the Company has set up a General Manager
Meeting to exercise the authority and responsibility
delegated by the Board to Executive Committee. The
General Manager Meeting meets at least once per month
and operates as a general management committee
under the direct authority of the Executive Committee.
It exercises the powers, authorities and discretions as
directed by the Executive Committee in so far as they
concern the management and daily operations of the Group
in accordance with its terms of reference and such other
policies and directives as the Executive Committee may
determine from time to time.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee currently comprises three Independent
Non-executive Directors and is chaired by Mr CHEUNG Man
Hoi. Mr CHEUNG Man Hoi has accumulated over 20 years of
experience in professional accounting, business consulting
and corporate management. The other members are Mr IP
Kai Ming and Mr LEUNG Chong Shun.

The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing, among
other things, the Group’s financial reporting, the nature
and scope of audit, the effectiveness of the systems of
internal control and risk management, and compliance
relating to financial reporting. The Audit Committee
is also responsible for making recommendation to the
Board on the appointment, re-appointment, removal and
remuneration of the Group’s external auditor. The Audit
Committee meets regularly to perform its duties and has a
separate meeting with the external auditor in the absence
of management to discuss any audit issues and any other
matters the external auditor may wish to raise. The Audit
Committee can perform its duties with unrestricted access
to both the Group’s external and internal auditors. Sufficient
resources are provided to the Audit Committee to discharge
its duties including but not limited to obtaining legal or
other independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company’s expense.
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BOARD COMMITTEE (Continued)

Audit Committee (Continued)

During the year, the Audit Committee has performed, inter
alia, the following:

reviewed and discussed with external auditor the
annual results for the year ended 31 December 2018
and the interim results for the six months ended 30
June 2019 and recommended to the Board for approval
respectively;

reviewed and obtained explanation from management
on the interim and annual results, including causes
of changes from the previous accounting period,
effects on the application of new accounting policies,
and compliance with the Listing Rules and relevant
legislation;

reviewed the activities of the Group’s internal audit
function and its findings and recommendations as laid
down in the internal audit reports;

reviewed the internal audit plan for the year 2019;

recommended to the Board regarding the re-appointment
of the Company’s external auditor;

reviewed the audit plan for the year 2019;

considered the adequacy of resources, professional
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function, and their
training programs and budget; and

held meetings with the external auditor, at least
annually, in the absence of management, to discuss
any audit issues and any other matters the external
auditor may wish to raise.
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BOARD COMMITTEE (Continued)

Audit Committee (Continued)

In 2019, the Audit Committee held two meetings. The
attendance record of each committee member is set out
below:

HERE BB
REHE Name of Committee Members Attendance/Number of Meetings
RIUBEE (F/E) Mr CHEUNG Man Hoi (Chairman) 2/2
ERALAE Mr IP Kai Ming 2/2
P85 4 Mr LEUNG Chong Shun 2/2

=Ry

FMEESRGADMMKEAERK - Hp X
DRERBIFNTES - HTNZEEHIE
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BEERBRLE - RAELEE  RFEE
MREFRE -

FHZESRRFRAQRMFHBER - N
RElERBNARREERBRERAEDN
FE R YRME=SELES  FMEE
EHFELAR-RERINERRAES
SERLZRNEZ - FTHNZBIEREMRT
REBRNEBITERE  BREMRREEE
BATRSERAEMBIEXER 64
ERAARAIXN -

{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises five
committee members, the majority of whom are Independent
Non-executive Directors. The Remuneration Committee
is chaired by Mr IP Kai Ming who is an Independent Non-
executive Director, the other members are Mr CHEUNG
Man Hoi, Mr LEUNG Chong Shun, Mr CHEN Yu and Mr CHAN
Kwong Yu.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for considering
and making recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s remuneration policy, and the formulation and
review of the remuneration packages of all Directors and
senior management of the Company. The Remuneration
Committee meets at least once each year and reports to
the Board on the decsions or recommendations following
each meeting. Sufficient resources are provided to the
Remuneration Committee to discharge its duties including
but not limited to obtaining legal or other independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company'’s expense.
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BOARD COMMITTEE (Continued)

Remuneration Committee (Continued)

During the year, the Remuneration Committee has
performed, inter alia, the following:

. reviewed the proposal for salary adjustments to its
employees and recommended the same to the Board
for approval;

. reviewed the proposal for payment of bonus to senior
management and recommended the same to the
Board for approval; and

. reviewed the Directors’ fees for the year of 2019 and
recommended the same to the Board for approval.

In 2019, the Remuneration Committee held one meeting.
The attendance record of each committee member is set out
below:

HERE FRRY
REMHE Name of Committee Members Attendance/Number of Meeting
ERBRNA () Mr IP Kai Ming (Chairman) 1/1
RXBRE Mr CHEUNG Man Hoi 171
P85 4 Mr LEUNG Chong Shun 1
BRFSCHE Mr CHEN Yu 11
PRET LA Mr CHAN Kwong Yu 1/1

EHREE 2 HFMFBEREREERTE - I
HINAEBGEAETHERERTEI0- BHE
2019F 12 A31HIEFE I FARR S
MEBABNMES RIS EESTINT

Details of the remuneration of Directors are disclosed
on an individual basis and are set out in Note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements of the Group. The
remuneration payable to senior management of the
Company by band for the year ended 31 December 2019 is
as follows:

AE

Number of

Individuals

75 #£1,500,001 7T - /A% 2,000,000 7T HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 2
75 ¥4 4,000,001 7T - /5% 4,500,000 7T HK$4,000,001 — HK$4,500,000 1
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BOARD COMMITTEE (Continued)

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises four committee
members. The Nomination Committee is chaired by Mr YAN
Zheng, the Chairman of the Board, and the other members
are three Independent Non-executive Directors, Mr IP Kai
Ming, Mr CHEUNG Man Hoi and Mr LEUNG Chong Shun.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on nominations,
appointments or re-appointments of Directors and Board
Committee members in accordance with the Company’s
Nomination Policy. The Nomination Policy set out the
procedures, process and criteria for identifying and
recommending candidates for election to the Board. The
Nomination Committee considers and reviews, among other
things, the structure, size, composition and diversity of
the Board, the balance of skills, knowledge and experience
of the candidates, independence of Independent Non-
executive Directors, re-election of retiring Directors, term
of appointment and time commitment of Non-executive
Directors (including Independent Non-executive Directors)
and the membership of respective Board Committees. The
Nomination Committee is also responsible for developing
and reviewing measureable objectives for the Company’s
Board Diversity Policy to ensure its effectiveness. The
Nomination Committee meets at least once a year and
reports to the Board on their decisions or recommendations
following each meeting. Sufficient resources are provided to
the Nomination Committee to discharge its duties including
but not limited to obtaining legal or other independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company’s expense.

During the year, the Nomination Committee has performed,
inter alia, the following:

. reviewed the structure, size and composition
(including but not limited to the skills, knowledge and
experiences) of the Board in accordance with the Board
Diversity Policy and reported to the Board;

. reviewed and assessed the independence of the
Independent Non-executive Directors; and

. reviewed and recommended to the Board for the
proposed re-election of the retiring Directors at the
annual general meeting held in 2019.
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BOARD COMMITTEE (Continued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

In 2019, the Nomination Committee held one meeting. The
attendance record of each committee member is set out
below:

HERE FRRE
MEHE Name of Committee Members Attendance/Number of Meeting
BRIESE (F/7) Mr YAN Zheng (Chairman) 11
RIF L Mr CHEUNG Man Hoi 11
ERAEE Mr IP Kai Ming 1/1
P85 4 Mr LEUNG Chong Shun ”n

HFEW B

ARBIERM—EBTHERRNEFETE
HFR BT ([ GRTERD J) - B
RMERCETRA) M+ AEz(EmA
RIESFETESFIHNFRESTAD ([ (B2
A1) FARENTRE - RARERZ2EBES
L ESH  MEESEIRRBEE2019F
NRANBLEEEFE-—FET (FEESTRD
P8R E R R AN R EIH) CRSTEERID ©

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted its own code of conduct
regarding directors’ securities transactions (the “Code of
Conduct”) on terms no less exacting than the required
standard in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. The Company has made
specific enquiry to all Directors and all Directors of the
Company have confirmed that they have complied with
the required standard as set out in the Model Code and the
Company’s Code of Conduct throughout the year ended 31
December 2019.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The Board aims at making a balanced, clear and
comprehensive assessment of the Company’s performance,
position and prospects. The Directors are responsible
for overseeing the preparation of consolidated financial
statements of each financial year which give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the Company and
its subsidiaries as at the end of the reporting period and
of their financial performance and cash flows for that
period then ended. In preparing the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2019, the
Directors selected suitable accounting policies and applied
them consistently, adopted appropriate Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and Hong Kong Accounting
Standards which are pertinent to its operations and relevant
to the financial statements, made judgement and estimates
that are prudent and reasonable, and prepared the accounts
on a going concern basis.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the accounts of the Company on a going concern basis.
The consolidated financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2019 have
been audited by the external auditor, KPMG, and reviewed
by the Audit Committee. At 31 December 2019, the Directors
were not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions which might cast significant doubt on
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The responsibilities of the external auditor with respect
to the audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31
December 2019 are set out in the “Independent Auditor’s
Report” on pages 97 to 105 of this annual report.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for maintaining
and overseeing an appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems. The risk
management and internal control systems will monitor the
material aspects of the Group’s business and operations
and also to safeguard its assets. Such systems are designed
to manage the Group’s risks within an acceptable risk
profile, rather than to eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable but
not absolute assurance against material misstatement
or loss, and to manage and minimise risks of failure in
operational systems.

The Board has adopted the Risk Management Policy which
covers the Group’s risk appetite and risk management
framework at strategic and operational levels in identifying,
measuring, monitoring and controlling risks including credit
risk, market risk, insurance risk, operational risk, investment
risk and compliance risk etc., the details of which were set
out in the “Risk Management and Internal Control Report”
on pages 54 to 61 of this annual report.

The Board oversees the effectiveness of the Group's
risk management and internal control systems with the
assistance of the Audit Committee and the Risk Management
Department of the Company. Risk Management Department
developed the risk registers and risk management manual
for implementing risk management and internal control
practices. The Manager of Risk Management Department
is also responsible for reviewing the risk management
status in the Group, to monitor and review the execution of
and compliance with the established risk control policies
and measures. Regular audits or reviews are conducted
to provide assurance that the risk controls are in place in
business and operational units of the Group. The Manager
of Risk Management Department presents reports to the
members of the Audit Committee on the effectiveness of
risk management and internal control systems.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)

Risk Management and Internal Control (Continued)

The Board also delegates the responsibility for reviewing
the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems to the Audit Committee. The Audit
Committee monitors the Group’s risk management processes
and internal control systems through the Internal Audit
Department. Internal Audit Department performs ongoing
assessments and regular independent reviews of all material
controls of the Group, checks for compliance with policies
and standards and evaluates the effectiveness of internal
control structures across the Group.

The Audit Committee reviewed the effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems
covering all material controls, including financial,
operational, compliance, and risk management functions
during the year and the resources allocated to internal
control operations. The Audit Committee reported the
review result to the Board following each Audit Committee
meeting. The Board reviewed, considered and satisfied with
the Group’s risk management and internal control systems
and risk management functions are effective, adequate
and in compliance with the risk management and internal
control code provisions of the CG Code.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year under review, the fees paid or payable to
the external auditor of the Company, KPMG, for statutory
audit services, attestation work (in relation to interim
financial statements issued by the Company), and tax and
consultancy services were HK$1,787,000, HK$299,000 and
HK$114,000 respectively.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr CHAN Kwong Yu is the Company Secretary and an
Authorised Representative of the Company, he is a full time
employee of the Company and has day-to-day knowledge
of the Company's affairs. He should report to the Chairman
and the General Manager and is responsible for advising
the Board on governance matters. He confirmed that he has
taken no less than 15 hours relevant professional training to
update his skills and knowledge during the year 2019.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening a General Meeting (“GM”)

Shareholder(s) of the Company representing at least 5%
of the total voting rights of all the members having a right
to vote at general meetings may request Directors of the
Company to call a GM of the Company.

The request:

(@) must state the general nature of the business to be
dealt with at the GM;

(b) may consist of several documents in like form;

()  may include the text of a resolution that may properly
be moved and is intended to be moved at the GM;

(d) must be authenticated by the person or persons
making it; and

() may be sent to the Company in hard copy form or in
electronic form.

The request will be verified with the Company’s share
registrar and upon their confirmation that the request is
proper and in order, the Company Secretary will notify the
Directors to proceed to convene a GM within 21 days from
the date of the receipt of the request. Such GM must be held
on a date not more than 28 days after the date of the notice
convening the GM.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)

Convening a General Meeting (“GM”) (Continued)

If the Directors fail to convene a GM within 21 days from
the date of the receipt of the request, the shareholder(s)
who requested the GM, or any of them representing more
than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may
themselves convene the GM. Any GM so convened shall not
be held after the expiration of three months from the date
of the receipt of the request.

A GM so convened by the shareholder(s) concerned shall be
convened in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that
in which meetings are to be convened by the Directors.

Any reasonable expenses incurred by the shareholder(s)
concerned by reason of the failure of the Directors
duly to convene a meeting shall be reimbursed to such
shareholder(s) by the Company.

For further details, shareholders are kindly requested to
refer to Sections 566 to 568 of the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the Laws of the Hong Kong) (the “Companies
Ordinance”).

Moving a Resolution at an Annual General Meeting
(‘6AGM)’)

Shareholders of the Company may request the Company
to give, to shareholders of the Company entitled to receive
notice of AGM, notice of resolution that may properly be
moved and is intended to be moved at the AGM. Such
shareholders must represent:

(@) at least 2.5% of the total voting rights of all the
shareholders who have a right to vote on the resolution
at the AGM to which the requests relate; or

(b) at least 50 shareholders who have a right to vote on
the resolution at the AGM to which the requests relate.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)

Moving a Resolution at an Annual General Meeting
(“AGM”) (Continued)

The request (i) may be sent to the Company in hard copy
form or electronic form; (ii) must identify the resolution of
which notice is to be given; (iii) must be authenticated by
the person or persons making it; and (iv) must be received
by the Company not later than 6 weeks before the AGM to
which the request relates; or if later, the time at which notice
is given of that meeting.

In addition, the request will be verified with the Company’s
share registrar and upon their confirmation that the request
is proper and in order, the Company Secretary will notify the
Directors for including the resolution in the agenda for the
AGM.

The Company is required to give notice of the resolution
at the Company’s own expense to each shareholder of the
Company entitled to receive notice of the AGM in the same
manner as the notice of AGM; and at the same time as, or as
soon as reasonably practicable after, it gives notice of AGM.

For further details, shareholders are kindly requested to
refer to Sections 615 and 616 of the Companies Ordinance.

Circulation of Statement at General Meetings

If shareholders of the Company would like to express their
views to a matter mentioned in a proposed resolution or
other business to be dealt with at a GM, they can submit
a written statement of not more than 1,000 words with
respect to that matter or business and request the Company
to circulate their written statement to the shareholders
of the Company entitled to receive notice of GM. Such
shareholders must represent:

(@) at least 2.5% of the total voting rights of all the
shareholders having the relevant right to vote at the

meeting; or

(b) at least 50 shareholders having the relevant right to
vote at the meeting.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)

Circulation of Statement at General Meetings (Continued)

The shareholders having the right to vote mean (i) in relation
to a proposed statement concerning a matter mentioned in
a proposed resolution, a right to vote on that resolution at
the meeting to which the requests relate; and (ii) in relation
to any other statement, a right to vote at the meeting to
which the requests relate.

The request to circulate a statement (i) may be sent to
the Company in hard copy form or in electronic form; (ii)
must identify the statement to be circulated; (iii) must be
authenticated by the person or persons making it; and (iv)
must be received by the Company at least 7 days before the
meeting to which the request relates.

The request will be verified with the Company ‘s share
registrar and upon their confirmation that the request
is proper and in order, the Company will circulate the
statement to each shareholder of the Company entitled to
receive notice of the meeting provided that:

(@) if the request relates to an AGM and the proposed
statement is received in time to enable the Company
to send a copy of the statement at the same time as
it gives notice of AGM. Otherwise, the shareholders
concerned have to deposit a sum reasonably sufficient
to meet the Company’s expenses in circulating the
statement submitted by the shareholders concerned
not later than 7 days before the AGM;

(b) if the request relates to a GM (other than an AGM),
the shareholders concerned have to deposit a sum
reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses
in circulating the statement submitted by the
shareholders concerned not later than 7 days before
the GM.

For further details, shareholders are kindly requested to
refer to Sections 580 to 582 of the Companies Ordinance.

Further, a shareholder may propose a person other than
a retiring Director of the Company for election as a
Director of the Company at a GM. The procedures for such
proposal are available on the website of the Company
(www.minxin.com.hk).



JEORHER] (%)

] 35 g 4 tH A
Hﬁﬁ—fﬂ—rﬁﬁh%%%@%« T2 E
H AE@ERGB WERELBKEH
KRXARAzEMPBERELEE =
mxhl.enquiry@minxin.com.hk * 7F B3 2 &) #
g

B JC B A Ve

RABEHRA (RABAKRK) - RBEBTF

MIEARBARIRF AR TZHx% EE

HEREBAB Z2ENET  EREEFESE
WERERANAGZAFRER

Ji% B R

AKAFERABEER ([REHK]) » %

BB EmBREIRMNRERNRARER -
FEUAREREERT R HER DR & ERR
HOZARRFNFE - EFL 0] AT IRF
Hﬂﬁxgjﬁ_ ﬁﬂxi/ﬁﬁﬂiﬁﬁﬂxﬁ)&%%u
B WEASKRERBRERS EHE - AR
%%%l‘?/\éﬁ%ﬂxiw Hx%)‘%fﬁwigﬁ.?if
#10%E20% MR E R MNIERRSE  EFE
BT RAEFBEBEAERRA T*X%é)%&%@
ZH e

EEF

RATIN (EEEZRAMA)) D EHREAR
% BT A o Eti2019¢12)ﬂ31a¢¢
& AL EE] -

e S PIRiiet
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)

Putting Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may send their enquiries requiring the Board'’s
attention in writing together with his/her contact details
addressing to the registered office of the Company or by
email to mxhl.enquiry@minxin.com.hk for the attention of
the Company Secretary.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company adopted a Shareholders Communication Policy
aims at enhancing the efficiency of communication amongst
the Shareholders, the Board and senior management of
the Company through various official channels so that the
Shareholders can access the Company’s public information
equally in a timely manner.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted the dividend policy (the
“Dividend Policy”) which has set out the principle and
procedures for the payment of dividend to Shareholders to
provide stable and sustainable returns to the Shareholders
and to share the profits of the Company with the
Shareholders. The Board may decide from time to time to
declare interim dividend or to recommend the payment
of final dividend and special dividend to the Shareholders
which is subject to the Shareholders’ approval in a general
meeting. The Company intends to provide the eligible
Shareholders with approximately 10% to 20% of the
Group’s consolidated profit for the year attributable to the
Shareholders as dividend, the remaining consolidated profit
for the year will be used for the future development and
operations of the Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Articles of Association of the Company is posted on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. There has
been no change during the year ended 31 December 2019.
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B @BMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited

Min Xin Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) strive to establish a sound
risk management and internal control system to
achieve sustainable development and be responsible to
shareholders. The Board of the Company (the “Board”) has
the overall responsibility for maintaining the effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control system. The senior
management is charged with the responsibility to establish
and implement such system to control risks arising from
business activities within an acceptable level via an effective
risk management process.

During the year under review, the Group complied with
the above principles and the CG Codes C.2.1 to C.2.5 and
recommended best practices C.2.6 and C.2.7. The details are
summarised as follows:

&2 CEBRRFEAR
Figure 2 : Risk Appetite Framework
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Five core principles include: Securing capital adequacy; Maintaining a strong liquidity position; Preserving
good reputation; Complying with regulatory and compliance management requirements; Matching between
risks and returns.

Note:
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Figure4 : RISk Management Process
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RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK (FIGURE 1)

The Group has established a risk management framework
to define its risk management objectives, risk appetite,
risk monitoring and reporting mechanism to enable the
effective implementation of the risk management process
by the Group. If there are any material risks being identified
that can have significant effect on the Group, it should
be immediately reported to the senior management or
notified to at least two Directors to take appropriate risk
management action against the material risks.

RISK APPETITE FRAMEWORK (FIGURE 2)

The Group’s risk appetite is based on five core principles,
including: Securing capital adequacy; Maintaining a strong
liquidity position; Preserving good reputation; Complying
with regulatory and compliance management requirements;
Matching between risks and returns.

The senior management shall design risk indicators and
risk limits based on the five core principles and operating
environment. The senior management shall also report
its implementation status to the Board on a regular basis.
Meanwhile, a risk appetite statement report should be
compiled at least once a year and subsequently submitted
to the Board for approval.

RISK GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE AND THREE
LINES OF DEFENSE MODEL (FIGURE 3)

The Group has adopted a systematic risk management
approach to implement a top-down management
mechanism. The current risk management organisational
structure includes the Board, the senior management and
business divisions.

+  The Board is the highest steering committee for risk
management, and with the assistance of the Audit
Committee, it evaluates the risks that the Group is
willing to accept during the phase of achieving strategic
goals, so as to ensure the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control system.

+  The senior management is responsible for formulating
risk strategies, risk policies and risk management
framework; establishing a risk management culture; and
implementing and supervising the risk management
and internal control system.

ZZ—NFFR Annual Report 2019
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RISK GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE AND THREE LINES OF DEFENSE MODEL (FIGURE 3)

(Continued)
*®1: Z@EhR
Table 1: Three Lines of Defense
5E— IR &% B AR E=EM&
First Line Of Defense Second Line Of Defense Third Line Of Defense
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Business divisions (and subsidiaries)
serve as the first line of defense. They
shall be responsible for managing
the risks arising from business
activities. At the same time, they
shall formulate relevant regulations
and processes in accordance with
risk management policies, carry out
specific risk management work, as well
as provide risk indicators to the risk
management function on a regular
basis to track the performance of risk
management. In addition, business
divisions (and subsidiaries) shall work
with the compliance management
function to ensure that the design of
various policies was in conformity with
the related regulations of competent
authorities.

The risk management function and
the compliance management function
are responsible for the second line
of defense. The risk management
function is responsible for collecting
key risk information, managing
the implementation status of its
risk indicators as well as issuing risk
warnings when those risk indicators
are close to exceeding the risk limits.
The compliance management
function is responsible for managing
the Company’s internal systems,
monitoring whether each business
divisions has complied with relevant
internal policies in business operations,
duly performing supervisions and
inspections such as compliance
check and compliance examination,
and conducting inspections on the
compliance practice in business
operations. Meanwhile, the risk
management function and the
compliance management function
shall report the implementation status
of risk management to the senior
management, the Audit Committee
and the Board on a regular basis.

The internal audit function acts as the
third line of defense. The Board and
the Audit Committee are responsible
for leading the internal audit function
in inspecting and evaluating the
adequacy and the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control
system regularly, and requesting for
enhancements where appropriate.

B @ABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited
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RISK GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE AND
THREE LINES OF DEFENSE MODEL (FIGURE 3)
(Continued)

Each business division is an implementation entity of its
respective business activities, and shall regularly provide
risk indicators to the risk management department
or internal audit function of the Company, or to its
equivalent under the subsidiaries for conducting risk
management activities on the basis of its current work.

At the same time, in order to implement the risk
management and internal control system effectively and
to achieve the goal of “To be risk-oriented and to comply
with the laws”, the Group sets up a “Three Lines of Defense”
model (Table 1) in accordance with the proportional
principle to ensure that the operational management and
business processes of the Group have been embedded with
risk management activities.

RISK MANAGEMENT PROCESS (FIGURE 4)

The Group conducts risk management by adopting the
following risk management steps:

Step 1: Risk Identification - Identifying the significant
sources and types of risks faced by the Group;

Step 2: Risk Analysis — Evaluating the existing risks;

Step 3: Risk Monitoring - Setting key risk indicators for
identified significant risks based on the risk appetite
framework, and monitoring risk changes on a regular basis;

Step 4: Risk Reporting - Concluding and analysing the
results of risk management and reporting the results to the
senior management and the Board. The report also outlines
the following items:

+ Implementation of risk indicators and limits;
+  Risk assessment.
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SIGNIFICANT RISKS TO THE GROUP

The Group has identified significant risks in principal
businesses, which can be categorised as: Associated
company risk, Insurance risk, Credit risk, Market risk and
Operational risk. The summary about the risks and related
management measures are as follows:

Associated Company Risk

“Associated company risk” is the risk of difficulty in
realisation of investment institution’s interests of an
associated company.

The Group holds the most significant investment in Xiamen
International Bank. Therefore, the Company conducts risk
management by nominating Directors and continuously
monitoring long-term investment performance to reduce
uncertainty.

At the end of 2019, the total assets of our banking business
accounted for 71.2% of the Group’s total assets.

Insurance Risk

“Insurance risk” refers to the risk of losses resulting from
unexpected changes in the payment of claims and related
expenses in accordance with the contract after receiving
premiums and starting to undertake the risk of the insured
in the insurance business.

In order to reduce the risk, Min Xin Insurance focuses on
high-quality new businesses with mature underwriting
policies, and adopts appropriate claim procedures to reduce
the risks in claim processing due to improper operations
or negligence. Besides, Min Xin Insurance has arranged the
reinsurance to control risks within an acceptable range.
The risk exposure (total insurance liabilities, net) of Min Xin
Insurance at the end of 2019 was HK$78.894 million.
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SIGNIFICANT RISKS TO THE GROUP
(Continued)

Credit Risk

“Credit risk” is the risk of potential financial loss due to
counterparty or debtor failing or declining to perform
contractual obligations.

The credit risk of Min Xin Insurance is mainly from the risk
of treaty-reinsurer failing to execute the reinsurance treaty
resulting in Min Xin Insurance suffering financial loss and
may lead to an impairment of the Group’s consolidated
assets. Min Xin Insurance has selected treaty-reinsurers
with credit ratings of A- or above from Standard & Poor’s
(or equivalent) as business partners prior to arranging
reinsurance and has regularly monitored their credit ratings.
There were 8 treaty-reinsurers cooperating with Min Xin
Insurance, and their credit ratings were all above A- as at 31
December 2019.

The credit risk of the Sanyuan Micro Credit arises from
the debtor failing or refuses to repay the loans resulting
in the increase of non-performing debts and may lead
to an impairment of the Group’s consolidated assets. At
31 December 2019, non-performing loan balances were
RMB233.97 million (equivalent to HK$261.70 million), a
decrease of 4.2% from RMB244.12 million (equivalent to
HK$278.05 million) at the end of 2018. Sanyuan Micro
Credit has stopped underwriting new loan business and will
continue to adopt proactive measures to recover its non-
performing loans.

As to bond investments, the Group is limited to invest in
investment grade bonds. The risk exposure of bonds as at 31
December 2019 was HK$3.115 million (face value).

(X

d

ZZ—NFFR Annual Report 2019 i

V-

"



60

JoR\ i 7 P % oA B A R R

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL REPORT

AR 18 o v B 1 K LB ()

i1 3 JEL i

[hisER] FEREBMS TAZERE
B EMPErSEeREEBEELRR
Z R o

AEENEREERFERERSKRREEN
RIES - HERGRRIESESERRXEE -
R2019F K AEEREZNERTAER
SROANG ES  AE3INSET (HE)

E:88aE T (hE) £2 : FENEH
1.68187T (M{E) - BEAGFR AR 638

& (BEAB 713 (K&e) °

1A JE P

[RERR] RIERNEEE - ABREFZ
PEHKRR - HAINEEIPTER 2B -

AEBRBEMNBE D TRGIE - 72
REBRE > WETEANREGIES T
TR B IR N R o

NECREPSYI &3

AEBEDHE (B BB RERE) - AR
HEMER ABHELERENER EX
EREREEBHNAREREEALENA
BREBE - RENEHARHEENIEF A
ERESYE - WONBBE T EAETT T BRARE
AEHERBEASAHEFTEREEREN
SRABEL -
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SIGNIFICANT RISKS TO THE GROUP
(Continued)

Market Risk

“Market risk” is the risk due to price changes in financial
market instruments which affect the value of the Group's
financial assets and in turn create losses.

The Group’s risk management objective is to increase
shareholders’ value while ensuring that the risks will be
controlled within the Group’s acceptable range. The risk
exposures of the Group in major financial instruments at
the end of 2019 were: Bonds: HK$3.115 million (face value),
Stocks: HK$8.84 million (market value), Funds: equivalent
to approximately HK$168 million (market value), Structured
deposits: RMB638 million (equivalent to HK$713 million)
(principal).

Operational Risk

“Operational risk” is the risk of losses due to improper
or faulty of internal operation, personnel and system, or
external events.

The Group manages and controls the risks through methods
such as effective work division and balancing mechanism,
sort major business segments and set up formal policies.

INSIDE INFORMATION AND DISCLOSURE

The Group has formulated the “Inside Information Disclosure
Policy” to have strict specification on areas such as the
definition of inside information, the requirements for the
release of inside information, the roles and responsibilities
of the Board and the senior management on inside
information management, the procedures and internal
control for processing and issuing inside information as
well as public communication. The announcement of the
disclosure of inside information shall be submitted to the
Board or an authorised officer for approval.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Group’s internal controls are designed to improve the
operational efficiency, prevent misuse and unauthorized
processing of assets, maintain proper accounting records to
deliver a true and fair view for the financial statements, and
ensure the compliance with relevant laws and regulations.

REVIEW OF RISK MANAGEMENT AND
INTERNAL CONTROL

In accordance with the CG Code C.2.1 and C.2.2, the Board
and the Audit Committee reviewed the Group’s financial,
operational, compliance, and risk management functions in
2019. The senior management has confirmed to the Board
and the Audit Committee that the current risk management
and internal control systems of the Group are adequate
and effective. Based on the review results and the senior
management’s confirmation, the Board and the Audit
Committee considered the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems to be adequate and effective as of
31 December 2019. Details of which are summarized below:

In the year under review, the Board reviewed the Group’s risk
management framework which contained risk management
objectives, risk appetite framework, risk monitoring and risk
reporting.

In the year under review, the Board was of the view that
the risk management and internal control system has been
continuously improved by the Group. It strives to make the
risk management methods more standardised, including
the enhancement of risk appetite system, risk indicators and
risk limits, and risk monitoring system for the Group in the
future.

The Group will continue to strengthen the management and
implementation of risk management and internal control
system in order to comply with the provisions in the CG
Code and best practices.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

This Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) Report
serves as a review on the efforts and achievements made
by Min Xin Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) for environmental, social and
governance issues during the reporting period. This ESG
Report discloses the Group’s practice for its commitment
to social responsibilities and its philosophies of sustainable
development. As a platform for communication with all
stakeholders, this ESG Report also makes responses to the
major concerns of all stakeholders in our efforts to facilitate
mutual understandings.

This ESG Report has been prepared in accordance with the
“comply or explain” provisions of the Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide (the “Guide”) as set out in
Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, which covers the period from 1 January 2019 to 31
December 2019. The reporting principles of “Materiality”,
“Quantitative”, “Balance” and “Consistency” set out in the
Guide underpinned the preparation and contents of this ESG
Report, as well as the presentation of the information.

This ESG Report covers the Group’s major operations
including the Company and its three subsidiaries listed
below:

MEXE AR

Name of Subsidiaries

EREHR

Principal Activities

MERBRARRT]

Min Xin Insurance Company Limited

AR — AR IR

Writing of general insurance business

BEEEREERAR

Fujian Minxin Investments Co., Ltd.

wEER
Investment holding

=T = TREENEERERAF
Sanming Sanyuan District Minxin Micro Credit
Company Limited

R NBEERREFEEREY

Provision of micro credit and entrusted loans

AFEMHEE2018FRE LG RE AR
ERRETREAES -

ABEME 2 A ERIGREANEE K EHK
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EER -

{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

There were no significant changes in the scope of this ESG
Report from that of the 2018 ESG Report.

All information in this ESG Report is sourced from the
official documents, statistical data, and management and
operational information of and collected by the Group.
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MIN XIN HOLDINGS LIMITED

BREBE XS
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

ESG PHILOSOPY

The Company has put great effort to protect the
environment, provide a quality workplace, and serve the
wider community. The Board has overall responsibility for
decision-making regarding ESG management and reporting.
The management monitors the performance of the actual
implementation and reporting process, relevant trends
and regulations for planning and executing initiatives of
corporate social responsibility.

The nature and extent of ESG related risks are evaluated
and reviewed whenever appropriate. Risk management and
internal control systems are in place to manage and control
the risk of failure to achieve business objective. Hence, the
Company can better understand and manage ESG related
risks and create greater value for our stakeholders.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND
COMMUNICATION AND MATERIALITY
ASSESSMENT

The Group emphasises the importance of trust and support
of all sectors of the society to the sustainable development
of the Group. Accordingly, the Group attaches great
importance to maintaining communication and interaction
with the stakeholders through a diverse array of effective
communication channels. The Group has been actively
collecting opinions and suggestions from government
and regulatory authorities, shareholders of the Company,
employees, suppliers, customers and the general public
so as to meet their expectations and demands as far as
possible.
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R & 2B~ J#m N B B R, STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND
(%) COMMUNICATION AND MATERIALITY
ASSESSMENT (Continued)
g BERE HEEFK )3T
Stakeholder Communication Channel Concern and Demand Response and Feedback
BRREERE - ARER: - RERZRRE - BXRBRE
Government - EEHH - YHEERE - - BTEMAR  BEFEELIELE
and regulatory o HERBAT « Carry out its operation and pay tax in BR o
authorities + Compliance management; accordance with laws; + Subject to tax examination;
+ Proactive tax payment; + Support economic development. + Comply with local regulations and
« Comply with policies. business ethics, and make contribution
to local economic development.
RRARRE - REAE - BROFEGREONE  RERAEER | HERGKEEE SREERER
Shareholders of . EHRE Z2; KT AREERERRRBR
the Company - BERER: - BROFEERENTE EE KK FHHEERR
DA CEGE - BUMERBRMMAR RS
« General meeting; + Ensure sustainable income and safe BERTEEEREGE -
+ Regular reporting; investments; + Continuously enhance its operating
+ Direct communication; + Ensure the completeness, truthfulness, management, governance and risk
+ Company website. timeliness and validity of corporate management to deliver long term
information disclosure. and steadily rising investment return;
+Establish a scientific, reasonable
and efficient corporate governance
framework to regulate and refine
information disclosure system.
%8 . BEAE . DTPFEENEENRE . BENTIEEH
Employees . EEENEY - REZRNIIRS - EEOFABHRERER
- BRBR: - GMERFIBHRRE - - BESEHNEED -
. BREE - + Fair competition and prospect + Quality workplace;
« Town hall meeting; of promotion and development; + Comprehensive system of remuneration,
+ Regular performance + Healthy and safe workplace; benefits and promotion;
assessment; + Security of remuneration and benefits. + Organise various cultural and recreational
+ Direct communication; activities.
+ Team-building activities.
PR - PHEEHRREER: - BT DR REMBREER - BURBERBZNASARER
Suppliers . BRARREER - BEEE - AEER -

- EEHRMERER -

+ Comprehensive
management of
bidding and tendering;

+ Carry out projects in
accordance with contracts;

+ Assessment and review
regularly.

« Fair, open and just bidding and tendering;
+ Committed to business integrity.

+ Develop administrative rules on
procurement to regulate procedures
relating to bidding, tendering and
business solicitation.

B @ABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited
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Frip & 2B - i S i Bl STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND
(#8) COMMUNICATION AND MATERIALITY
ASSESSMENT (Continued)
BhE BERE HEEFR B} 3T
Stakeholder Communication Channel Concern and Demand Response and Feedback
EF - WEEHE: - BmENERRRE  EFR - DEFREERZRE - Rt
Customers - KPR HBENERERFIIRE - BENERARBLRUAS
+ Carry out customer + Provide quality products and WHIE AR S RALE -
satisfaction survey; services to protect various + Put customer satisfaction as first
+ Maintain interactions rights of customers and priority in providing quality products
and open ways of consumers. and services, and develop regulatory
communication with systems for protection of information
our customers. and privacy.
HERR » DEED - BEZADGED  RELE - BIERLRHE  MEHE
General public . DRI, HeEf- RERE -
- EEMZTEY - +Proactive in corporate social responsibility +Provide job opportunities and expand
« Charity activities; by actively participating in community investment.
+ Company website; charity activities.
« Staff volunteer activities.

AEBEBBRBNIIBRNELEER N
HHE BRRRTHEE- T TEENEN
I MER sk - o &) F 0 —F 8
B REARBENSHHEML R - RER
BHBMERS I HEER TENBERER
AR P e % 7] o

AN TETEEBMEHE  HEBVEN/)
Matim s WHAHBEMMETHRFL AR
‘- GAEESRBNEEREEAREARE
BEBHNEARBMEREE @ BE T AEEM
BRATHEZERBRRE - NAR]RRE
($E3]) 2RUBER A THNEFNER SR
EENTAERZREEARETFE—HKTE
" AAHHMHENDE -

The Group organised and implemented various surveys
on the importance for internal and external stakeholders.
Through these efforts, we refined the relevancy of responses
in this ESG Report as we gained a better understanding of
expectations and needs of stakeholders and strengthened
our communication with various stakeholders. These surveys
also demonstrate our activeness in promoting sustainable
development and the efforts we made.

These surveys were conducted mainly by questionnaires,
interviews, group discussions as necessary and targeted
calls. We considered priorities of major concerns of the
stakeholders and materiality of these concerns to our
businesses to develop the materiality matrix of the Group
as outlined in the Materiality Matrix below. The Company
will make realistic and targeted responses to the ten major
concerns considered as most critical to our stakeholders as
outlined in the Ten Major Concerns below in further detail in
the rest of this ESG Report in accordance with the Guide.
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Ry 28~ 1 N i B REAL STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND
(%48) COMMUNICATION AND MATERIALITY
ASSESSMENT (Continued)

EE MR E B Materiality Matrix

BEREIER BER HERE
Employment and Operating Practices Community Investment
Labour Practices

1 REAERBHN 8 (EEHE 3 HERLRS 25 EBHEMMENTE
Air and greenhouse Composition of Suppliers by Impact of business to the
gas emissions employees geographical region local community
2 KRR 9 EEFHMTBREN 14 HEFERENERNRE 26 HERRE
Sewage treatment Remuneration i Community investment
packages and benefits Selectlon of suppliers
of employees and assessment of
products and services
3 LA SRREE 10 BERREZZ 15 RS TIERNG
Land use, pollution Occupational health Assessment of working
and restoration and safety conditions of the suppliers
4 BEEYRE 11 EEERKE 16 HEFRRIE N
Waste treatment Development and Environmental protection
training of employees assessment of the
suppliers
5 BEREAR 12 BFIEET RoaH|s T 17 EmMRBNEERREZ2
Energy use Prevention of child Health and safety
and forced labour relating to products
and services
6 KERER 18 BEPMEE
Water use Customer satisfaction
7 EHtERRER 19 ABHEHNIERE
Use of other raw Acceptable marketing
materials and promotion

20 [REMBERE
Protection of intellectual
property rights
21 BERTENREMBY
Quiality assurance and
product recall
22 REHEEBHRILE
Protection of consumer
data and privacy
23 LB ¥R - BEER
VB
Prevention of bribery,
extortion, fraud and
money laundering

24 REFSHUR - B ER
1

Anti-corruption policies
and measures and
whistle-blowing
policy

B @ABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited
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Friny & 28 - 1 S B REAS STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND
(%) COMMUNICATION AND MATERIALITY
ASSESSMENT (Continued)

W

+ KREE3#%E Ten Major Concerns

BF FTEHE TREERE
No. Major Areas Ten Major Concerns
: g - EEEN RREHEEEHNALE
Social-Operating Practices 22 Protection of consumer data and privacy
) g - EEED 18EFmEE
Social-Operating Practices 18 Customer satisfaction
\ - 237 IEFRRR - BhR - BREF RO
A e =Rl 4
3 HE - SEHD) 23 Prevention of bribery, extortion, fraud and

Social-Operating Practices money laundering
) s - A= e ;511: |
A i 24&3/’7Eﬁz% .Tgﬁm&:ﬁlﬂ%ﬂ
4 . . . 24 Anti-corruption policies and measures and
Social-Operating Practices . . .
whistle-blowing policy

s tE - 2EEN 195 BHEH MR
Social-Operating Practices 19 Acceptable marketing and promotion

HE - EERSTEE 9 & B F T8 NEF|

6 Social-Employment and Labour Practices 9 Remuneration packages and benefits of

employees
5 HE-ERRSEIER 1118 B 3R RE7
Social-Employment and Labour Practices 11 Development and training of employees
8 HE-EEMSIESR 0B REREL S
Social-Employment and Labour Practices 10 Occupational health and safety
9 e - ZEED 20 (RAERBEME
Social-Operating Practices 20 Protection of intellectual property rights
10 HE-ERESIER 120 IEET RaAHIST
Social-Employment and Labour Practices 12 Prevention of child and forced labour
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AEBENONRERE - YHARRHO A
BRREAFELENERZNE - AKETE
MAOKRENTZE - T BT ESeRR
TR ETEENRRER  BEREEER
SERGRE - AEEBEBERREBENIR
RBR > WHAOEZE LRBEKE - R
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A& E R 2019F #))m = R BF M BUR

ENVIRONMENTAL

The Group is committed to protecting the environment and
understands the importance of sustainable development of
the environment for sustainable operations. The Group not
only reduces the environmental impact but also promotes
the green environmental protection plan, improves the
staff’s environmental protection consciousness, and
advocates employees to take an active part in environmental
protection. Also, the Group continues to uphold the
environmental policy while striving to achieve excellence in
operation, improve efficiency, promote the development of
green economy and reduce the impact on the environment.

The Group strives to comply with the environmental laws
and regulations of Hong Kong and the locations in which
it operates. There were no cases of non-compliance with
relevant laws and regulations during 2019.

The Group's business does not involve significant generation
of emissions or pollutants, or the use of resources such as
energy, water, raw and packaging materials. However, the
Group strengthens management of emissions and tries its
best to reduce emissions, greenhouse gases, soil pollutants
and the hazardous and harmless wastes.

I.  Air and Greenhouse Gas Emissions

The Group’s greenhouse gas emissions data in 2019 are

W as follows:
BMEREHRER BEBRIR e
Scope of Greenhouse Gas Emissions Emission Sources (AN Fm—gmEES)
Emission
(in kg of CO2e)

2019 2018
BEYER ANRIAE BB
Direct Emission Company car gasoline emissions 16,386 38,290
B BEN BE
Indirect Emission Purchased electricity 67,683 75,329
H At P B BERR B BRAREEINAE
Other Indirect Emission Business air travel by employees 8,359 13,430
HBEt
Total 92,428 127,049

{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited
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RBEHRRN KRB FEXBHEE
FreEmz B E RE A #492428T 7
(20184F : #9127,049T 2) — &1L i
EE FEBEEINEEURATEMN
HBEEFKTEL40T 7 (20184 -
#59F ) —EtitE s o

BENBEEERED

ERAEBNEIEERHE EENEE
BEZYIER B NEBMR2019FELE
492,802 AT (2018 4F : #13,314 A f1) #&
EEEY(ETZTARNEHERREERER)
T EREEBEE K342 (20184 :
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FHEZEEBEALINT(20184F : 4
122T) °
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ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)

L.

Air and Greenhouse Gas Emissions (Continued)

There were about 92,428 kg (2018: about 127,049 kg)
of carbon dioxide equivalent (CO2e) greenhouse gases
emitted from the key operations of the Group in the
reporting period. The annual purchased electricity
emission intensity was about 40 kg (2018: about 59 kg)
of carbon dioxide equivalent per square meter of office
area.

Hazardous and Non-hazardous Wastes

Hazardous waste was minimal due to the nature of
the key business operations of the Group. The Group
generated non-hazardous waste of about 2,802 kg
(2018: about 3,314 kg) in 2019 which was mainly come
from disposal of paper waste at landfills, represented
about 34 kg (2018: about 42 kg) per employee on
average. About 631 kg (2018: about 674 kg) of general
office waste was generated in Hong Kong office,
represented about 9 kg (2018: about 12 kg) per
employee on average.

Measures to Mitigate Emissions

The Group formulated “Environmental Protection and
Energy Saving Measures” to guide all staff to protect
the environment and save resources, encourage the
practice of enterprise culture of energy conservation
and environmental protection. We have taken the
following measures in 2019:

Staff engagement

The Group encourages all employees to participate in
the green office policies. Employees are encouraged
to switch off computers, monitors, printers and all
electrical appliances at the end of the working day and
switch on to energy-saving mode when not in use.

Use of energy efficient lighting equipment

The Group has gradually replaced T5 fluorescent lamps
with LED tubes, and 12V50W spotlights with 6W LED
spotlights in its Hong Kong office, to reduce carbon
emissions through electricity used.

ZZ—NFFR Annual Report 2019
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II.
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ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)

L.

II.

Air and Greenhouse Gas Emissions (Continued)

Cost-effective staff travel

The Group encourages most cost-effective travel for
staff business trips and arrange telephone or video
conferences when appropriate to reduce carbon
emissions.

Other environmental practices

The Group has also adopted the following practices to
reduce carbon emissions:

Encouraging employees to take public transport
and reduce reliance on private cars;

. Energy saving mode and power management
setting activated for computer monitors and
copiers;

Paper recycling and reuse cartons, plastic bags and
envelopes;

. Multi-function photocopiers with printing,
scanning and fax functions widely used;

. Encouraging paperless workspace and double-
sided printing whenever possible;

. Electrical appliances and computer recycling;

Recycling and reuse of toner and ink cartridges.

Use of Resources

The Group is committed to using natural resources
efficiently and reducing waste within our business
operations. The Group also strengthens recycling use
of office supplies and promotes staff’s environmental
awareness by promoting green office practices.
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II.

Use of Resources (Continued)

Electricity

The key operations of the Group consumed about
85,675 kWh (2018: about 95,353 kWh) of electricity
during the reporting period, electricity consumption
per staff was about 1,045 kWh (2018: about 1,222 kWh),
and electricity consumption per square meter of office
area was about 51 kWh (2018: about 75 kWh).

Water

The Company’s subsidiaries in Mainland China
consumed approximately around 567 cubic meters
(2018: around 419 cubic meters) of water for office use
during the reporting period, water consumption per
staff was about 24 cubic meters (2018: about 30 cubic
meters), and water consumption per square meter of
office area was about 1 cubic meters (2018: about 3
cubic meters).

Recycling

The Group promotes paperless workspace and
double-sided printing whenever possible. Documents
containing confidential information are collected in
designated bags and shredded before being recycled.

Hong Kong office of the Group recycled about 288
kg (2018: about 360 kg) of waste paper during the
reporting period.

The Group recycled about 48 pieces of cartridges,
computer and electrical appliances (2018: about 50
toner cartridges/cartridges) during the reporting
period.
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ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)

III.

The Environment and Natural Resources

The Group aims to care for the environment by
implementing different green initiatives and promote
the efficient use of natural resources by raising
staff awareness. The Group offers guidance on
environmental protection to its staff to develop a low-
carbon corporate culture through reduction in paper,
electricity, water and gasoline consumption, and
recycling of papers and other office supplies in daily
work.

Although the business operations do not have
significant impact on the environment and natural
resources, the Group’s commitment to sustainability
has been demonstrated in a series of environmental
protection and energy saving measures. The Group is
committed to improving the efficiency of resources
utilisation whilst reducing unnecessary waste of
resources in order to minimise the impact on the
environment.

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

The Group endeavors to create sustainable and long-term
values for its stakeholders including but not limited to
investors, employees, customers, suppliers, governments,
regulators, industry associations, chambers of commerce
and communities. The Group attaches great importance
to the communication with stakeholders in order to
understand their need and expectations and address their
concerns through different channels to develop mutually
beneficial relationships and promote sustainability.

L.

Employment

The Group strictly complies with relevant laws and
regulations in relation to employment and labour
practices of Hong Kong and the locations in which it
operates. The Group has formulated a series of internal
policies and procedures related to recruitment,
dismissal, promotion and other staff movement.
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EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES
(Continued)

L.

Employment (Continued)

Remuneration and Welfare Benefits

The Employee Handbook was developed in accordance
with the applicable laws and regulations and stipulates
the policies and procedures relevant to employee
benefits, compensation and professional behavoural
expectations. The Group actively protects the
basic rights and benefits of employees, establishes
competitive remuneration packages and provides
welfare benefits such as medical and hospital insurance
plans, wedding leave, examination holiday, birthday
leave, annual leave in addition to the statutory
holidays. The Group makes voluntary mandatory
provident fund contributions to employees in addition
to the standard employer’s contributions required
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
(the “Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance”),
where appropriate.

The Group rewards its employees with competitive
remuneration packages and welfare benefits
which are commensurate with their experience
and responsibilities. The remuneration package for
employees comprises a basic salary, year-end double
pay and a discretionary bonus based on both the
individual’s performance and overall performance of
the company.
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EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES
(Continued)

L.

Employment (Continued)

Equal Employment Opportunities

The Group is committed to providing a fair and safe
work environment with equal opportunities to staff
and embracing diversity regardless of nationality,
religion, gender, age, family status, race, physical
disability or sexual orientation. Fairness, equality and
integrity are emphasised in the process of recruitment,
dismissal, promotion and other staff movement. The
Group believes that it is the right of all employees to
be fairly considered for all positions within the Group
for which they have the necessary skills and qualities,
and to be treated fairly during their employment.

Balance between Work and Family Life

The Group encourages a balance between work and
family life. The management makes every effort to
ensure that all rest days, public holidays and paid
annual leave are utilised by all full-time employees
during employment. The Recreation Club of the
Company organises a range of staff engagement
activities, such as monthly birthday party, annual
dinner, Christmas party, and sports activities in order to
accommodate the diverse interests of the employees.
A four-day short trip to Guilin, Guangxi was arranged
with active participation of immediate family members
of staff during the reporting period.
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TR S 55 T M (4) EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES
(Continued)
I R () I.  Employment (Continued)
7 2019F 128318 AEERERH At 31 December 2019, the total number of the
R82A BT employees of the Group was 82 and the details are as
below:
2019 2018
EE S
Total number of employees 82 78

1z 511219 By gender

£ Male 39 39
% Female 43 39
REH 48 7125 By age group

20-30 5% years old 15 18
31-40 % years old 27 25
41-50 7% years old 22 22
51-60 % years old 16 13
61 5% 3 LA I years old or above 2 -
11 [@ By region

&7 NBFY Hong Kong and Macau 58 54
AR K FE Mainland China 24 24
}%2 8% 4% By grading

S REIEE Senior management 9 9
f 4 EIEE Middle management 19 16
LM B General staff 54 53
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VR AR e 55 Lo (48) EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES
(Continued)
I EfE (F8) I.  Employment (Continued)
AEBRERBOREAESWAOT ¢ The employee turnover rate is analysed as follows:

R F R4 7€) By age group

i B Region

&R BB K BE
Hong Kong Mainland
and Macau China
2019 2018 2019 2018
% % % %
20-30 ;3% years old 45 47 - -
31-40 ;3% years old 47 77 - -
41-50 5% years old 29 40 - 33
51-60 3% years old 23 36 - -
74 [& By region % 5l Gender
L2 keg
Male Female
2019 2018 2019 2018
% % % %
&7 MR P9 Hong Kong and Macau 48 63 23 37
#1 B KB Mainland China - 8 - -
2019 2018
RESFAEERBRARNEEAH
Number of employees eligible to retire within the next 5 years 6 5
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EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES
(Continued)

II.

Health and Safety

The Group strives to provide a healthy and safe
working environment for our employees and takes
all practicable steps to ensure the health and safety
of staff at work. There were no significant non-
compliance cases relating to the provision of a safe
work environment and the protection of employees
from occupational hazards during the reporting period.

The Group implemented no smoking policy and no
alcohol policy in the office. Regular cleaning and
disinfection of carpets, pest control, filter replacement
and cleaning of bottled water cooler are arranged by
the General Affairs Department of the Company.

The Group implements clear measures to ensure a safe
workplace. In order to minimise fire hazards, the Group has
a strict policy on proper use of electrical appliances in office
environments. Regular training and fire drills in Hong Kong
office are arranged to ensure that all staff are familiar with
the emergency procedures in case of a fire. Emergency exits
and procedures, fire evacuation plans and illuminated exit
signs are properly displayed and maintained.

The Group cares about the physical and mental health of
employees and advocates a balance between work and
family life. The Group encourages employees to set up a
good physical and mental health concept and participate
in fitness activities subsidised by the Company. The Group
implements appropriate health measures, such as providing
free of charge influenza vaccination injection services and
placing adequate first aid facilities on office premises and
properly maintained by designated employees.

The Recreation Club organised a number of sports
activities and charity events to enhance the team
cohesion in the workplace and motivation and
promote a healthy lifestyle, such as “Community Chest
Casual Wear Day”, “Love Moon Cake” and “Bowling

Friendship Match”.
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(Continued)

0. 35 a3l III. Development and Training
REBHENEB2MNEY - UNEESH The Group encourages employees to participate in
BRI AR - WEER PN EUE training so as to equip themselves with up-to-date
MEBEE - KREBRHEEIEHE R knowledge and skills and acquire our corporate culture
8 LS BIEBIREEFEME XKL and values. The Group offers training and education
158 b 1F9 BE %) 5 1T R0 B WUt A YEFT B T allowances as an incentive for employees to advance
% o BREERLAEIBAR IR & their academic qualifications and professional skills so
BIIRERERE B DTG - ABER that they can competently and effectively undertake
CEEAE S - all assignments. Employees can also develop their

skills by participating in external seminars and training
courses in order to realise their own personal potential.

REEREBSNREHARNSEIFBNOT The details of staff training statistics of the Group for

the reporting period are as follows:
2019 2018
1’ 8 5o R I 4R I 2L
Total number of hours of training completed by employees 967 755
1155|138 51 By type of training
SN BRI B 28 Number of hours of external training 700 460
N B AEBEE FIBF 8 Number of hours of internal training 267 295
%1% 5 %2> By gender # 5l Gender
EZ z
Male Female
2019 2018 2019 2018
54 18 B ¥ 935 7% B Average hours of training per employee 7.44 713 13.42 8.54
¥ 32157118 B B 5t Percentage of employees who received training  72% 77% 72% 74%
172{& B $5 5| By employee category
SREERE FREEE ZERE
Senior Middle General
management management staff

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

FHEEFHEIIRH

Average hours of training per employee 16.39 11.86 15.97 17.95 9.56 6.82
BEXEIEERAD L
Percentage of employees who received training  78% 78% 79% 88% 69% 72%

B @ABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited
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EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES
(Continued)

II1.

Development and Training (Continued)

The Group held various compliance and corporate
culture training seminars to raise employees’
compliance and risk awareness during the reporting
period. A performance appraisal system is in place to
identify employees’ need for development and training,
whilst monitor and evaluate employees’ performance
annually. The appraisals also serve as a communication
platform between employees and management to
promote two-way discussion on staff performance
and career goals. In addition, the Group encourages
and organises on-the-job trainings in order to further
enhance staff work performance and competency.

EEFT Staff Recognition
$%@ﬁ T@E\E’Jﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁkfﬂﬁﬁi The Group recognises staff’s long-term service and
019FEEGERIREZEREE E’JTI‘TEZZD contribution. The summary of staff received the Long
—IT Service Award is as follows:
PR % 5 3 EBEAH
Years of Service Number of Staff
2019 2018
10 F years - 3
15 5 years 1 -
25 Fyears 1 -
2 3
25 THER IV. Labour Standards

AEEBREST (EBEGD) (FEEM
F£57F8) MEBMELE AR E M
BRERMER - URERENELRE
& AEBERBEEMNZ2 /\jz/*/':&gl
58 XA kR il 85 TEYEL R

AEBMBIERFEREBIZBEBANE
AE B - LA % 50 B PR i A i e (T (] 72
NAREST - — (I EXWNEREERS
BRI TIR - IR
EEHESFZOMEANBMNESEHE
B THERHE -

The Group strictly complies with the Employment
Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and
other applicable laws and regulations of Hong Kong
and the locations in which it operates in relation to
employment practices so as to protect the basic rights
and interests of employees. The Group has no risk of
potential involvement in or exposure to child, forced or
compulsory labour.

The recruitment procedures of the Group involve
a stringent monitoring process to verify a
candidate’s personal information in order to avoid
misrepresentation and any form of forced labour. An
official employment contract clearly states relevant
terms and conditions, and each individual is well
briefed and duly assigned.
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OPERATING PRACTICES

Supply Chain Management

The Group is committed to optimising supply chain
management in order to ensure green sourcing and
supply through transparent tendering, responsible
sourcing, quality management and delivery evaluation.

As an investment-based company which is principally
engaged in financial services and insurance businesses,
the Group assesses suppliers and business partners
with a focus on price, professional qualification,
product quality, services capability and delivery
standards. The principles for supply chain management
include fairness, honesty, integrity and compliance.
Where appropriate, the Group strictly follows the
requirements of the Tendering and Bidding Law of the
PRC and other applicable laws and regulations in its
sourcing and procurement activities.

The Group integrates related selection criteria
in services provider assessment, screening and
monitoring into its insurance business operation.
The Group also maintains lists of qualified services
providers and will evaluate the quality of services
providers periodically to make sure that those qualified
services providers continue to meet the standards of
the Group.

The Group expects all suppliers of furniture,
equipment, stationery and other office supplies to
comply with all applicable laws and regulations in
the conduct of their business. The Group will identify,
assess and monitor supplier practices with regard to
human and labour rights, the environment, health and
safety, and anti-corruption principles, if practical.

{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited



BREG ~ A R

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ARG ()
fmegmis Bl (%)

RBERR - AEET2HOHEHER

LN

OPERATING PRACTICES (Continued)

I.  Supply Chain Management (Continued)

The types of main suppliers of the Group during the

reporting period are as follows:

RER AR5

Insurance business services

ERFEXRF AR
Legal and other professional
advisory services
BFEmF
Electrical appliances and
electronic products, etc.

RERERKRHE - BENMERF

Insurance products dlstrlbutlons,

claims and reinsurance, etc.

ERER  RBEREASE

Legal advice, tax and audit, etc.

W (RS - $TEDRE) RS
Hardware (computer, printer)
and software, etc.

BR N EEED
Compliance and operating
practices
BN EED
Compliance and operating
practices

IRIE
Environment

— EB AN R ERIRE ARRLBED
Desi unxaund rinti? otc Recreational activities and Compliance and operating
9 P 9 ete. leaflet, etc. practices

HERHE R E
Number of suppliers by region 2019 2018
&8 MR
Hong Kong and Macau 17 14
IETPN
Mainland China 6 7
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OPERATING PRACTICES (Continued)

II.

Product Responsibility

The Group complies strictly with the applicable laws
and regulations of Hong Kong and the locations it
operates. The operations of the Group’s insurance
business strictly comply with the Companies Ordinance
and regulations of the Insurance Authority.

The Group cares about the quality of our services and
products offered to customers. The Group has internal
management system in place to optimise the service
process and provide customers with high quality and
reliable service. The Group conducts periodic checks to
ensure that the quality of service and the terms of the
insurance contracts are properly arranged.

There are no recall procedures for our insurance
products. If customers are dissatisfied with our service
or the terms of the insurance contract, the Group is
willing to make necessary adjustment instead.

The Group implements the Customer Complaint
Handling Guidelines to deal with the complaints of
our service and insurance products from customers.
The Group did not receive any compliant against our
service or insurance products during the reporting
period.

Intellectual Property Rights

The Group emphasises the protection of intellectual
property rights. Given the nature of our business
operations, the areas of concern related to intellectual
property rights are mainly related to the use of
licensed software and the design of marketing
materials of insurance products. The Compliance and
Risk Management Department monitors the legal use
of all insurance marketing materials and computer
software to ensure no infringement on intellectual
property rights. The employees are prohibited to install
computer software onto any information technology
equipment within the Group.
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OPERATING PRACTICES (Continued)

II.

III.

Product Responsibility (Continued)

Personal Data Privacy Policy

The Group is committed to adopting and complying
with all relevant provisions of the Personal Data
(Privacy) Ordinance (Chapter 486 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) (the “PDPO Ordinance”) and other applicable
laws and regulations. The Group upholds the personal
data privacy protection principles therein for the
purposes of collecting, retaining, processing and using
personal data. The Group has designated the Personal
Data Protection Officer for monitoring compliance
with the PDPO Ordinance. While heads of departments
are in direct control of personal data, the Personal
Data Protection Officer also offers assistance on the
relevant compliance issues. The Group also formulates
several internal guidelines and uses certain security
technologies to protect personal data collected in
operations.

Anti-corruption

The Group adheres to the integrity of business
and complies strictly with the applicable laws and
regulations of Hong Kong and the locations it operates.
The Group is committed to combating corruption,
bribery, money laundering, extortion, fraud and other
financial crimes. The Group will terminate immediately
any business relationship that violates or presents the
risk of violating such laws, regulations or policies of the
Company. The Compliance Management Department of
the Company is responsible to ensure that regulatory
guidelines applicable to the Group are assessed
and the associated initiatives are implemented and
regularly monitored.

The Group holds corporate culture and compliance
training for new employees to introduce including
but not limited to the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance
(Chapter 201 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and other
relevant laws and regulations of Hong Kong. The Group
provides advice on corruption prevention in order to
enhance the staff awareness of the common pitfalls of
corruption.
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OPERATING PRACTICES (Continued)

III.

Anti-corruption (Continued)

The Group will impose disciplinary actions against
employees who engage in or facilitate bribery, or who
fail to comply with all applicable laws and regulations.
The Group will conduct self-assessment of the risk of
violation and testing processes performed by Internal
Audit Department. There were no litigations involving
the Group and its employees with regard to corruption
during the reporting period.

Preventive Measures and Whistle-blowing
Procedures

Employees at all levels are expected to conduct
themselves with integrity, impartiality and honesty.
Employees are encouraged to raise concerns in relation
to suspected misconduct or malpractice within the
Group, without fear of victimization or harassment for
having done so.

The Group has formulated a whistle-blowing policy
to achieve the aforementioned corporate governance
goal and the policy applies to employees at all levels.
If any incident of corruption, money laudering,
extortion, fraud or other financial crimes was
discovered, the Group will take legal or disciplinary
actions to protect the interests of the Group and its
stakeholders. The Audit Committee of the Company
has overall responsibility for overseeing, monitoring
and reviewing the operation of the whistle-blowing
policy and recommendations for actions resulting from
investigation while the day-to-day responsibility is
assigned to the General Manager of the Company.
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OPERATING PRACTICES (Continued)

IV. Community Investment

As a responsible corporate citizen, the Group is
dedicated to protecting the environment and serving
the needy, especially those underprivileged and elderly
groups. “Rewarding the Community” is a core value of
the Group’s culture.

AEEBEHRLE [AFELERB ) TR
RS BN 4B 3B 5,000 7T (2018 4F -
71 5,0007T) ° AN EE B E 8 FEINE
FA U E—E B -

RSN EEREH B0 A
EH - AEEEBRD —REALES
D EEEDRDIA S -

The Group actively participates in the “Community
Chest Casual Wear Day” and made a donation of
HK$5,000 (2018: HKS$5,000) during the reporting
period. The Group encouraged employees to make
additional donation and collected a certain amount of
donation from employees.

The Recreation Club organised “Love Moon Cake” event
during the reporting period, and the employees of the
Group visited an elderly care center and distributed
mooncakes to the elders.
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The Directors hereby present their report together with
the audited financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding,
and the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are
principally engaged in financial services, insurance, property
investment and strategic investment. The principal activities
and other particulars of the principal subsidiaries and
associates are set out in Notes 38 and 17 respectively to the
consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the revenue and results of the Group by
operating segment during the financial year is set out in
Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2019 are set out in the consolidated income statement on
page 106.

The Board has resolved to recommend at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company to be held on
Wednesday, 3 June 2020 (the “2020 AGM") the payment
of a final dividend of 10 HK cents per share totalling
HK$59,725,725.20 for the year ended 31 December 2019
(2018: final dividend of 10 HK cents per share totalling
HK$59,725,725.20). The proposed dividend, if approved, will
be paid on or before 19 June 2020.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A discussion and analysis of the activities of the Group as
required to be disclosed by Schedule 5 to the Companies
Ordinance, including a fair review of the Group'’s business,
a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties being
faced by the Group, particulars of important events affecting
the Group that have occurred since the end of the financial
year 2019, an indication of likely future development in the
Group’s business, an analysis of the Group’s performance
using financial key performance indicators, a discussion on
the Group’s environmental policies and performance, the
Group’s compliance with the relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the Group, and an account
of the key relationships with its stakeholders that have a
significant impact on the Group and on which the Group'’s
success depends, are provided in the “Chairman’s Statement”,
“Management Discussion and Analysis”, “Corporate Governance
Report”, “Risk Management and Internal Control Report’, and
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” set out on
pages 6 to 21 and pages 30 to 85 respectively of this annual
report.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For Determining the Entitlement to Attend and Vote at the
2020 AGM

For the purpose of ascertaining the entitlement to attend
and vote at the 2020 AGM, the register of members of
the Company will be closed from Friday, 29 May 2020 to
Wednesday, 3 June 2020, (both days inclusive), during which
period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to
qualify for the right to attend and vote at the 2020 AGM,
all properly completed transfer forms accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged for registration
with the Company’s share registrar, Tricor Standard Limited,
at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 28 May 2020.

For Determining the Entitlement to the Proposed Dividend

The proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 December
2019 is subject to the approval by the Shareholders at the
2020 AGM. For the purpose of ascertaining the entitlement
to the proposed final dividend, the register of members
of the Company will be closed from Tuesday, 9 June 2020
to Wednesday, 10 June 2020, (both days inclusive), during
which period no transfer of shares will be registered.
In order to qualify for the final dividend, all properly
completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged for registration with the
Company’s share registrar, Tricor Standard Limited, at Level
54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong not
later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 8 June 2020.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, net assets and total equity of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 4
and 5.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment
of the Group is set out in Note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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PRINCIPAL PROPERTY INTERESTS HELD

Details of the principal property interests held by the Group
are set out on page 276.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in
Note 32(a) to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out on page 110 and in Note 37(a) to
the consolidated financial statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December
2019, calculated under Part 6 of the Companies Ordinance,
amounted to HK$557,625,000 (2018: HK$634,435,000).

DIRECTORS

The names of the Directors who have served the Company
during the year and up to the date of this report are set out
on page 2.

In accordance with Articles 94 and 95 of the Articles of
Association of the Company, Mr YAN Zheng, Mr WANG Fei
and Mr LEUNG Chong Shun will retire by rotation at the 2020
AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

No Director proposed for re-election at the 2020 AGM
has any service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

The Non-executive Directors of the Company are not
appointed for a specific term, but they are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general
meetings in accordance with the Articles of Association of
the Company.

The Company has received from each Independent
Non-executive Director an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules of
the Stock Exchange and the Company still considers that all
the Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

The biographical details of the current Directors of the
Company are set out in the “Biographical Details of Directors
and Senior Management” section of this Annual Report.

CHANGE IN THE INFORMATION OF DIRECTOR

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the change
in the information of the Directors of the Company required
to be disclosed since the publication of 2019 interim report
of the Company up to the date of approval of this annual
report is set out below:

Mr CHEN Yu, an Executive Director and the General Manager
of the Company, resigned as the chairman and the legal
representative of EE L HEREBERBREME QA
(Fujian Provincial Mintou Financing Re-guarantee Company
Limited*, AIfEREZE P/ N X EABEREREEAA)
with effect from 25 November 2019.

* The relevant English name is only a transliteration of the Chinese name
for referent only.

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The names of the directors who have served on the boards
of directors of the subsidiaries of the Company during the
year and up to the date of this report are set out below:

Mr CHEN Yu

Mr CHAN Kwong Yu
Mr WU Xubin

Mr SHIUNG An Tai
Mr ZHANG Yannan
Mr GUO Xiang

Ms CHEN Fen

Mr ZHANG Fan

Mr QIAN Wen Rong
Mr NG Ka Chi (Note)

Note: Mr NG Ka Chi resigned as a director with effect from 9 September
2019.
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DIRECTORS’> AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

At 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and Chief Executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of
the Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO")) as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code in the Listing Rules were as
follows:

HAERFEBITRE
ZBMOBESE
EERAEBE Approximate percentage
EEHA EEME Number of of the issued share capital
Name of Director Nature of interests shares held of the Company
RARBEBRN ZIFE
Long Position in Ordinary Shares of the Company
R (EPN
IP Kai Ming Personal interest 865,800 0.14%
B FXETIBESZ I - 702019F12 8318 - Save as disclosed above, at 31 December 2019, none of

ARBEFRITRAZMBEARNARNEL
e EE RIZE R A LIS D) % XV
PR ER) WA - MR EFF T %
BEMRARE (EH MAEED) 5352 1&78
THEFNECMATCESRE (FETRI) A
HMEARR NI ZEDIRR  EFL
BEZEBIHI8FRA T 2 FRNFRITESR
BEAENARBARRNEF LD ITEZ
SR -

A SR B 2 W 4 T R
WHITEMAD T EE TR M AL 7L
S A% A BB 2 IR 1) S 25 AR 49 2
% -
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the Directors and Chief Executive of the Company had any
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any associated corporation
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in
the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the
SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code; and none of the
Directors or their spouses or children under the age of 18,
had any right to subscribe for the securities of the Company,
or had exercised any such right during the year.

At no time during the year was the Company or any of
its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporate.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

All Executive Directors and Non-executive Directors of
the Company have confirmed that they did not have any
interests in business which competed or was likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business
of the Group during the year as required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No transaction, arrangement or contract that is significant
in relation to the Company’s business to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director
of the Company or an entity connected with a Director had,
directly or indirectly, a material interest, subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles of Association of the Company provides that,
subject to the Companies Ordinance, every Director of the
Company is entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of
the Company against all costs, charges, losses, expense and
liabilities incurred by him in the execution and discharge of
his duties or in relation thereto. The Company has arranged
directors and officers liability insurance for its Directors
and the officers of the Company and its subsidiaries. The
terms and extent of the coverage are reviewed and renewed
annually.

(8
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AIEENMITHRBRHRBRIN BERRRKRG &
ARG Z R TOA BT

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

At 31 December 2019, substantial shareholders and other
persons (other than Directors and Chief Executive of the
Company) who had interests or short positions in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section
336 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company,
were as follow:

RN
EBRITRAE
ZBRNBEDL
Approximate
percentage of

BEROEE the issued share

£ g4 it3 Number of capital of the
Name Capacity Notes shares held Company
RERAEBRD 2R
Long Positions in Ordinary Shares of the Company
Samba Limited (“Samba”) EREAA 1 144,885,000 24.26%
Beneficial Owner
BEEARAR ([EFE]) ERBEAANK R EEES 1 355,552,883 59.53%
Vigour Fine Company Limited Beneficial Owner and interest
(“Vigour Fine") of Controlled Corporation
BREREREEEARR XL s 2 355,552,883 59.53%
SELTE ([BRIEEAEE] ) Interest of Controlled Corporation
Fujian Investment &
Development Group Co., Ltd.
(“FIDG")
BREFAEEEER AT EnEEA 3 88,150,000 14.76%
([EWEER]) Beneficial Owner
Citychamp Watch & Jewellery
Group Limited (“Citychamp”)
EERRA ([#9E]) PRrsNE L Xy 3 88,150,000 14.76%
Full Day Limited (“Full Day”) Interest of Controlled Corporation
EREREARAR BERBEA AN EEES 3 99,398,000 16.64%
([E2EK]) Beneficial Owner and interest of
Sincere View International Controlled Corporation
Limited (“Sincere View")
wERE ([ERE]) RErEER 4 99,398,000 16.64%
HON Kwok Lung (“Mr Hon") Interest of Controlled Corporation
MORE ([#Mzt]) [T 4 99,398,000 16.64%
LAM Suk Ying (“Ms Lam”) Interest of Spouse

{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS” AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES (Continued)

Notes:

1. 144,885,000 shares of the Company was held by Samba. Vigour Fine was
the controlling shareholder of Samba and was deemed to be interested
in the 144,885,000 shares of the Company held by Samba. Vigour Fine
also directly held 210,667,883 shares of the Company.

2. FIDG directly held the entire issued share capital of Vigour Fine and was
deemed to be interested in the 355,552,883 shares of the Company.

3. 88,150,000 shares of the Company was held by Citychamp. Citychamp
was the controlled corporation of each of Sincere View and Full Day
and each of Sincere View and Full Day was deemed to be interested in
the 88,150,000 shares of the Company. Sincere View also directly held
11,248,000 shares of the Company.

4. Mr Hon held the entire issued share capital of Full Day and was the
controlling shareholder of Sincere View, Mr Hon was deemed to be
interested in the 99,398,000 shares of the Company. Ms Lam, the spouse
of Mr Hon, was deemed to be interested in the 99,398,000 shares of the
Company.

Save as disclosed above, at 31 December 2019, the Company
had not been notified by any person (other than Directors
and Chief Executive of the Company) who had any interest
or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under Section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company'’s issued shares during
the year.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

During the year, the Company had renewed the annual
management agreement with Vigour Fine, a controlling
shareholder of the Company, whereby Vigour Fine agreed
to provide management services to the Company which
included the provision of directors to the Board of Directors
of the Company. A management fee of HK$1,880,000 had
been paid to Vigour Fine during the year.

Save as disclosed above, there was no contract of significant
entered into between the Company and Vigour Fine during
the year.

Mr CHEN Yu and Mr YANG Jingchao were deemed to be
interested in the above transaction by virtue of being
directors of Vigour Fine.

Except for the above, there were no other contracts
concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company entered into or existed during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, both the percentage of purchases
attributable to the Group's five largest suppliers combined
and the percentage of revenue from sales of goods or
rendering of services attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers combined were less than 30% of the total
purchases and total revenue of the Group respectively.

BANK BORROWINGS AND OTHER LOANS

Details of the bank borrowings and loan from the controlling
shareholder of the Group at 31 December 2019 are set out
in Notes 28 and 29 respectively to the consolidated financial
statements.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE INSURANCE
ORDINANCE

Min Xin Insurance Company Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, is subject to the supervision of
the Insurance Authority and is required to comply with the
relevant provision of the Insurance Ordinance in relation to
the amount of gross premium income limit per annum.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Significant related party transactions entered into by the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2019, which
are not required to be disclosed under the Listing Rules as
connected transactions, are disclosed in Notes 17(b), 17(c),
36(a), 36(b), 36(c) and 36(d) to the consolidated financial
statements.

Other related party transactions, which also constitute
connected transactions under the Listing Rules, are
disclosed in Notes 9, 10(a)(iii) and 29 to the consolidated
financial statements.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENT
PURSUANT TO RULE 13.21 OF THE LISTING
RULES

Pursuant to the term loan and revolving loan facilities
(collectively, the “Loan Facilities”) entered into between the
Company and certain banks in Hong Kong, the Company
undertakes to procure FIDG, a controlling shareholder of the
Company, (i) shall maintain (whether directly or indirectly)
not less than 35% beneficial interests in the issued share
capital of the Company; or (ii) shall maintain (whether
directly or indirectly) not less than 51% beneficial interests in
the issued share capital of the Company and have the power
to exercise (whether directly or indirectly) management
control over the Company, during the term of the Loan
Facilities. Breach of such undertaking will constitute an
event of default and all amounts (including principal and
interest) due and owing by the Company to the banks
under the Loan Facilities shall become immediately due and
payable.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Reference is made to the announcement of the
Company dated 15 November 2019. As disclosed in the
announcement, the public float of the Company has
fallen below the minimum prescribed percentage of 25%
as required under Rule 8.08(1)(a) of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange) since
23 November 2017.
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At the date of this annual report, the aggregate percentage
of shareholding interests in the issued share capital of
the Company held by the core connected persons of the
Company (as defined in the Listing Rules) (being Fujian
Investment & Development Group Co., Ltd., Mr Hon Kwok
Lung (“Mr Hon") and Mr Ip Kai Ming who is an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company) was approximately
76.31%. Thus, the percentage of shareholding interests
in the issued share capital of the Company held by public
was approximately 23.69% and was below the minimum
prescribed percentage of 25% as required under Rule 8.08(1)
(a) of the Listing Rules.

The management of the Company is in the process of
working out with relevant parties to identify feasible
measures to restore the public float, including but not
limited to discussion with Mr Hon to reduce his shareholding
in the Company and exploration of other alternative
solutions. Further announcement will be made by the
Company on the restoration of public float as and when
appropriate.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are
set out in the “Corporate Governance Report” on pages 30 to
53 in this annual report.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2019 have been audited by KPMG who will
retire and, being eligible, offer itself for re-appointment
at the 2020 AGM. A resolution to re-appoint KPMG and
to authorise the Directors to fix its remuneration will be
proposed at the 2020 AGM.

On behalf of the Board

YAN Zheng
Chairman

HONG KONG, 26 March 2020



HREEEERLATKE
(REBAME L) FR 2 A])

=
=87
=

Az EED (AT TR ) 2 '/ INER
F106E275 B EEEBRRA (AT
MIERA]) REMBAR (A THBEIE
£E ) WEAMB®RE - WP BHRREER
“E-NAFtT A=+ BNEEMBARR
REFBEZHLEFENGKEABERER  Hax
HRER HAERZBHRNGEEHEESRE
= AMEAMBRRERE  BREIRES
HRBE -

BMRE  ZERAVERREBERES
R AEEMHNCEAYBEREEN) BEE
mestRBETEEER_ZE—NLF+=A
=+ AR AUBERAREEZBAEFE
MEEHBERBERGEARERE  WEER
BB CRRVER) Z B -

S-S NILE Y0

HPMEREFESAMAGHRMIN(EESF
FER) TR o HAIERFERA T AL
MEFECERRS [ BHUMAF] 476
WAAEE ] By IEE— TR - 1R
BREEIMASRNN(EXSTAER
FANDUATER IR RABLNES
CWE BT TRAIFNEMEREREML -
HFIEGE - RPMESNESRERETENR
BEWARMNEFST RIRHEER -

R A 2 IH

FRRETFHRERERMNBEAE R
HEMGEMBBRRANBAR/EZNS
B BERHEAERMBABRES VKR
RNMEABRRETREN - RATSHE
LEREHEBOESR ©

J8) ST A% S
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF MIN XIN HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Min Xin Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages 106 to 275, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2019, the consolidated income statement,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2019 and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”") issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.
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HiE A RN g EHZA
Accounting for interest in an associate

BRI BEIRZARE 17 RE 124 F 126 ) E5THE
Refer to note 17 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 124 to 126.

ki
The Key Audit Matter

EEEMBEMBKRRITREMNBAR (E
IREEE) £99.7635% IR 1D - NEELRE MTE
WP ASKARREETZE -

The Group’s approximately 9.7635% interest
in Xiamen International Bank and its
subsidiaries (“XIB Group”) is accounted for in
the consolidated financial statements under
the equity method.

BHE_ZT-NAF+_A=+—HLFE-
BEEERMEEREBZRRGEMN/NAEE
575178 EREREREERDNIKRE
BEBX B 5482968 T ° Ll BB AIE
BHE_T-NFEEEBERREMLERENE
100.64% REZE—ZE—h&E+—-B=+—H
EEEREENT1.18% °

The Group's share of the profit after tax from
XIB Group for the year ended 31 December
2019 was approximately HK$575.17 million
and the carrying value of the Group’s interest
in XIB Group was approximately HK$5,482.96
million. This represented approximately
100.64% of the Group’s profit attributable
to equity shareholders of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2019 and
approximately 71.18% of the Group’s total
assets as at 31 December 2019.

{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

FA s A w v B P % T Y O ik

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BPIARFHEREREENEENE A ZENEIEFER
ATHIE

Our audit procedures to assess the accounting for the
interest in XIB Group included the following:

- AMABERNEEEEASEGERE - BERANRENBER
1% AREREEERUEREZENS HHRIZ
evaluating the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of key group-wide internal controls and
the consolidation process for equity accounting for the
Group’s interest in XIB Group;

- BEREBENERS M MERN DR EEEER
HEATERE
comparing consolidation and reclassification journal
adjustments in respect of the interest in XIB Group
with relevant underlying documentation;

BRIEEREBENMBEN  ENtEESEREFEE
MEEENANFENREEN

recalculating the Group’s share of net assets and the
Group's share of profit for the year with reference to
the financial information of XIB Group;
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Accounting for interest in an associate (Continued)

T s A i v B P % S T Y O ik

How the matter was addressed in our audit

R A o IH
The Key Audit Matter

B EE S R RERN G ZEN R
T EE SHREHEEEGSMBKRE
MEBEARTE - UKESEREBE Y ER PR
B R EEFEEFE IR B HE - BRI AT A
MERRBRIIREHEN T ENSREE
HURELER - BT BEREEGS M BERE
HIRE AR R - BIEERN TG
TFEER T M F R ERHAE MG

MG AR BEE IR E #E R R A E R -

We identified the accounting for the interest
in XIB Group as a key audit matter because
of its material impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements and the
complexity and management judgement
involved in the preparation of the financial
information of XIB Group, which increases
the risk of material misstatement in XIB
Group’s consolidated financial statements,
particularly in respect of the assessment
of impairment allowances of loans and
advances to customers and financial assets at
amortised cost of XIB Group. The assessment
of impairment allowances is inherently
subjective and require significant judgement
and estimation which increases the risk of
error or potential management bias.

EREBGFE M B RERTEM R - A
fRBEREZEMHEEBGESMB®E
EXERNTE -

Any misstatement in XIB Group's
consolidated financial statements could
have a consequential material impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial statement
through the equity method of accounting.

189 S A% B
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EREREEAZEED ([EKEBDZERED] ) RAPTE
HEEBEEES  YEREENMBENRTEZEN
it
instructing the auditors of XIB Group (“the component
auditors”) to perform a full scope audit of the financial
information of XIB Group in accordance with the Group
Audit Instructions issued by us;

SHEBER S ZBMNRRTERY - UEEEREE
B BT & R AE B B B2 K B R B K B AR KB o0 i BB T
mEZERREEL &

participating in the component auditors’ risk
assessment process to identify significant risks of
material misstatement of the financial information of
XIB Group and discussing with the component auditors
their responses to address such risks; and

HIZA PR ER D AR BRAD AT iR LB AT B IR MR - Wi EE
AR EB D ZBEN R TIEETR - sHAEBNET R IBEE RN
BARGEE M BERRETHETESREMEE
discussing with the component auditors their
findings and conclusions with regard to their audit
and evaluating the sufficiency and appropriateness
of the audit evidence for purpose of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements by reviewing the
component auditor’s working papers.

(X
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=T =R NEERAEBRA R ([ =o0/ME]) B 5 B S EIOR S e (e 5
Impairment allowances on loans to customers and interest receivable of Sanming Sanyuan District
Minxin Micro Credit Company Limited (“Sanyuan Micro Credit™)

BRI E IR FE23 RE 146 F 152 BRI S 51K
Refer to note 23 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 146 to 152.

[BH S B = H
The Key Audit Matter

HIE—T—NAF+-_A=+—H =&
(BERBI—RZ2EMBLAR]) EFERKREK
FMERBEARARK 244208 7T (FELNE
%273148 L) HEKEREELIOR
3.55% - BERER TS ERLERAEETIRA
BEEEHENDR/RARKE 225448 7T (ZFENE
25216 87T) - REEHEEFERNEK
MBREN L ER92.32% °

As at 31 December 2019, the balance of total
loans to customers and interest receivable
of Sanyuan Micro Credit, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, amounted to
approximately RMB244.2 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$273.14 million),
representing approximately 3.55% of the
Group’s total assets. Impairment allowances
on loans to customers and interest receivable
amounting to approximately RMB225.44
million (equivalent to approximately
HK$252.16 million), were provided by
management. The impairment allowances
to total loans to customers and interest
receivable ratio was 92.32%.

EREHEREBEXREE - 100% MR PER K
EWF ST EREEEERARE - =)
EREEHT L RE THR2EFMEREL
EA - BREEBHOBAE  FREMEMAE
Under the expected credit loss model,
100% of the loans to customers and interest
receivable were assessed as credit-impaired.
The determination of loss allowances for
Sanyuan Micro Credit is subject to some
key parameters and assumptions, such as
loss given default, discount rate and other
adjustment factors.

{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

HIF M =T NEFEPER LA BB EEENRERTIE
FFEEA TR

Our audit procedures to assess the impairment allowances
of loans to customers and interest receivable of Sanyuan
Micro Credit included the following:

- TERNFHEE=TTNEEFER NN BRELERT
TRE R eV RRGR A BRI A - BREARIER L
understanding and assessing the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness of key
internal controls of Sanyuan Micro Credit’s impairment
assessment of loans to customers and interest
receivable;

HIEERD EFEERMERANER - H=T/ &
FANEMRYE E IR B MEMBEG AR KR 2% EERY)
BTG ERREI TR - TPIEFHE 7 HEM Y E R AR
kA - FHEEMEGFIRER SR - =/ N EREK
SAAENAEIETES WEREEERTNEMER
HR

for selected samples of loans to customers and
interest receivable that are credit-impaired, evaluating
management’s assessment of the value of collaterals
and forecast cashflows, by comparing collaterals’
market prices with management’s assessment of value,
and evaluating the viability of management’s recovery
plans. We also evaluated the timing and means of
realisation of collateral and evaluated other credit
enhancements that are integral to the contract terms;
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=W = mEE/DNEERAERAR ([ =50 FF B R RENORE BUEER (4])
Impairment allowances on loans to customers and interest receivable of Sanming Sanyuan District
Minxin Micro Credit Company Limited (“Sanyuan Micro Credit”) (Continued)

R A R IH
The Key Audit Matter

EERABETENRAXE  EBEgE
BZERZ SULEAXBEATNEDERE &
AR BN - WY TR O 5 - REE
XEIERF  REFEHEMEREAREREESRE
B EREEMEENREENEBER 82
ZEERNE =M EEE L A ER YT
HlRE - WRAREEEFRDOTIHER - it
BAEKRAR - B ERYEIRAO AT
- KRG b g BRI A OS5
Management exercises judgement in
determining the quantum of loss given
default based on a range of factors. These
include available remedies for recovery,
the financial situation of the borrower,
the recoverable amount of collateral, the
seniority of the claim and the existence
and cooperativeness of other creditors.
Management refers to valuation reports
issued by qualified third party valuers and
considers the influence of various factors
including the market price, location and use
when assessing the value of property held
as collateral. The enforceability, timing and
means of realisation of collateral can also
have an impact on the recoverable amount
of collateral and, therefore, the amount of
loss allowances as at the end of the reporting
period.

A& P B RN e WON B B R (B 2 i 17 A2 [E
BETHEM L R EREHIE - AR
= NERFER R ERA SR EEEE
PRSI EEIE -

We identified the impairment allowances of
loans to customers and interest receivable as
a key audit matter because of the inherent
uncertainty and management judgement
involved.

FoAM 7 A wt v i P % S T Y U ik

How the matter was addressed in our audit

HER AT BAZREANBRBERERELS
MatE T 2P ERLERA EEREERE - AZEBRE
EETTERNERGE &

having considered the above, recalculating the amount
of credit loss allowance using the expected credit loss
model for samples of loans to customers and interest
receivable, to verify the calculation accuracy of the
credit loss allowance; and

FHERE P ER MR SR EEEHERENERERS
HEBBEUBRELERE7R[SRITA : HE] K
BEX-

evaluating whether the disclosures on impairment
allowances on loans to customers and interest
receivable meet the disclosure requirements of HKFRS 7
- Financial Instruments: Disclosures.

(8
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o B 5 A b HAZ R R o LA Y
G

EXAHHEMERAR HLEEERETHE
RERANNAEREL  BETBEEEMBR
REBFIZEED RS

BB G BRERNBRL MREEME
B BT T HZEEMERERETALA

HEEE 4w o

BARMBGAMBHRENEFS > RN
TEHEEMES - EHBES  ZEEEAM
SERAEGEAMBHRANKMERTBRE
PR TREONBERFEEAREREUTFE
BERFERRIMAIENR

ERHZMAERTHITE  OREMARSEM
EEFEERERRL  RAFTEHREZLSF
B fiEhE e RFPRBEA®RE

A B IR ZFUR I R AT

EXZAAERBEELGHMAGHEMN(E
B HEER) REE (QRERD) BEE
EMTENGEAMBERE  YHERRRIE
A MIERROEE TN FEH N RFF R
BN EAFERRAPAFNABZEHEE -

ERBREMBHRRN  EFRETHES
BB ENEE S UEERBERTHRER
SERKERMNER  URERAKERLER
SR AR BIEETEEREEEFRLIE
&2 SBIEEMERNERTER -

BERZESMDEFRTEEESEM KR
STRRENEE -

{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

Information other than the consolidated financial
statements and auditor’s report thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included
in the annual report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies

used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

ZZ—NFFR Annual Report 2019
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Li Ka Lam.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

26 March 2020
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

#E 20194 12 H 31 HIEF/  For the year ended 31 December 2019

2019 2018
FE BT T JEMEF T
Note HKS’000 HK$’000
WS sa%E Total revenues 5 152,484 1,038,698
HibEE — 358 Other losses — net 6 (11,262) (11,427)
IR EBELR Net insurance claims incurred and
BEFERAS commission expenses incurred on
& H insurance business 7 (46,028) (36,973)
SHER A Costs of sales (10,996) (920,394)
BEFERNEWRT S Write back of impairment loss on loans
B ET R B to customers and interest receivable 23 6,255 4,016
$HE Ko A AS Selling and distribution costs (332) (2,332)
TR EEME A Administrative and other expenses (57,070) (52,260)
=E 5] Operating profit 8 33,051 19,328
LY ®N Finance costs 9 (18,645) (26,165)
e N Share of results of associates 579,179 617,363
RR % A0 % A Profit before taxation 593,585 610,526
FIefiz it Income tax expense 11 (22,099) (32,436)
AEE A Profit for the year 571,486 578,090
B E Dividend
REARR B Final dividend 12 59,726 59,726
B JEN
HK CENTS HK CENTS
BREF Earnings per share
EARNEE Basic and diluted 13 95.69 96.79
BERERE Dividend per share
REARR B Final dividend 10 10

106 {5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HE20194F 12 H 31 HIEFE  For the year ended 31 December 2019

2019 2018
B FT B F T
HKs’000 HK$'000
REEEF Profit for theyear | 571,486 | ! 578,090
Hih2mEK = Other comprehensive income
FEEHFIEEREX Items that will not be reclassified to
HIER : income statement:
RN EFAHMEEWSE  Equity investments at fair value through
RIS A other comprehensive income
N EFEES (TAIFEE)  Net movement in fair value reserve
SE)FEE (non-recycling) | (147,074) | 66,903
HEBEEHR»EE Leasehold buildings reclassified to
"EYH investment properties
HEEFEHmEED Unrealised surplus on revaluation of
REEBER leasehold buildings 2,747 -
EEFTISH Deferred income tax (732) _
,,,,,,,,, 2015 | -
EEEE AR EMEE Share of other comprehensive income
g of associates | 946 | (171)
,,,,, (144,113) | 66,732
HETKEHFIEEEFERKX Items that may be reclassified subsequently
HIER to income statement:
BME G INT B A B S B & Exchange differences arising on translation
NBH B RSRRAEE of the financial statements of foreign
RIFE K =58 subsidiaries and associates (117,036) (311,630)
ElEE E AR EM 2 E Share of other comprehensive income
g of associates 62,534 191,041
. (54,502) | (120,589)
KRIBRBEENRFEE Other comprehensive income for
H b2 E s theyear,netoftax | (198,615) | (53,857)
TEERHEHRRAHE Total comprehensive income for the year 372,871 524,233

|
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

20194 12 H 31 H455  As at 31 December 2019

2019 2018
I BT T BT T
Note HKS’000 HK$'000
ERBEE Non-current assets
M - MR R Property, plant and equipment 14 26,499 20,935
mEEE Intangible assets 15 735 1,573
KEYE Investment properties 16 159,415 169,632
Fl =N Associates 17 5,532,229 4,988,673
AT EF AHEMEEWEE  Financial assets at fair value through
e mMEE other comprehensive income 18 423,343 570,417
R AGTER SR EZE  Financial assets at amortised cost 19 - 3,129
BIRMEE Reinsurance assets 22 1,029 1,546
H b FEUBR S R TES 3R Other debtors and prepayments 15,777 6
RWe MIRTET Cash and bank balances 25 506,009 227,800
BTSRRI EE Deferred income tax assets 31 451 535
6,665,487 | 5,984,246
REEE Current assets
7g Inventories - 10,668
IRFEEVS A AN Deferred acquisition costs 20 28,905 21,242
1R B FE W 38 Insurance receivable 21 23,025 13,134
BREBEE Reinsurance assets 22 7,947 4,791
EREEFREWF B Loans to customers and interest
receivable 23 20,981 22,875
Ha W EER - BN K Other debtors, prepayments and
e deposits 9,310 5,862
IR AETE M S EIEE  Financial assets at amortised cost 19 3,115 -
BrRAHEEBERYIE Financial assets at fair value through
HemEE profit or loss 24 97,822 306
RITERAEE Banker's acceptance - 56,186
RWe MIRTHET Cash and bank balances 25 846,635 1,177,580
1,037,740 | 1,312,644
REBEE Current liabilities
RE 4 Insurance contracts 26 68,554 65,523
IR ERT TR Insurance payable 27 16,147 9,196
HhENERRETER Other creditors and accruals 33,106 24,498
HEAE Lease liabilities 30 191 -
RITERR Bank borrowings 28 60,000 198,804
PERG I R B Loan from the controlling shareholder 29 49,943 -
JE A~ 2 HRFH 18 Current income tax payable 26,284 25,495
,,,,,, 254,225 | 323,516
REBEEEE Net currentassets | 783,515 989,128
BEERRBERE Total assets less current liabilities 7,449,002 6,973,374

{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

20194F 12 H 31 H#%H  As at 31 December 2019

2019 2018
iFE BT T BT T
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
ERBAEE Non-current liabilities
R E 4 Insurance contracts 26 19,316 17,482
HEAaE Lease liabilities 30 65 -
IRITE Bank borrowings 28 199,965 199,966
PRSI R B K Loan from the controlling shareholder 29 149,943 -
EILFTSFAaE Deferred income tax liabilities 31 36,376 24,106
,,,,,, 405,665 | 241,554
EEFE Net assets 7,043,337 6,731,820
s Equity
R A Share capital 32(a) 1,715,377 1,715,377
HmFEES Other reserves 1,393,720 1,504,672
REB A Retained profits 3,934,240 3,511,771
AR RREGER Total equity attributable to
pap] shareholders of the Company 7,043,337 6,731,820
BR1E YAN Zheng
e Director
BRF CHEN Yu
o Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

#E 20194 12 H 31 HIEF/  For the year ended 31 December 2019

EfhEfEe
Other reserves
LYE AVE  HEER b
e RS EtEEE  MEFE  BEe
HE £E Ef  (TFR) (FIER)  leaschod  EEE 28 BREs
BE ke BEE  BES  Rirvle  Farvalue  buidings  Exchange Tl RERR 45
Share  Statutory  General Capital reserve reserve  revaluation  translation other  Retained Total
capital reserve reserve reserve  (recycling) (non-recycling) reserve reserve  reserves profits equity
B BETn BETn ERFn o BFr o BT BT BETn BRFn BTn B
HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'O00  HKSO00  HKS'000  HKSO00  HKS'000  HKSO00  HKS'000  HKS$'000
H8E1A1H At 1 January 2018 1715371 87141 84476 329,956 (180,099 281,765 3192 19651 1410352 3128441 6,254,170
KEERA Proftfor the year - - - - - - - - -SRI S7809
Efp2ENE Other comprehensive income - - - - 172,154 66,732 - (292783) (53857) - (53857)
& Dividend - - - - - - - - - (47781) (47781)
~FEEATHERATH Released on disposal of equity
SAAHRENES  investmentsatfairvalue
REzsEAm through other comprehensive
income by an associate - - - - - (13) - - (13) 13 -
ElE-FBLNTMES  Shareof movement in capitel
EE2EY feserve of an associate - - - 119 - - - - 1198 - 1198
o Transfers - 99,235 47757 - - - - - 146992 (146,992) -
RI8E12A31H At31 December 2018 1715377 970,646 13,233 331,154 (T945) 348484 3192 Q73090 1504672 35T 673180
AT Representing;
WIBERTHE 2018 proposed dividend - - - - - - - - - 59726 59726
fp Others 1715377 970,646 13,233 331,154 (T945) 348484 309 QB 1504672 3452045 66720%
118512731 A At31 December 2018 1715371 970,646 132,33 331,154 (7,943) 348,484 3192 (27309) 1504672 351171 6,731,820
#u9E1 518 At 1 January 2019 1715317 970,646 132,233 331,154 (7,945) 348,484 3192 (273,092) 1504672 351,771 6,731,820
KEERH Profitfor the year - - - - - - - - - ST ST
B2 ks Other comprehensive income - - - S WS (W61 2015 (108717 (198615) - (198613)
e Dividend - - - - - - - - - (59,7260  (59,726)
EE-FBEDANES  Shareofmovement in capitel
#ReED feserve of an asociate - - - (6w s g - ) - (16
g5 Transfers - 72,850 16,441 - - - - - 89,291 (89,201) -
019 12831R At31December 2019 1715377 1,04349% 148674 329,526 46210 202,356 5207 (381,809) 1393720 3934240  7,043337
SERT Representing;
WIERTRS 2019 proposed dividend - - - - - - - - - 59,726 59,726
ifp Others 1715377 104349% 148674 329,526 46210 202,35 5207 (381,809) 1393720 3874514 6,983,611
Hao19E12831R At 31 December 2019 1715377 104349% 148674 329,526 46210 202,356 5207 (381,809) 1393720 3934240 7,043,337

B @ABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

#FE2019F 12 H 31 H 1L E/%  For the year ended 31 December 2019

2019 2018
i B FT BT T
Note HKs’000 HK$'000
RETEBRE Net cash (outflow)/inflow
GRYE) RAAEE from operations 35(a) (30,971) 101,231
2 A E Interest received 27,510 36,703
BERFE Interest paid (16,739) (21,626)
A E A 2 TR Ak AN Other borrowing costs paid 35(b) (166) (1,234)
BASFIE Tax paid (9,060) (26,000)
REEBTHRS Net cash (outflow)/inflow
(Rd) ARARE from operating activities . (29,426) | 89,074
REEE Investing activities
BIERBEEERERT Placement of bank deposits pursuant to
MERZ BITFER insurance regulatory requirements (9,322) (3,667)
RREAR S 2 BITFR Withdrawal of restricted bank deposits 1,118 1,133
FHREISABBA=EA Placement of bank deposits with original
ZBRITIFR maturity over three months (585,012) (104,942)
BEAMNEE R MR Purchase of property, plant and equipment (867) (1,902)
BARTEE Purchase of intangible assets (270) (1,080)
ER—FEE R EIRE Dividend received from an associate - 153,195
FE O] R IR RR IR B Redemption of investment receivables = 136,666
HEYE - MBS R Sale of property, plant and equipment = 12
RETBHRSE Net cash (outflow)/inflow from
(W) RAFRE investing activites | (594,353) | 179,415
RMEETEANES Net cash (outflow)/inflow before
(W) RAFRE financing activites | (623,779) | 268,489
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BFE20194F 12 /1 31 H IFEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019

2019 2018
it EBETFT B F T
Note HKs’000 HK$'000
A& EE Financing activities
MR AR RIS E R Loan obtained from the controlling
shareholder 35(b) 200,000 -
BSIETER Bank loans obtained 35(b) 60,000 200,000
BBIRITER Bank loans repaid 35(b) (200,000) (356,880)
TKEE IR B Dividend paid (59,726) (47,781)
HENZK Lease payments 35(b) (124) -
FRAERS ZEBITER Placement of restricted bank deposit ~ 35(b) - (227,800)
IRINERS 2 RITFER Withdrawal of restricted bank deposits ~ 35(b) - 46,699
BEFERS Net cash inflow/(outflow) from
WA CRi) B8 financing activites | 150 [ (385,762)
ReERBESEEBYRD Decrease in cash and cash equivalents (623,629) (117,273)
1A1R&FZHRER Cash and cash equivalents at
HEZEEY 1 January 1,003,425 1,184,547
EREgH s TE Effect of foreign exchange rates changes (18,202) (63,849)
12831 BEFEZRER Cash and cash equivalents at
REZEY 31 December 361,594 1,003,425
ReRBESEEYMEH Analysis of the balances of cash
i and cash equivalents
Re MBITHEF Cash and bank balances 25 1,352,644 1,405,380
B BRIR R EEE S Less: Bank deposits placed pursuant
EMFERZ IRIT to insurance regulatory
F& requirements 25 (57,082) (47,760)
ERE 2T FER Restricted bank deposits 25 (223,700) (228,939)
REIEAREB=1EH Bank deposits with original
ZIRTER maturity over three months (710,268) (125,256)
361,594 1,003,425

{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Min Xin Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively refer to as
the “Group”) are principally engaged in financial
services, insurance, property investment and strategic
investment.

The Company is a limited liability company
incorporated in Hong Kong. The address of its
registered office is 17th Floor, Fairmont House, 8
Cotton Tree Drive, Central, Hong Kong. The Company
is listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange.

The Directors of the Company consider that Vigour
Fine, a limited liability company incorporated in
Hong Kong, is the immediate holding company of
the Company and FIDG, a company established in the
People’s Republic of China, is the ultimate holding
company of the Company.

These consolidated financial statements have been
approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 26
March 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in
the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which
collectively refer to all applicable individual Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards ("HKASs”) and Interpretations
(“Ints”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), and have been aligned
with accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the requirements of the Companies
Ordinance. The consolidated financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Listing Rules.

ZZ—NFFR Annual Report 2019
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{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention except
that the following assets and liabilities are stated at
their fair value as explained in the accounting policies
set out below:

financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income

- financial assets and financial liabilities (including
derivative financial instruments) at fair value
through profit or loss

investment properties

Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale
and repossessed assets are stated at the lower of
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with the HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgement in the process of applying the
Group's accounting policies. Although these estimates
are based on management’s best knowledge of current
events and actions, actual results may differ from those
estimates.

Estimates and judgement made by management are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity or where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in Note 3.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies

The Group has adopted the following new standards
and amendments to standards issued by the HKICPA:

- HKFRS 16 Leases

- Amendments to Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
HKAS 19 Settlement

- Amendments to Long-term Interests in
HKAS 28 Associates and Joint

Ventures

- Amendments to Prepayment Features with
HKFRS 9 Negative Compensation

- HK(IFRIC) - Uncertainty over Income Tax

Interpretation 23 Treatments
- Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015 - 2017 Cycle

Except for HKFRS 16, Leases, none of the adoption has
had a material effect on how the Group’s results and
financial position for the current or prior periods have
been prepared or presented. Details of the changes in
accounting policies are discussed below.
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(§
ZZ—NFFR Annual Report 2019 E’/ai

k
~N. 7



116

ARG TR LR
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEGFEOR ()

BEMBREERFE 16N ETLES

HRE 17 [HE] MEAERE B8
(BB RERELZE8E) — 2EBE4
HIETLHEARREE] &8 (&
AmEZEE) - 2EE 155 (KM
g - E#ERIREFE (Rl REZES)
— RBE 275 [P MEEEZ TN
RHHAET] - E5| AE—FABA G
BRIERA - WHREABEARMBERER
REENAE  RIFXHENHESRR
RMEAKAT (TEHEE]) MEEE
BEME - BEMHREERF 165K
ARG RS 17 RARHEAN
GETBRIBAE -

BB RELERIE 16 5 IR 5| AFTIER
EUENEERBERT - §HEBMHRE
M A& ATEENERY BN -
MR RENRERENTE -

AEBEER2019F1 A1 BIBRERS
IS IREERIE 165% - AEBIEIEMF
FREEETREBIE - MARBRATZE
EA2019F 1 A1 HE VIS L0
o kW EMREERY  WEHEERES
BTG HRE R 17 GRS o

{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17, Leases, and the related
interpretations, HK(IFRIC) 4, Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease, HK(SIC) 15, Operating
Leases — Incentives and HK(SIC) 27, Evaluating the
Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of
a Lease. It introduces a single accounting model for
lessees, which requires a lessee to recognise a right-
of-use asset and a lease liability for all leases, except
for leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less
("short-term leases”) and leases of low value assets. The
lessor accounting requirements are brought forward
from HKAS 17 substantially unchanged.

HKFRS 16 also introduces additional qualitative and
quantitative disclosure requirements which aim to
enable users of the financial statements to assess
the effect that leases have on the financial position,
financial performance and cash flows of an entity.

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 as from
1 January 2019. The Group has elected to use the
modified retrospective approach and has therefore
recognised the cumulative effect of initial application
as an adjustment to the opening balance of equity at 1
January 2019. Comparative information has not been
restated and continues to be reported under HKAS 17.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)
(a) New definition of a lease

The change in the definition of a lease mainly relates
to the concept of control. HKFRS 16 defines a lease
on the basis of whether a customer controls the use
of an identified asset for a period of time, which may
be determined by a defined amount of use. Control
is conveyed where the customer has both the right
to direct the use of the identified asset and to obtain
substantially all of the economic benefits from that
use.

The Group applies the new definition of a lease in
HKFRS 16 only to contracts that were entered into
or changed on or after 1 January 2019. For contracts
entered into before 1 January 2019, the Group has used
the transitional practical expedient to grandfather the
previous assessment of which existing arrangements
are or contain leases.

Accordingly, contracts that were previously assessed
as leases under HKAS 17 continue to be accounted
for as leases under HKFRS 16 and contracts previously
assessed as non-lease service arrangements continue
to be accounted for as executory contracts.

(b) Lessee accounting and transitional impact

HKFRS 16 eliminates the requirement for a lessee to
classify leases as either operating leases or finance
leases, as was previously required by HKAS 17. Instead,
the Group is required to capitalise all leases when it
is the lessee, including leases previously classified
as operating leases under HKAS 17, other than those
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets which
are exempt. As far as the Group is concerned, these
newly capitalised leases are primarily in relation to
property, plant and equipment as disclosed in Note
14. An explanation of how the Group applies lessee
accounting is described in Note 2.8(a).
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(b) Lessee accounting and transitional impact
(Continued)

At the date of transition to HKFRS 16 (i.e. 1 January
2019), the Group determined the length of the
remaining lease terms and measured the lease
liabilities for the leases previously classified as
operating leases at the present value of the remaining
lease payments, discounted using the relevant
incremental borrowing rates at 1 January 2019.

To ease the transition to HKFRS 16, the Group applied
the following recognition exemption and practical
expedients at the date of initial application of HKFRS
16:

- the Group elected not to apply the requirements
of HKFRS 16 in respect of the recognition of lease
liabilities and right-of-use assets to leases for
which the remaining lease term ends within 12
months from the date of initial application of
HKFRS 16, i.e. where the lease term ends on or
before 31 December 2019; and

- when measuring the lease liabilities at the date of
initial application of HKFRS 16, the Group applied
a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with
reasonably similar characteristics (such as leases
with a similar remaining lease term for a similar
class of underlying asset in a similar economic
environment).

The following table reconciles the operating lease
commitments at 31 December 2018 as disclosed in
Note 34(a) to the opening balance for lease liabilities
recognised at 1 January 2019:

BT T
HKS$’000
M 20184F 12 A 31 HH K & TH E#&IE Operating lease commitments at 31 December 2018 104
B R R ERMEEEFREN Less: commitments relating to leases exempt from
HHE capitalisation:
- FHATH & K I eRFH & B - short-term leases and other leases with
72019412 HA31H remaining lease term ending on or
R BRI EAMEE before 31 December 2019 (104)

R2019F1 A1 HEZNHEAGEERE

EBPR7AE] Min Xin Holdings Limited

Total lease liabilities recognised at 1 January 2019 -
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(c) Leasehold investment property

Under HKFRS 16, the Group is required to account
for all leasehold properties as investment properties
when these properties are held to earn rental income
and/or for capital appreciation (“leasehold investment
properties”). The adoption of HKFRS 16 does not have a
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements
as the Group previously elected to apply HKAS 40,
Investment Property, to account for all of its leasehold
properties that were held for investment purposes at
31 December 2018. Consequentially, these leasehold
investment properties continue to be carried at fair
value.

(d) Lessor accounting

The accounting policies applicable to the Group as
a lessor remain substantially unchanged from those
under HKAS 17.

Up to the date of issuance of these consolidated
financial statements, the HKICPA has issued a number
of new standards and amendments to standards which
are not yet effective for the accounting year ended
31 December 2019 and which have not been early
adopted in these consolidated financial statements as
follows:

- HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

- Amendments to Definition of Material
HKAS 1 and

HKAS 8

- Amendments to Definition of a Business

HKFRS 3

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

- Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

- Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018

(X

d

ZZ—NFFR Annual Report 2019 i

V-

"



120

ARG TR LR
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEGFEOR ()

N B IEFHE VIR B R % F 3 4
AMERTHHBHRNEE  RAREY
BHRERTERRIDREENCETE -

2.3 HERARHE

RGP BRELEHEZ12A31BK
REIRENBRARNTEREEAEE
FE(EEE N RIHAERS o

VI i) AN E R e 2

MEAREAREHEREEFENE
B (BRABIEER) EAKBAFK
ERFELEARERMSZAZ DR
MR SR - WEEAEBEELERN
BAOREZER®R  AAEEYZER
ABEHE - ReHEARERSHHED
B EEE (NEBEREMRTH I
BH) BEEMERN -

{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of what the impact of these new standards and
amendments to standards is expected to be in the
period of initial application, it is impracticable to
quantify the effect as at the date of issuance of these
consolidated financial statements.

2.3 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and all its
subsidiaries and the Group’s interests in associates
made up to 31 December.

(a) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities (including structured entities)
controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity
when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. When assessing whether the Group has power,
only substantive rights (held by the Group and other
parties) are considered.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.3 Basis of consolidation (Continued)

(a) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Subsidiaries are consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control
commenced until the date that control ceases.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed,
where necessary, in the consolidated financial
statements to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

The Group uses the acquisition method of
accounting to account for business combinations.
The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary is the fair value of the assets transferred,
the liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued
by the Group. The consideration transferred includes
the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred. Identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are measured
initially at fair value at the date of acquisition. For
each business combination, the Group can elect to
measure any non-controlling interests either at fair
value or at their proportionate share of the subsidiary’s
identifiable net assets.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made
to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling
interests within consolidated equity to reflect the
changes in relative interests, but no adjustments are
made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised in
the consolidated income statement.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.3 Basis of consolidation (Continued)

(a) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in the consolidated income statement.
Any interest retained in that former subsidiary at the
date when control is lost is recognised at fair value
and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset (Note 2.10) or, when
appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate (Note 2.3(b)). In addition,
any amounts previously recognised in consolidated
statement of comprehensive income in respect of
that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
This may mean that amounts previously recognised in
consolidated statement of comprehensive income are
reclassified to the consolidated income statement or
transferred directly to retained profits when the Group
loses control of the subsidiary.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from
intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same
way as unrealised profits but only to the extent that
there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to
the Company, and in respect of which the Group has
not agreed any additional terms with the holders of
those interests which would result in the Group as a
whole having a contractual obligation in respect of
those interests that meets the definition of a financial
liability.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.3 Basis of consolidation (Continued)

(a) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the
shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling
interests in the results of the Group are presented
on the face of the consolidated income statement
and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as an allocation of the total profit or loss and
total comprehensive income for the year between
non-controlling interests and the shareholders of the
Company.

Loans from holders of non-controlling interests and
other contractual obligations towards these holders
are presented as financial liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position in accordance with
Notes 2.19 or 2.20 depending on the nature of the
liability.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
the investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost
less impairment losses (Note 2.12(b)), unless the
investments are classified as held for sale (or included
in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale)
(Note 2.16). The results of subsidiaries are accounted
for by the Company on the basis of dividend received
and receivable.
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EBPR7AE] Min Xin Holdings Limited

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.3 Basis of consolidation (Continued)
(b) Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has
significant influence, but not control or joint control
over its management, including participation in the
financial and operating policy decisions.

Investments in associates are accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity
method, unless they are classified as held for sale (or
included in a disposal group that is classified as held
for sale) (Note 2.16). Under the equity method, the
investments are initially recognised at cost, adjusted
for any excess of the Group’s share of the acquisition-
date fair value of the investees’ identifiable net assets
over the cost of the investments (if any). The cost of the
investments include purchase price, other costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of the investments, and
any direct investment into the associates that forms
part of the Group’s equity investments. Thereafter,
the investments are adjusted for the post-acquisition
changes in the Group’s share of the investees’ net
assets and any impairment losses relating to the
investments (Notes 2.4 and 2.12(b)). The consolidated
income statement includes the acquisition-date excess
over cost, the Group’s share of the post-acquisition,
post-tax results of the investees and any impairment
losses for the year, whereas the Group’s share of the
post-acquisition, post-tax items of the investees’
other comprehensive income is recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
The accounting policies of the investees have been
aligned, where necessary, in the consolidated financial
statements to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.3 Basis of consolidation (Continued)
(b) Associates (Continued)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interests
in an associate, the Group’s interests are reduced to
nil and recognition of further losses is discontinued
except to the extent that the Group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the investee. For this purpose, the Group's
interests in an associate are the carrying amount of the
investments under the equity method together with
the Group's long-term interests that in substance form
part of the Group's net investments in the associate.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associates are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interests in
the investees, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred,
in which case they are recognised immediately in the
consolidated income statement.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence
over an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of
the entire interest in that investee, with a resulting
gain or loss being recognised in the consolidated
income statement. Any interest retained in that
former investee at the date when significant influence
is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a
financial asset (Note 2.10). In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in consolidated statement of
comprehensive income in respect of that investee are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities.
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EBPR7AE] Min Xin Holdings Limited

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.3 Basis of consolidation (Continued)
(b) Associates (Continued)

When the ownership interest in an associate is
reduced but significant influence is retained, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the interest reduced
in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in the consolidated income statement. In
addition, only a proportionate share of the amounts
previously recognised in consolidated statement of
comprehensive income relating to that reduction
in ownership interest is reclassified to consolidated
income statement where appropriate.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
the investments in associates are stated at cost less
impairment losses (Note 2.12(b)), unless they are
classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale) (Note 2.16). The
results of associates are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

2.4 Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of:

(i)  the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the fair value of the
Group'’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree; over

(ii) the Group's interest in the net fair value of the
acquiree’s identifiable assets and liabilities
measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is
recognised immediately in the consolidated income
statement as a gain on a bargain purchase.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.4 Goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash-generating unit, or groups of
cash-generating units, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination and is tested annually
for impairment (Note 2.12(b)).

On disposal of a cash-generating unit during the year,
any attributable amount of purchased goodwill is
included in the calculation of the gains or losses on
disposal.

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment, including leasehold
land and land use rights held for own use, are stated
at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
assets.

Subsequent expenditure is included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with that asset will
flow to the Group and the cost of that asset can be
measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance
costs are expensed in the income statement during the
period in which they are incurred.

Gain or loss arising from the retirement or disposal
of an item of property, plant and equipment is
determined by comparing the net sale proceeds with
the carrying amount and is recognised in the income
statement on the date of retirement or disposal.
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{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, over their estimated useful lives
at the following annual rates:

(a) Straight line method

Leasehold land and
land use rights held
for own use

Over the unexpired term of
the lease

Over the shorter of the
unexpired term of the lease
and 30 years

Buildings held for
own use

Computer equipment  20% - 50%

(b) Reducing balance method

Furniture, fixtures and  10% - 20%
office equipment

Motor vehicles 20% - 25%

An asset’s residual value and useful life are reviewed,

and adjusted, if appropriate, at each reporting date. An

asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to

its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount

is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note
2.12(b)).
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.6 Intangible assets

Intangible assets which comprise software are stated
at historical cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
assets.

Costs associated with maintaining computer system
are expensed in the income statement during the
period in which they are incurred.

Amortisation of intangible assets is recognised on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of 3
to 4 years.

Gain or loss arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of intangible asset is determined by comparing
the net sale proceeds with the carrying amount and
is recognised in the income statement on the date of
retirement or disposal.

The amortisation period and the amortisation method
for an intangible asset are reviewed, and adjusted,
if appropriate, at each reporting date. An intangible
asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to
its recoverable amount if the intangible asset’s carrying
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable
amount (Note 2.12(b)).

2.7 Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings
which are owned or held under a leasehold interest
(Note 2.8(a)) to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, and are not occupied by the companies
within the Group. These include land held for a
currently undetermined future use and property that
is being constructed or developed for future use as
investment property.
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EBPR7AE] Min Xin Holdings Limited

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.7 Investment properties (Continued)

Investment properties are measured initially at their
costs, including related transaction costs. After initial
recognition, investment properties are carried at fair
value. Fair value is based on active market prices and
adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the nature,
location or condition of the specific asset. If this
information is not available, the Group uses alternative
valuation methods such as recent prices on less
active markets or discounted cash flow projections.
Investment property that is being redeveloped for
continuing use as investment property, or for which
the market has become less active, continues to be
measured at fair value.

Subsequent expenditure is included in the asset’s
carrying amount only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repair and maintenance costs are
expensed in the income statement during the period
in which they are incurred.

Changes in fair value and gain or loss on disposal of
an investment property are recognised in the income
statement as part of “Other gains/(losses) — net”.

When a property held for own use is reclassified to
investment property following a change in its use,
any difference arising at the date of reclassification
between the carrying amount of the property held for
own use immediately prior to the reclassification and
the fair value as a result of revaluation is recognised as
below:
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.7 Investment properties (Continued)

(@) If the carrying amount of the property is increased
as a result of the revaluation, the increase shall be
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the leasehold
buildings revaluation reserve; and

(b) If the carrying amount of the property is
decreased as a result of the revaluation, the
decrease shall be recognised in the income
statement.

On subsequent disposal of the investment property,
the revaluation surplus recognised in the leasehold
buildings revaluation reserve will be transferred
directly to retained profits.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied,
it is reclassified as a property held for own use and its
fair value at the date of reclassification becomes its
deemed cost for subsequent accounting in accordance
with Note 2.5.

In the comparative period, when the Group held a
property interest under an operating lease and used
the property to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, the Group could elect on a property-by-
property basis to classify and account for such interest
as an investment property. Any such property interest
which had been classified as an investment property
was accounted for as if it were held under a finance
lease (Note 2.8(a)), and the same accounting policies
were applied to that interest as were applied to other
investment properties leased under finance leases.
Lease payments were accounted for as described in
Note 2.8(a).
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{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.8 Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether
the contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed
where the customer has both the right to direct the
use of the identified asset and to obtain substantially
all of the economic benefits from that use.

(a) Asalessee
Policy applicable from 1 January 2019

Where the contract contains lease component(s) and
non-lease component(s), the Group has elected not
to separate non-lease components and accounts for
each lease component and any associated non-lease
components as a single lease component for all leases.

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability,
except for short-term leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets.
For the Group, the low-value assets are typically
office equipment. When the Group enters into a lease
in respect of a low-value asset, the Group decides
whether to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease
basis. The lease payments associated with those leases
which are not capitalised are recognised as an expense
on a systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is
initially recognised at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition,
the lease liability is measured at amortised cost and
interest expense is calculated using the effective
interest method. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or rate are not included in
the measurement of the lease liability and hence are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.8 Leases (Continued)

(a) As alessee (Continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease
is capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
plus any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial direct costs
incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-
of-use asset also includes an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it
is located, discounted to their present value, less
any lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset
is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (Note 2.5 and
2.12(b)), except for the following types of right-of-use
asset:

- right-of-use assets that meet the definition of
investment property are carried at fair value in
accordance with Note 2.7.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a change
in an index or rate, or there is a change in the Group's
estimate of the amount expected to be payable under
a residual value guarantee, or there is a change arising
from the reassessment of whether the Group will be
reasonably certain to exercise a purchase, extension
or termination option. When the lease liability is
remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is
made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset,
or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not
meet the definition of investment property in “Property,
plant and equipment” and presents lease liabilities
separately in the statement of financial position.
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{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.8 Leases (Continued)

(a) As alessee (Continued)
Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2019

In the comparative period, leases where substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets
transferred to the lessee are accounted for as finance
leases. All other leases are operating leases with the
following exceptions:

- property held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property was classified as investment property on
a property-by-property basis and, if classified as
investment property, was accounted for as if held
under a finance lease (Note 2.7); and

- land held for own use under an operating lease,
the fair value of which could not be measured
separately from the fair value of a building
situated thereon at the inception of the lease,
was accounted for as being held under a finance
lease, unless the building was also clearly held
under an operating lease. For these purposes, the
inception of the lease was the time that the lease
was first entered into by the Group, or taken over
from the previous lessee.

Payments made under operating leases (including
those for leasehold land) net of any incentives received
from the lessor are charged to the income statement
on a straight-line basis over the lease periods.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.8 Leases (Continued)

(b) Asalessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease
inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an
operating lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease
if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to the ownership of an underlying asset to
the lessee. If this is not the case, the lease is classified
as an operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to each component on a relative stand-
alone selling price basis. The rental income from
operating leases is recognised in accordance with Note
2.26(b).

2.9 Repossessed assets

Repossessed assets are collateral assets taken by the
Group through court proceedings or voluntary delivery
of possession by the borrowers.

Repossessed assets are initially recognised at fair
value, and the related outstanding loans and interest
receivable together with the related impairment
allowances are derecognised from the consolidated
statement of financial position. Repossessed assets are
not depreciated or amortised.

Repossessed assets are subsequently measured at
the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs
to sell. When the fair value less costs to sell is lower
than the carrying amount of a repossessed asset, an
impairment loss is recognised in the income statement.

When a repossessed asset is disposed of, the difference

between the net sale proceeds and the carrying
amount is recognised in the income statement.
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EBPR7AE] Min Xin Holdings Limited

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.10 Financial instruments

(a) Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables and loans to customers are initially
recognised when they are originated. All other financial
assets (including regular-way purchases and sales of
financial assets) and financial liabilities are initially
recognised when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without
a significant financing component) or financial liability
is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs
that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.
A trade receivable without a significant financing
component is initially measured at the transaction
price.

(b) Classification

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as
measured at (i) amortised cost, (ii) fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) or (iii) fair value
through profit or loss (“FVPL").

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to
their initial recognition unless the Group changes its
business model for managing financial assets, in which
case all affected financial assets are reclassified on
the first day of the first reporting period following the
change in the business model.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it
meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVPL:

- it is held within a business model whose objective
is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows;
and

- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.10 Financial instruments (Continued)

(b) Classification (Continued)

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets
both of the following conditions and is not designated
as at FVPL:

- it is held within a business model whose objective
is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets; and

- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is
not held for trading, the Group may irrevocably elect
to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair
value in other comprehensive income. This election is
made on an investment-by-investment basis.

All financial assets not classified as measured at
amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are
measured at FVPL. This includes all derivative
financial assets. On initial recognition, the Group
may irrevocably designate a financial asset that
otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at
amortised cost or FVOCI as measured at FVPL if doing
so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch that would otherwise arise.
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{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.10 Financial instruments (Continued)

(b) Classification (Continued)
Business model assessment

The Group makes an assessment of the objective of
the business model in which a financial asset is held at
a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the
business is managed and information is provided to
management. The information considered includes:

- the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio
and the operation of those policies in practice.
These include whether management’s strategy
focuses on earning contractual interest income,
maintaining a particular interest rate profile,
matching the duration of the financial assets to
the duration of any related liabilities or expected
cash outflows or realising cash flows through the
sale of the assets;

- how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated
and reported to the Group’s management;

- the risks that affect the performance of the
business model (and the financial assets held
within that business model) and how those risks
are managed;

- how managers of the business are compensated
- e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair
value of the assets managed or the contractual
cash flows collected; and

- the frequency, volume and timing of sales of
financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for
such sales and expectations about future sales
activity. However, information about sales activity
is not considered in isolation, but as part of an
overall assessment of how the Group’s stated
objective for managing the financial assets is
achieved and how cash flows are realised.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.10 Financial instruments (Continued)

(b) Classification (Continued)

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in
transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are
not considered sales for this purpose, consistent with
the Group’s continuing recognition of the assets.

Financial assets that are held for trading or are
managed and whose performance is evaluated on a
fair value basis are measured at FVPL.

Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely
payments of principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, “principal” is
defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial
recognition. “Interest” is defined as consideration
for the time value of money and for the credit risk
associated with the principal amount outstanding
during a particular period of time and for other
basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and
administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are
solely payments of principal and interest, the Group
considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This
includes assessing whether the financial asset contains
a contractual term that could change the timing or
amount of contractual cash flows such that it would
not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the
Group considers:

- contingent events that would change the amount
or timing of cash flows;

- leverage features;

- terms that may adjust the contractual coupon
rate, including variable-rate features;
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.10 Financial instruments (Continued)

(b) Classification (Continued)
- prepayment and extension features;

- terms that limit the Group’s claim to cash flows
from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse features);
and

- features that modify consideration of the time
value of money (e.g. periodical reset of interest
rates).

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely
payments of principal and interest criterion if the
prepayment amount substantially represents unpaid
amounts of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, which may include reasonable
additional compensation for early termination of the
contract. Additionally, for a financial asset acquired at
a discount or premium to its contractual par amount,
a feature that permits or requires prepayment at an
amount that substantially represents the contractual
par amount plus accrued (but unpaid) contractual
interest (which may also include reasonable additional
compensation for early termination) is treated as
consistent with this criterion if the fair value of
the prepayment feature is insignificant at initial
recognition.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.10 Financial instruments (Continued)

(b) Classification (Continued)
Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets at FVPL: These assets are subsequently
measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including
any interest or dividend income, are recognised in
profit or loss.

Financial assets at amortised cost: These assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. The amortised cost
is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income,
foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment
are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on
derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Debt investments at FVOCI: These assets are
subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income
calculated using the effective interest method, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment are
recognised in profit or loss. Other net gains and losses
are recognised in other comprehensive income. On
derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.

Equity investments at FVOCI: These assets are
subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are
recognised as income in profit or loss unless the
dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the
cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are
recognised in other comprehensive income and are
never reclassified to profit or loss.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.10 Financial instruments (Continued)

(b) Classification (Continued)

Financial liabilities — Classification, subsequent measurement
and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at
amortised cost or FVPL. A financial liability is classified
as measured at FVPL if it is classified as held-for-
trading, it is a derivative or it is designated as such
on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVPL
are measured at fair value and net gains and losses,
including any interest expense, are recognised in profit
or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains
and losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or
loss on derecognition is also recognised in profit or
loss.

(c) Derecognition
Financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the
contractual cash flows in a transaction in which
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership
of the financial asset are transferred or in which the
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all
of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not
retain control of the financial asset.

The Group enters into transactions whereby it transfers
assets recognised in its statement of financial position,
but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and
rewards of the transferred assets. In these cases, the
transferred assets are not derecognised.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.10 Financial instruments (Continued)

(c) Derecognition (Continued)

In transactions in which the Group neither retains nor
transfers substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership of a financial asset and it retains control
over the asset, the Group continues to recognise the
asset to the extent of its continuing involvement,
determined by the extent to which it is exposed to
changes in the value of the transferred asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the carrying amount of the asset (or the
carrying amount allocated to the portion of the asset
derecognised) and the sum of (i) the consideration
received (including any new asset obtained less any
new liability assumed) and (ii) any cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income is recognised in profit or loss.

From 1 January 2018, any cumulative gain/loss
recognised in other comprehensive income in
respect of equity investment securities designated
as measured at FVOCI is not recognised in profit
or loss on derecognition of such securities. Any
interest in transferred financial assets that qualify for
derecognition that is created or retained by the Group
is recognised as a separate asset or liability.

Financial liabilities

The Group derecognises a financial liability when its
contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or
expire. The Group also derecognises a financial liability
when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the
modified liability are substantially different, in which
case a new financial liability based on the modified
terms is recognised at fair value.

On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference
between the carrying amount extinguished and the
consideration paid (including any non-cash assets
transferred or liabilities assumed) is recognised in
profit or loss.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.10 Financial instruments (Continued)

(d) Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount presented in the statement of financial
position when, and only when, the Group currently has
a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it
intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Income and expenses are presented on a net basis only
when permitted under HKFRSs, or for gains and losses
arising from a group of similar transactions such as in
the Group’s trading activity.

(e) Fair value measurement

“Fair value” is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date in the principal or, in its absence,
the most advantageous market to which the Group has
access at that date. The fair value of a liability reflects
its non-performance risk.

When one is available, the Group measures the fair
value of an instrument using the quoted price in an
active market for that instrument. A market is regarded
as “active” if transactions for the asset or liability take
place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide
pricing information on an ongoing basis.

If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the
Group uses valuation techniques that maximise the use
of relevant observable inputs and minimise the use of
unobservable inputs. The chosen valuation technique
incorporates all of the factors that market participants
would take into account in pricing a transaction.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.10 Financial instruments (Continued)

(e) Fair value measurement (Continued)

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument
on initial recognition is normally the transaction price —
i.e. the fair value of the consideration given or received.
If the Group determines that the fair value on initial
recognition differs from the transaction price and the fair
value is evidenced neither by a quoted price in an active
market for an identical asset or liability nor based on a
valuation technique for which any unobservable inputs are
judged to be insignificant in relation to the measurement,
then the financial instrument is initially measured at fair
value, adjusted to defer the difference between the fair
value on initial recognition and the transaction price.
Subsequently, that difference is recognised in profit or loss
on an appropriate basis over the life of the instrument but
no later than when the valuation is wholly supported by
observable market data or the transaction is closed out.

If an asset or a liability measured at fair value has a bid
price and an ask price, then the Group measures assets
and long positions at a bid price and liabilities and
short positions at an ask price.

Portfolios of financial assets and financial liabilities
that are exposed to market risk and credit risk that
are managed by the Group on the basis of the net
exposure to either market or credit risk are measured
on the basis of a price that would be received to sell
a net long position (or paid to transfer a net short
position) for the particular risk exposure. Portfolio-level
adjustments - e.g. bid-ask adjustment or credit risk
adjustments that reflect the measurement on the basis
of the net exposure - are allocated to the individual
assets and liabilities on the basis of the relative risk
adjustment of each of the individual instruments in the
portfolio.

The fair value of a financial liability with a demand
feature is not less than the amount payable on
demand, discounted from the first date on which the
amount could be required to be paid.
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{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.10 Financial instruments (Continued)

(e) Fair value measurement (Continued)

The Group recognises transfers between levels of the
fair value hierarchy as of the end of the reporting
period during which the change has occurred.

2.11 Hedge Accounting

The Group does not adopt hedge accounting for
derivatives which may qualify as eligible cash flow
hedges or fair value hedges.

2.12 Impairment

(a) Non-derivative financial assets
Financial instruments

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected
credit losses (“ECLs") on:

- financial assets measured at amortised cost
(including debt investments, loans to customers
and interest receivable, insurance receivable,
reinsurance assets, other debtors, cash and bank
balances); and

- debt investments measured at FVOCI.

The Group measures loss allowances at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs, except for the following, which
are measured at 12-month ECLs:

- debt securities that are determined to have low
credit risk at the reporting date; and

- other debt securities and bank balances for which
credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over
the expected life of the financial instrument)
has not increased significantly since initial
recognition.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.12 Impairment (Continued)

(a) Non-derivative financial assets (Continued)

The Group considers a debt security to have low credit
risk when its credit risk rating is equivalent to the
globally understood definition of “investment grade”.

While cash and bank balances are also subject to the
ECL assessment, the identified loss allowance was
immaterial.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

Loss allowances for insurance receivable, reinsurance
assets and other debtors are always measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these financial
assets are estimated using a provision matrix based on
the Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors and an
assessment of both the current and forecast general
economic conditions at the reporting date.

For loans to customers, interest receivable and all other
financial instruments, the Group recognises a loss
allowance equal to 12-month ECLs unless there has
been a significant increase in credit risk of the financial
instrument since initial recognition, in which case the
loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs.
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EBPR7AE] Min Xin Holdings Limited

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.12 Impairment (Continued)
(a) Non-derivative financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk

When determining whether the credit risk of a
financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Group
considers reasonable and supportable information
that is relevant and available without undue cost or
effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative
information and analysis, based on the Group’s
historical experience and informed credit assessment
and including forward-looking information.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

- failure to make payments of principal or interest
on their contractually due dates;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in
a financial instrument’s external or internal credit
rating (if available);

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor; and

- existing or forecast changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have
a significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability
to meet its obligation to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial assets, the
assessment of a significant increase in credit risk is
performed on either an individual basis or a collective
basis. When the assessment is performed on a
collective basis, the financial assets are grouped based
on shared credit risk characteristics, such as past due
status, credit risk ratings and collateral types.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.12 Impairment (Continued)

(a) Non-derivative financial assets (Continued)

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly if it is more than 30
days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be in default
when:

- the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full, without recourse
by the Group to actions such as realising security
(if any is held); or

- the financial asset is more than 90 days past due.
Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value
of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the
cash flows due to the entity in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive).

Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible
default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument.

12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from
default events that are possible within the 12 months
after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the
expected life of the instrument is less than 12 months).

ECLs are discounted at the effective interest rate of the
financial assets.

(8

ZZ—NFFR Annual Report 2019 ‘ i

-
)

"



ARG TR LR
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2

FEGFEOR ()

2.12 WE (48)
(a) FATESMERE ()

MEEREEEERZERNREHARG
AEBEAZEERBRORES A

BHEEBENSE2MAEMNTE - A
ke R T A B TRERENEERR
g  AHREEEENESSENER
NIERSRE W EHEE -

EERESREE

RNE2HWB - AEBEF G IREHEK AT
ENEREENMZATFEFARMEE
WHRTENEBESEAHREER
B ERLE-FIASZFREMHEHERMEE
EAARRASREATNTE &
BELREERE -

TREELREERENIEEREAT
RRER SR ¢

- BEBAREBHITALBRBERUEK
2

- EREHWEHZEMEBE0X

- ARBHETHERXBREMA -
—RBEATAEETTEENK

E
A

- MBER-mEH - BBEIERREH
REANB(CMEEFAELETH

B/ 488 -
-

{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.12 Impairment (Continued)

(a) Non-derivative financial assets (Continued)

The maximum period considered when estimating
ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which
the Group is exposed to credit risk.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect
changes in the financial assets’ credit risk since
initial recognition. Any change in the ECL amount is
recognised as an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss.

Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
financial assets carried at amortised cost and debt
securities at FVOCI are credit-impaired. A financial
asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes the following observable data:

significant financial difficulty of the borrower or
issuer;

- a breach of contract such as a default or being
more than 90 days past due;

- the restructuring of a loan or advance by the
Group on terms that the Group would not
consider otherwise;

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the borrower;
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.12 Impairment (Continued)

(a) Non-derivative financial assets (Continued)

- it is probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

- the disappearance of an active market for a
security because of financial difficulties.

Basis of calculation of interest income on credit-impaired
financial assets

Interest income recognised in accordance with Note
2.26(a) is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial
asset is credit-impaired, in which case interest income
is calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. gross
carrying amount net of loss allowance) of the financial
asset.

Presentation of allowance for ECL in the statement of
financial position

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at
amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets.

For debt securities at FVOCI, the loss allowance is
charged to profit or loss and is recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.12 Impairment (Continued)

(a) Non-derivative financial assets (Continued)
Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written
off when the Group has no reasonable expectations of
recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion
thereof. The Group individually makes an assessment
with respect to the timing and amount of write-off
based on whether there is a reasonable expectation
of recovery. The Group expects no significant recovery
from the amount written off. However, financial
assets that are written off could still be subject to
enforcement activities in order to comply with the
Group's procedures for recovery of amounts due.

(b) Other non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether
there is an indication that a non-financial asset is
impaired. Assets that have an indefinite useful life
or have not yet available for use are not subject to
amortisation and are at least tested annually for
impairment. Assets are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

If any such indication exists, or when annual
impairment testing for a non-financial asset is
required, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of
an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset does not generate
cash inflows largely independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e., a cash-generating unit).
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.12 Impairment (Continued)

(b) Other non-financial assets (Continued)

An impairment loss is recognised in the income
statement for the amount by which the carrying
amount of an asset, or the cash-generating unit to
which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
cash-generating unit and then, to reduce the carrying
amount of the other assets in the unit on a pro rata
basis, except that the carrying value of an asset will not
be reduced below its individual fair value less costs to
sell, or value in use, if determinable.

Previously recognised impairment losses on goodwill
are not reversed in subsequent periods. Previously
recognised impairment losses on other assets are
reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount
of an asset, however not to an amount higher than the
carrying amount that would have been determined
(net of any amortisation or depreciation), had no
impairment loss been recognised against the asset in
prior periods. Reversal of impairment loss is credited to
the income statement in the period in which it arises.

(c) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required to
prepare an interim financial report in compliance with
HKAS 34 “Interim Financial Reporting” in respect of the
first six months of the financial year. At the end of the
interim period, the Group applies the same impairment
testing, recognition and reversal criteria as it would at
the end of the financial year (Notes 2.12(a) and 2.12(b)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill are not reversed in a subsequent
period. This is the case even if no loss, or a smaller loss,
would have been recognised had the impairment been
assessed only at the end of the financial year to which
the interim period relates.
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EBPR7AE] Min Xin Holdings Limited

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.13 Insurance contracts classification
The Group issues contracts that transfer insurance risk.

Insurance contracts are those contracts that transfer
significant insurance risk. The Group defines significant
insurance risk as the possibility of having to pay
benefits on the occurrence of an insured event that
are at least 10% more than the benefits payable if the
insured event did not occur.

2.14 Insurance contracts

(a) Classification

Insurance contracts are classified depending on the
duration of risk and whether or not the terms and
conditions are fixed.

Short-term insurance contracts issued by the Group
are casualty and property insurance contracts.

Casualty insurance contracts protect the Group’s
customers against the risk of financial loss arising
from causing harm to third parties as a result of their
legitimate activities. Damages covered include both
contractual and non-contractual events. The typical
protection offered is designed for employers who
become legally liable to pay compensation to injured
employees (employers’ liability) and for individual
and business customers who become liable to pay
compensation to a third party for bodily harm or
property damage (public liability).

Property insurance contracts mainly compensate
the Group’s customers for damage suffered to
their properties or for the value of property lost.
Customers who undertake commercial activities on
their premises could also receive compensation for
the loss of earnings caused by the inability to use the
insured properties in their business activities (business
interruption cover).
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.14 Insurance contracts (Continued)

(a) Classification (Continued)

Claims and loss adjustment expenses are charged
to the income statement as incurred based on the
estimated liability for compensation owed to contract
holders or third parties damaged by the contract
holders. They include direct and indirect claims
settlement costs and arise from events that have
occurred up to the reporting date even if they have
not yet been reported to the Group. The Group does
not discount its liabilities for unpaid claims. Liabilities
for unpaid claims are estimated using the input of
assessments for individual cases reported to the Group
and statistical analyses for the claims incurred but
not reported, and to estimate the expected ultimate
costs of more complex claims that may be affected by
external factors (such as court decisions).

(b) Deferred acquisition costs (“DAC”)

Commissions and other acquisition costs that vary
with and are related to securing new contracts and
renewing existing contracts are capitalised as an asset,
DAC. All other costs are recognised as expenses when
incurred. The DAC is subsequently amortised over the
life of the contracts as premium is earned.

(c) Liability adequacy test

At each reporting date, liability adequacy tests are
performed to ensure the adequacy of the contract
liabilities net of related DAC assets. In performing these
tests, current best estimates of future contractual cash
flows and claims handling and administration expenses
are used. Any deficiency is immediately charged to
the income statement initially by writing off DAC and
subsequently by establishing a provision for losses
arising from liability adequacy tests (the unexpired risk
provision). Any DAC written off as a result of this test
cannot subsequently be reinstated.
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EBPR7AE] Min Xin Holdings Limited

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.14 Insurance contracts (Continued)

(d) Reinsurance contracts held

Contracts entered into by the Group with reinsurers
under which the Group is compensated for losses on
one or more contracts issued by the Group and that
meet the classification requirements for insurance
contracts in Note 2.13 are classified as reinsurance
contracts held. Contracts that do not meet these
classification requirements are classified as financial
assets. Insurance contracts entered into by the Group
under which the contract holder is another insurer
(inwards reinsurance) are included as “Insurance
contracts” in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

The benefits to which the Group is entitled under
its reinsurance contracts held are recognised as
reinsurance assets. These assets consist of short-
term balances due from reinsurers, as well as longer
term receivables that are dependent on the expected
claims and benefits arising under the related
reinsurance contracts. Amounts recoverable from or
due to reinsurers are measured consistently with the
amounts associated with the reinsurance contracts
and in accordance with the terms of each reinsurance
contract. Reinsurance liabilities are primarily premiums
payable for reinsurance contracts and are recognised
as an expense over the terms of reinsurance contracts
and are included as “Insurance payable” in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group assesses its reinsurance assets for
impairment on a regular basis. If there is objective
evidence that the reinsurance asset is impaired, the
Group reduces the carrying amount of the reinsurance
asset to its recoverable amount and recognises
that impairment loss in the consolidated income
statement. The Group gathers the objective evidence
that a reinsurance asset is impaired and calculates the
impairment losses using the same processes adopted
as described in Note 2.12(a).
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.14 Insurance contracts (Continued)

(e) Receivables and payables related to insurance
contracts

Receivables and payables are recognised when due.
These include amounts due to and from agents,
brokers and insurance contract holders.

If there is objective evidence that the insurance
receivable is impaired, the Group reduces the carrying
amount of the insurance receivable to its recoverable
amount and recognises that impairment loss in the
consolidated income statement. The Group gathers
the objective evidence that an insurance receivable is
impaired and calculates the impairment losses using
the same processes adopted as described in Note
2.12(a).

(f) Salvage and subrogation reimbursements

Some insurance contracts permit the Group to sell
(usually damaged) property acquired in settling a
claim (salvage). The Group may also have the right to
pursue third parties for payment of some or all costs
(subrogation).

Estimates of salvage recoveries are included as an
allowance in the measurement of the insurance liability
for claims, and salvage property is recognised in other
assets when the liability is settled. The allowance is
the amount that can reasonably be recovered from the
disposal of the property.

Subrogation reimbursements are also considered as an
allowance in the measurement of the insurance liability
for claims and are recognised in other assets when
the liability is settled. The allowance is the amount
assessed that can be recovered from the action against
the liable third party.
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{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.15 Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated on specific identification basis as
appropriate and comprises all costs of purchase and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition.

Net realisable value is based on the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised.
The amount of any write-down of inventories to
net realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-down
or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal is recognised
as a reduction in the amount of the expense in the
period in which the reversal occurs.

2.16 Non-current assets (or disposal groups) held for
sale

A non-current asset (or disposal group) is classified
as held for sale if the carrying amount is recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than
through a continuing use and the asset (or disposal
group) is available for sale in its present condition.



AR A IR AR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EEGFEOR ()

2.16 FRfE i B /Y IR By & 2 (B
TG ()
RE D BRFHIELERBA - SERE
BE (FELEHAAMBESEEER
BE) WREAEZERNEEVERE
ERFE - BEVBEDBABIELER
AREELE - FERBEE (A AL
ZETEERIN s EEEEURE
B A FENRHERAME T 2 HIE
EAMRBELEHBEE  oREE (R
B AR M2 R R NIRERIN) - R
e RREYE  AMED BRREL
€ MERERTE2NETBORE -

REBFERBDEER D BRFTIELE
WINADBERFELEZHEAS - 5
FREBEERT TRHEITEREH

HRAE D BARHELERAIZREIA
DERFIELE 2L EEEMNIFRDE
ETNBNA L fERRE - KNEEIAZ
BERDBABELERMANREE
(KAEZEERRARADBRFELE
BRI EE ARMITE  BHRERE
R AEBRRAETNHEZAZEEN
RO ERER 2 BEEE -

AEEGIZ LD BRFIELENIERS
BERERRENHEZA - EREZ
EAREHUR ARG AEAPTRFEE -

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.16 Non-current assets (or disposal groups) held for
sale (Continued)

Immediately before the initial classification as held
for sale, the carrying amounts of the non-current
assets (and all individual assets and liabilities in the
disposal group) shall be measured in accordance
with applicable HKFRSs. Then, on initial classification
as held for sale and until disposal, the non-current
assets (except for certain assets as explained below),
or disposal groups, are recognised at the lower of
their carrying amount and fair value less costs to
sell. Deferred tax assets, financial assets (other than
investments in subsidiaries and associates), insurance
contracts and investment properties, even if held for
sale, would continue to be measured in accordance
with the policies set out elsewhere in Note 2.

As long as a non-current asset is classified as held
for sale, or is included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale, the non-current asset is not
depreciated or amortised.

If a non-current asset previously classified as held for
sale, or included in a disposal group that is classified
as held for sale no longer met the recognition criteria
stated above, the Group measures that asset at the
lower of its carrying amount before that asset was
classified as held for sale, adjusted for any depreciation,
amortisation or revaluation that would have been
recognised had that asset not been classified as held
for sale, and its recoverable amount at the date of the
subsequent decision not to sell.

The Group includes any required adjustment to the
carrying amount of a non-current asset that ceases to
be classified as held for sale in income from continuing
operations at the date of the subsequent decision not
to sell.

(N
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.17 Other debtors

Other debtors are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
effective interest method, less impairment losses, if
any.

2.18 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks
and in hand, deposits held at call with banks, cash
investments with original maturity of three months or
less from the date of investment less bank overdrafts.

2.19 Financial liabilities — Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net
of transaction costs incurred. Transaction costs are
incremental costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial liability,
including fees and commissions paid to the borrowers.
Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised
cost with any difference between the amount initially
recognised and redemption value is recognised in the
income statement over the period of the borrowings,
together with any interest and fees payable, using the
effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liabilities for at least twelve months
after the reporting date.

2.20 Financial liabilities — Creditors and payables
Creditors and payables are initially recognised at fair

value and are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.21 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and
the amount can be reliably estimated. Where there are
a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of
obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even
if the likelihood of an outflow of economic benefits
with respect to any one item included in the same class
of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.

Where the Group expects a provision to be reimbursed,
for example under an insurance contract, the
reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset but
only when the reimbursement is virtually certain.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.22 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because
it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed
in the notes to the consolidated financial statements.
When a change in the probability of an outflow of
economic benefits occurs so that the outflow is
probable, it will then be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from
past events and whose existence will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain events not wholly within the control of
the Group.

A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed
in the notes to the consolidated financial statements
when an inflow of economic benefits is probable. When
the inflow is virtually certain, an asset is recognised.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.23 Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the consolidated financial statements
of each of the Group’s entities are measured using
the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong Dollars, which is the Company’s functional
and presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign
exchange gains or losses resulting from the settlement
of such transactions and from the translation at closing
exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in
the income statement.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities, such as equity instruments held
at FVPL, are reported as part of the fair value gains or
losses in the income statement. Translation differences
on non-monetary items, such as equity investments at
FVOCI, are included in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in equity.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.23 Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the Company’s presentation
currency are translated into the presentation currency
as follows:

- assets and liabilities in their statement of financial
position are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that statement of financial position;

- income and expenses in their income statement
are translated at average exchange rates,
unless these average exchange rates are not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing at the transaction
dates. In such case income and expenses are
translated at the dates of the transactions; and

- all resulting exchange differences are recognised
as a separate component of equity.

Exchange differences arising from the translation of the
net investments in foreign operations are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange translation
reserve. When a foreign operation is partially disposed
of or sold, the cumulative amount of the exchange
differences relating to that foreign operation is
reclassified from equity to the income statement as
part of the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of that foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.24 Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax
assets and liabilities are recognised in the income
statement except to the extent that they relate to
items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case they are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantially enacted at the reporting date, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from
unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the assets can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those
that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary differences or in periods into
which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset
can be carried back or forward. The same criteria are
adopted when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and
credits, that is, those differences are taken into account
if they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a
period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can
be utilised.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.24 Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes,
the initial recognition of assets and liabilities that
affect neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided
they are not part of a business combination), and
temporary differences relating to investments in
subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the
reversal and it is probable that the differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that they
will reverse in the future.

Where investment property is carried at its fair value
in accordance with the accounting policy set out in
Note 2.7, the amount of deferred tax recognised is
measured using the tax rates that would apply on sale
of that investment property at its carrying value at
the reporting date unless that investment property
is depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of
the economic benefits embodied in that investment
property over time, rather than through sale. In all
other cases, the amount of deferred tax recognised is
measured based on the expected manner of realisation
or settlement of the carrying amount of the assets
and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantially
enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at each reporting date and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit
to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the
extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Group
has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.24 Income tax (Continued)

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Group intends either to settle on a net basis,
or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on the same taxable entity.

2.25 Share capital

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.26 Revenue recognition

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it
arises from the sale of goods, the provision of services
or the use by others of the Group’s assets under leases
in the ordinary course of the Group’s business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer, or the lessee has
the right to use the asset, at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected to be
entitled, excluding those amounts collected on behalf
of third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or
other sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade
discounts.

If control of the goods and services transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract
by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of that performance obligation. Otherwise,
revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the goods and services.
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EBPR7AE] Min Xin Holdings Limited

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.26 Revenue recognition (Continued)

Where the contract contains a financing component
which provides a significant financing benefit to
the customer for more than 12 months, revenue
is measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that
would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
with the customer, and interest income is accrued
separately under the effective interest method. Where
the contract contains a financing component which
provides a significant financing benefit to the Group,
revenue recognised under that contract includes the
interest expense accreted on the contract liability
under the effective interest method. The Group takes
advantage of the practical expedient in HKFRS 15
and does not adjust the consideration for any effects
of a significant financing component if the period of
financing is 12 months or less.

Further details of the Group’s revenue recognition
policies are as follows:

(a) Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method. For financial
assets measured at amortised cost or FVOCI (recycling)
that are not credit-impaired, the effective interest rate
is applied to the gross carrying amount of the assets.
For credit-impaired financial assets, the effective
interest rate is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross
carrying amount net of loss allowance) of the assets.



AR A IR AR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EEGFEOR ()

2.26 Wt R (55)
(b) HEYEMEIA

BRIFAEARKRUENEEGERHESR
EERAMEMNEREN > ZRIEXHEEZHE
TWARZHE MR ENFIUEER
DERNEER AR - EXHEEHHEN
W) REN R R AR NER S
EFUGBENAR D - TMRIEER
HEXRm A FHEN TN RN S5
B A FERABUA

(C) Eﬁ A%\ LI&]\

P B A A s R IR R R ) e N 458 i 52
Ry T IARERR o

(d) FIREE G
EERER A A ERERARBERI

N2
= o
I

B B OR B 70 AR HA B IR L 0 DA e as A
IR o RAEREBEINBE WEEEZ R A K
m BRI A B ER DR B 5 AR AR W
REEME - REUNBRAS AT Z 258D
(e) EHHIZ

ERBEREREE AL

() SHEIRE

W B PSR X TR RER o

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.26 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(b) Rental income from investment properties

Rental income receivable under operating leases
is recognised in the income statement in equal
installments over the periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived
from the use of the leased asset. Lease incentives
granted are recognised in the income statement as
an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Variable lease payments that do not depend
on an index or a rate are recognised as income in the
accounting period in which they are earned.

(c¢) Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholder’s
right to receive payment is established.

(d) Short-term insurance contracts

Gross premiums from the sale of short-term insurance
contracts are recorded when written.

Earned premiums are recognised as revenue
proportionally over the period of coverage. The portion
of premium received on in-force contracts that relates
to unexpired risks at the reporting date is reported as
the unearned premium liability. Premiums are shown
before deduction of commission.

(e) Management fee

Management fee is recognised upon the provision of
services.

(f) Sales of motor vehicles

Revenue is recognised when the customer takes
control of and accepts the motor vehicles.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.26 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(g) Government grants

Government grants are recognised as income initially
when there is reasonable assurance that they will
be received and that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them. Grants that compensate
the Group for expenses incurred are recognised as
income on a systematic basis in the same periods in
which the expenses are incurred.

2.27 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in the income statement
in the period in which they are incurred, except to
the extent that they are capitalised as being directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of an asset which necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended
use or sale.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being
incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare
the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or
ceased when substantially all the activities necessary
to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or
sale are interrupted or completed.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.28 Employee benefits

(a) Short-term employee benefits

Salaries and annual bonuses are paid or accrued in the
year in which the associated services are rendered by
employees. When payment or settlement is deferred
and the effect would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.

(b) Retirement benefit costs

The Group pays contributions to publicly or privately
administered pension plans on a mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis. These pension plans
are defined contribution schemes which the Group
pays fixed contributions and has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been paid.
The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to
pay further contributions if the fund does not hold
sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits
relating to employee services rendered in the current
and prior periods.

The Group’s contributions are recognised as employee
benefits expense when they are due and are reduced
by contributions forfeited by those employees
who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in the
contributions. Prepaid contributions are recognised as
an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction
in future payments is available.
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EBPR7AE] Min Xin Holdings Limited

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.28 Employee benefits (Continued)

(c) Employee’s leave entitlements

Employee’s entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. An accrual is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result
of services rendered by employees up to the reporting
date.

Employee’s entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

(d) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment
is terminated before the normal retirement date, or
whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy
in exchange for these benefits. The Group recognises
termination benefits when it is demonstrably
committed to either terminating the employment of
current employees according to a detailed formal plan
or providing termination benefits as a result of an offer
made to encourage voluntary redundancy without
realistic possibility of withdrawal. Benefits falling due
more than twelve months after the reporting date are
discounted to present value.

2.29 Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in these consolidated
financial statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of
allocating resources to, and assessing the performance
of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.29 Segment reporting (Continued)

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products or
services, the nature of production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature
of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated
if they share a majority of these criteria.

2.30 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the shareholders of the
Company is recognised as a liability in the Group’s and
the Company’s financial statements in the period in
which the dividends are approved for distribution.

2.31 Related parties
For the purposes of these consolidated financial
statements, a related party is a person or entity that is

related to the Group.

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;

(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s
parent.
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EBPR7AE] Min Xin Holdings Limited

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.31 Related parties (Continued)

(b)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(M)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

the entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

one entity is an associate or a joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or a joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the Group.

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in Note 2.31(a).

a person identified in Note 2.31(a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity or is a
member of the key management personnel
of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT

The preparation of financial statements requires
management to make estimates and assumptions
concerning the future that affect the reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses in these
consolidated financial statements. The application of
assumptions and estimates means that any changes
of them, either due to changes of management’s
judgement or the evolvement of the actual
circumstances, would cause the Group’s financial
position and results to differ.

Estimates and judgement are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
The Group believes that the assumptions and estimates
that have been made in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are appropriate and
that these consolidated financial statements therefore
present fairly the Group’s financial position and results
in all material respects.

The estimates and assumptions that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next twelve
months are discussed below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Estimate of fair value of investment properties

The best evidence of fair value of investment
properties held by the Group is current prices in an
active market for similar lease or other contracts. In the
absence of such information, the Group determines
the amount within a range of reasonable fair value
estimates. In making this judgement, the Group
considers information including current prices in
an active market for properties of different nature,
condition or location (or subject to different lease or
other contracts) adjusted to reflect those differences,
or recent prices of similar properties in less active
markets with adjustments to reflect any changes in
economic conditions since the date of the transactions
that occurred at those prices. As at 31 December 2019,
the fair value of the Group’s investment properties was
approximately HK$159.42 million (Note 16).

3.2 Investment in XIB

The Company holds approximately 9.7635%
shareholding in XIB. The Company considered that it
has the ability to exercise significant influence over the
financial and operating policy decisions of XIB through
its two representatives on the board of directors
of XIB as well as the participation in policy-making
processes through the representations in committees
set up by the board of directors of XIB even though
the Company holds less than 20% of the voting power
of XIB. Accordingly, the Company considers that
XIB will continue to be classified as an associate of
the Company and the Company'’s interest in XIB will
continue to be accounted for using equity method in
accordance with the HKFRSs (Note 17).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Casualty and property insurance contract
liabilities

For casualty and property insurance contracts,
estimates have to be made for both the expected
ultimate costs of claims reported at the reporting date
and for the expected ultimate costs of claims incurred
but not reported (“IBNR”) at the reporting date. It may
take a significant period of time before the ultimate
costs of claims can be established with certainty
and for some type of policies, IBNR claims form the
majority of the insurance liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position. The ultimate costs of
outstanding claims are estimated by using a range of
standard actuarial claims projection techniques, such
as the Bornhuetter-Ferguson (“BF”) method.

The main assumption underlying these techniques
is that past claims development experience can be
used to project future claims development and hence
ultimate costs of claims. As such, these methods
extrapolate the development of paid and incurred
losses, average cost per claim and claim numbers
based on the observed development of earlier years
and expected loss ratios. Historical claims development
is mainly analysed by accident year, as well as by
significant business lines and claim types. Large claims
are usually separately addressed, either by being
reserved at the face value based on loss adjustors’
estimates or separately projected in order to reflect
their future development. The assumptions used are
those implicit in the historical claims development
data on which the projections are based. Additional
qualitative judgement is used to assess the extent to
which past trends may not apply in future (for example
to reflect one-off occurrence, changes in external or
market factors such as public attitudes of claiming,
economic conditions, levels of claims inflation, judicial
decisions and legislation, as well as internal factors
such as portfolio mix, policy conditions and claims
handling procedures), so as to arrive at the estimated
ultimate costs of claims that present the likely outcome
from the range of possible outcomes, taking into
account all of the uncertainties involved.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT (Continued)

3.4 Current income tax and deferred income tax

The Group is subject to income tax in various
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required
in determining the amounts of the provision for
income tax and the timing of the payment of the
related income tax. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain during the ordinary course of business.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the provisions for current
income tax and deferred income tax in the period in
which such determination is made. As at 31 December
2019, the Group had deferred income tax liabilities of
approximately HK$36.38 million (Note 31). The deferred
income tax liabilities will increase or decrease by
approximately HK$2.49 million if the actual applicable
tax rate differs by 1%.

3.5 Critical accounting estimates and judgement of
an associated financial institution

The Group’s major associated financial institution,
XIB Group, is principally conducted banking business
in Mainland China, Hong Kong and Macau (Note 17).
The management of XIB Group has prepared a set
of consolidated financial statements for the Group’s
reporting purposes. In preparing its consolidated
financial statements, the accounting policies of
XIB Group have been aligned, where necessary, in
the consolidated financial statements to ensure
consistency with those accounting policies adopted
by the Group. Certain critical accounting estimates
and judgement have been applied by XIB Group as
described below:
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT (Continued)

3.5 Critical accounting estimates and judgement of
an associated financial institution (Continued)

(a) Classification of financial assets

The classification of financial assets is based on two
criteria: the business model for managing the financial
assets; and whether the financial assets’ contractual
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding. The
management of XIB Group has made an assessment of
the objective of the business model in which an asset
is held at a portfolio level because this best reflected
the way the business is managed and information is
provided to management. The assessment of whether
the contractual cash flows on financial assets are solely
comprised of principal and interest was made based on
the facts and circumstances as at the initial recognition
of the assets. In assessing whether the contractual cash
flows are solely payments of principal and interest,
XIB Group considered the contractual terms of the
financial asset. This included assessing whether the
financial asset contained a contractual term that could
change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows
such that it would not meet this condition.

(b) Fair value of financial instruments

The fair values of financial instruments that are not
quoted in active markets are determined by XIB Group
using valuation techniques. Valuation techniques used
include market comparison approach and discounted
cash flows analysis and models. To the extent practical,
models use only observable data, however areas such
as weighted average cost of capital, credit risks (both
own and counterparty), volatilities and correlations
require management of XIB Group to make estimates.
Changes in assumptions about these factors could
affect reported fair values of financial instruments.
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EBPR7AE] Min Xin Holdings Limited

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT (Continued)

3.5 Critical accounting estimates and judgement of
an associated financial institution (Continued)

(c¢) Impairment allowances on loans and advances

XIB Group adopts ECL model for measurement of
impairment allowances on loans and advances. ECLs
are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses.
It will no longer be necessary for a loss event to occur
before an impairment loss is recognised under ECL
model. Therefore it may result in earlier recognition of
credit losses as either 12 month ECLs or lifetime ECLs
on XIB Group’s loans and advances depending on the
facts and circumstances. When determining whether
the credit risk of a loan and advance has increased
significantly since initial recognition and when
estimating ECLs, XIB Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information and analysis, based on
XIB Group’s historical experience and informed credit
assessment and including forward-looking information.
Credit losses are measured as the present value of all
cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash
flows due to XIB Group in accordance with the contract
and the cash flows that XIB Group expects to receive)
which are discounted at the effective interest rate of
the individual loan and advance. The methodology
and assumptions used in assessing the credit risk and
determining whether a loan and advance is credit-
impaired and the amount of ECLs recognised are
reviewed at each reporting date. Any change in the
amount of ECL is recognised as an impairment gain or
loss in profit or loss.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT (Continued)

3.5 Critical accounting estimates and judgement of
an associated financial institution (Continued)

(d) Estimation of impairment allowance on
goodwill

XIB Group has recognised a consolidated goodwill
on acquisition of approximately 64.31% shareholding
in CYB at the date of acquisition based on the costs
of acquisition and the fair value of identifiable net
assets of CYB. In assessing the impairment of the
consolidated goodwill, the recoverable amount
of CYB cash-generating units is determined based
on the value in use calculation. The value in use
calculation requires XIB Group to estimate the future
cash flow projections of CYB cash-generating units
based on financial budgets covering judgement and
assumptions made by senior management and the
pre-tax discount rate in order to calculate the present
value. Based on the impairment assessment performed
by XIB Group on such consolidated goodwill at 31
December 2019, no impairment loss was recognised.
However, as key assumptions on which management
of XIB Group has made in respect of future cash flow
projections are subject to change, an adverse change
in the assumptions could cause the carrying amount to
exceed its recoverable amount.
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{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors

The Group’s business activities expose it to a variety
of insurance risk and financial risks including market
risk (including foreign exchange risk, price risk and
interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. This note
summarises the Group’s exposure to these risks, as well
as its objectives, policies and processes for managing
and the methods used to measure these risks.

The Group's investment policy is to prudently invest
its funds in a manner which satisfies the Group’s
liquidity requirements and generates optimal returns
to the Group within a manageable risk level. The
Group’s overall risk management focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
performance.

The Board, representing the interest of shareholders,
is the highest decision making authority of the
Group and has the ultimate responsibility for risk
management. The Board has adopted procedures
for evaluating and approving significant investment
decisions. Given the nature of the Group’s financial
assets and liabilities, their risk exposures are monitored
by the Group primarily on a qualitative basis.

The General Manager Meeting comprises the
General Manager (“GM”) and senior management
of the Company, is responsible for managing the
Group’s various types of risks, approving detailed
risk management policies, and approving material
risk exposures or transactions within its authority
delegated by the Board.

The Group has put in place an internal control system,
including establishment of the Group’s organisation
structure that sets adequately clear lines of authority
and responsibility for monitoring compliance with
policies, procedures and limits. Proper reporting lines
also provide sufficient independence of the control
functions from the business areas, as well as adequate
segregation of duties throughout the organisation
which helps to promote appropriate internal control
environment.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Insurance risk

The Group issues contracts that transfer insurance risk.
This section summarises these risks and the way the
Group manages such risks.

The risks under any one insurance contract are the
possibility that the insured event occurs and the
uncertainty of the amount of the resulting claims. By
the very nature of an insurance contract, these risks are
random and therefore unpredictable.

For a portfolio of insurance contracts where the theory
of probability is applied to pricing and provisioning,
the principal risk that the Group faces under its
insurance contracts is that the amount of the actual
claims exceed the carrying amount of the insurance
liabilities. This could occur because the frequency or
severity of claims are greater than estimated. Insurance
events are random and the actual numbers and
amounts of claims will vary from year to year from the
level established using statistical techniques.

Experience shows that the larger the portfolio of
similar insurance contracts, the smaller the relative
variability about the expected outcome will be. In
addition, a more diversified portfolio is less likely to be
affected across the board by a change in any subset of
the portfolio.

Factors that aggravate insurance risk include lack of
risk diversification in terms of type and amount of risk,
geographical location and type of industry covered.

(i)  Frequency and severity of claims

The frequency and severity of claims can be affected by
several factors. The most significant are the increasing
level of awards for the damage suffered and the
increase in number of cases coming to court that were
inactive or latent for a long period of time. Estimated
inflation is also a significant factor due to the long
period typically equired to settle these cases.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Insurance risk (Continued)

(i)  Frequency and severity of claims (Continued)

The Group manages these risks through its underwriting
strategy, adequate reinsurance arrangements and claims
handling.

The underwriting strategy attempts to ensure that
the underwritten risks are well diversified in terms of
type and amount of risk, industry and geographical
location.

Underwriting limits are in place to enforce appropriate
risk selection criteria. For example, the Group has the
right to re-price, cancel or not to renew a contract, it
can impose deductibles and it has the right to reject
the payment of fraudulent claim. Insurance contracts
also entitle the Group to pursue third parties for
payment of some or all costs (subrogation). Unless the
legislation requires, the Group's strategy limits the total
exposure of any individual policy to a certain amount.

The reinsurance arrangements include facultative,
proportional treaties and excess of loss coverage. The
effect of such reinsurance arrangements is that the
Group should not suffer total net insurance losses more
than the prescribed amount. In addition to the overall
reinsurance program, additional reinsurance protection
for any individual risk will be arranged when necessary.

The concentration of insurance risk before and after
reinsurance by territory in relation to type of insurance
accepted is summarised below, with reference to the
carrying amounts of the insurance liabilities (gross and
net of reinsurance) arising from insurance contracts:



AR A IR AR
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

P Bar Ko A %5 B 8 L (48) 4 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)
4.1 PREg R BB IR B R R (48) 4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) PrBeEpE (%) (a) Insurance risk (Continued)
(i) BEMEEREEREE (&) (i) Frequency and severity of claims (Continued)
2019
-
FEET BWER
AE  General Property Hith mE
Motor  liability = damage Others Total
BFr BEFr EETT BT EEFrn
HK$’000  HKS'000  HK$’000  HKS'000  HK$’000
E) Gross
&5 Hong Kong 15,358 13,492 1,960 871 31,681
R Macau 9,032 781 44,512 1,864 56,189
RMEEHEE £ Total insurance liabilities, gross 24,390 14,273 46,472 2,735 87,870
k] Net
B Hong Kong 13,410 12,363 1,751 605 28,129
BP9 Macau 8,380 693 40,017 1,675 50,765
RISEEHEME B  Total insurance liabilities, net 21,790 13,056 41,768 2,280 78,894
2018
—fk
EREE FWER
/7% General  Property Hit ek
Motor liability ~ damage Others Total
BEFr BEFT EEFr BEFT FEFT
HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000
et Gross
é,% Hong Kong 19,423 23,029 107 492 43,051
R Macau 5,323 1,015 31,229 2,387 39,954
R EF4ME - £5  Total insurance liabilities, gross 24,746 24,044 31,336 2,879 83,005
R Net
B4 Hong Kong 17,236 21,487 60 485 39,268
R Macau 5,184 920 29,210 2,086 37,400
RIS FEE B5E  Total insurance liabilities, net 22,420 22,407 29,270 2,571 76,668

/=

ZZ—NFFR Annual Report 2019

/¢
\



186

ARG TR LR
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EIEES

R B b P 655 JEL B 7 B ()

i

4.1 PREgE S E BRI R (%)

(a) PREgEFR ()

(ii) 15 & 7R HK A (8 TR 7 T E 1

RBRENNBENELERER M - K
SEARMBRANHRELENRRE
WEE  BMEEANEOHTERT
B gRBER—BREREAEHE -
BB EHAERERORERHELK
NEHSE - HERONRSRENEH
MEENKHEXIETEHENZE - It
FEHTBRERIEOTHEANE EEL
pRERANRRERIEFER - tE
ZUE’JWTTF% %%E)\%%%E’Jifkﬁ—
E - BRABERS - REEBNONRK
BEBATHEBINMBERNBALEE
ERMNIRERE

ARt BEEXRABRREEREELNER
E’ﬂ% HORRTERH R BB S B A AT I

A - NEBIRETAE A IEE g
T%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ?%ﬁ*ﬂ’]ﬁ%\ﬂ DEREENE
Fo B2 - mRREREER ST

EME  RRERATREE A E KRR
BETR - LEFRONETBERNER
AREBEERZRNRERBENER
T EE2WERBHNRERENE
we - MRKnHERIEENESGS o

EBPR7AE] Min Xin Holdings Limited

INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Insurance risk (Continued)

(i) Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future claims
payments

Claims on insurance contracts are payable on a claim-
occurrence basis. The Group is liable for all insured
events that occurred during the term of the contract
even if the loss is discovered after the end of the
contract term. As a result, liability claims are settled
over a long period of time and a larger element of
claims provision relates to incurred but not reported
claims. There are several variables that affect the
amounts and timing of cash flows from these contracts.
These mainly relate to the inherent risks by individual
contract holders and the risk management procedures
adopted. The compensation paid on these contracts
is the monetary awards granted for bodily injury
suffered. Such awards are lump-sum payments that are
calculated as the present value of the lost of earnings
and rehabilitation expenses that the injured party will
incur as a result of the accident.

The estimated costs of claims include direct expenses
to be incurred in settling claims, net of the expected
subrogation value and other recoveries. The Group
takes all reasonable steps to ensure that it has
appropriate information regarding its claims exposures.
However, given the uncertainty in establishing claims
provisions, it is likely that the final outcome will prove
to be different from the original liabilities established.
The liabilities for these contracts comprise provisions
for IBNR, provisions for reported claims not yet paid
and provisions for unexpired risks at the reporting
date.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Insurance risk (Continued)

(i) Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future claims
payments (Continued)

In calculating the estimated costs of unpaid claims (both
reported and not reported), the Group’s estimation
techniques are a combination of loss-ratio-based
estimates (where the loss ratio is defined as the ratio
between the ultimate costs of insurance claims and
insurance premiums earned in a particular financial year
in relation to such claims) and estimates based upon
actual claims experience using predetermined formulae
where greater weight is given to actual claims experience
as time passes.

The estimation of IBNR is generally subject to a
greater degree of uncertainty than the estimation
of the costs of settling claims already notified to the
Group, where information about the claim event is
available. In estimating the amounts of IBNR which
make reasonable provisions for the claims and the
unexpired risks, it is necessary to project future costs
of claims and associated claims expenses and simulate
the outcomes of claims liabilities using models. These
models are simplified representation of many legal,
social and economic forces and may not be entirely
appropriate for the types of insurance business being
analysed. It is certain that actual future claims and
claims expenses will not develop exactly as projected
and may vary significantly from the projections.

In estimating the liabilities for the costs of
reported claims not yet paid the Group considers
any information available from loss adjusters and
information on the costs of settling claims with similar
characteristics in previous periods. Large claims
are assessed on a case-by-case basis or projected
separately in order to allow for the possible distortive
effect of their development and incidence on the rest
of the portfolio.
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EBPR7AE] Min Xin Holdings Limited

INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Insurance risk (Continued)

(i) Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future claims
payments (Continued)

Where possible, the Group adopts multiple techniques
to estimate the required level of provisions. This
provides a greater understanding of the trends
inherent in the experience being projected. The
projections given by the various methodologies also
assist in estimating the range of possible outcomes.
The most appropriate estimation technique is selected
taking into account the characteristics of the business
class and the extent of the development of each
accident year.

(iii)  Process used to decide on assumptions

The Group uses several statistical methods to
incorporate the various assumptions made in order
to estimate the ultimate costs of claims. The choice
of selected results for each accident year of each
class of business depends on an assessment of the
technique that has been most appropriate to observed
historical developments. In certain instances, different
techniques or combination of techniques have been
selected for individual accident year or group of
accident years within the same class of business.

In estimating the claims liabilities of the Group'’s
motor, employees’ compensation and property
damage insurance portfolio, the paid and incurred loss
development methods supplemented by BF method
are applied. For other classes of insurance portfolio, the
incurred loss development method is used to project
the claims liabilities.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Insurance risk (Continued)

(iii)  Process used to decide on assumptions (Continued)

The paid and incurred loss development methods
are used to project the ultimate costs of the claims,
and the BF method relies on a gradual transition
from an estimated loss ratio to an experience-rated
development. BF method is applied to the more recent
accident years, for which the paid and incurred loss
development methods may yield less accurate results.

(iv)  Sensitivity analysis - sensitivity of insurance claims
development tables

The reasonableness of the estimation process is tested
by an analysis of sensitivity around different scenarios.
The change in the monetary awards granted for bodily
injury suffered and also the employers’ liabilities
claims are the most critical to the assumptions used to
estimate the liabilities for these insurance contracts.

The Group believes that the liabilities for these claims
carried at the reporting date are adequate. However,
an increase of 10% in the costs of these claims would
require the recognition of an additional loss of
approximately HK$3.2 million (2018: approximately
HK$4.2 million) net of reinsurance.

The impact on the profit before taxation described
above does not take into account of changes in other
variables, as they are considered to be less material.
Such an assessment and the relative materiality of
individual variable may change in the future.

In addition to scenario testing, the development of
insurance liabilities provides a measure of the Group’s
ability to estimate the ultimate costs of claims. The
table below illustrates how the Group’s estimate of net
claims outstanding of the Group’s motor, employees’
compensation and property damage insurance
portfolio for each accident year has changed at
successive reporting dates.
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(a) PRBgEBE (48)

(iv) SRR — (RER G182 R A

INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Insurance risk (Continued)

(iv)  Sensitivity analysis — sensitivity of insurance claims

BEIRZR (&) development tables (Continued)
JTERE Motor insurance
EHEE Accident year 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 #8% Total
BEFT EEFT EETT BEFT EETFT | AR
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 | HKS’000
it RAEERE Estimate of ultimate costs of claims
RENFE atend of accident year 7,549 10,067 16,561 9,269 7,931
—&f one year later 6,831 7,468 11,578 15,306
—EE two years later 5,189 7819 18,675
—Fik three years later 4,797 9,579
TUeEiE four years later 5,432
SHIfLEt 2 251BHE  Current estimate of cumulative claims 5,432 9,579 18,675 15,306 7,931 56,923
2AZHNT Cumulative payment to date (5,115) (8376) (14,8100  (11,053) (1,698) | (41,052)
317 1,203 3,865 4,253 6,233 15,871
015FEF2EME  Liabilities in respect of prior years
before 2015 170
16,041

B @ABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited
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DR K B 5 a2 (768 4 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)
4.1 PREg S s B (#8) 4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) PRBg)EFR (48) (a) Insurance risk (Continued)
(iv) SEEZEN — (RGBS 1EEE A5 (iv)  Sensitivity analysis - sensitivity of insurance claims
BEH 7 (&) development tables (Continued)
ZTIRE Employees’ compensation insurance
ENEE Accident year 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 % Total
BEFT  BEFT  BETr BT BT | BEFR
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 | HK$'000
fEst FIREERA  Estimate of ultimate costs of claims
RENEFE atend of accident year 11,965 8,981 19,720 4375 2,243
—&f one year later 12,051 6,225 4,365 4,775
—E two years later 7,496 11,761 7,879
—Fik three years later 9,306 14,247
TUeEiE four years later 12,599
SHfht 2 2 Current estimate of cumulative claims 12,599 14,247 7,879 4,775 2243 | 41,743
=S EE Cumulative payment to date (10,376)  (12,380) (5,035) (4,471) (77| (32,339)
2,223 1,867 2,844 304 2,166 9,404
015FEF2EME  Liabilities in respect of prior years
before 2015 799
10,203
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Insurance risk (Continued)

(iv) SEBEEZEDH — (R EEZT R (iv)  Sensitivity analysis - sensitivity of insurance claims
BEIRZR (&) development tables (Continued)
B8 2R B Property damage insurance
ENEE Accident year 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019  ## Total
EEFT  EEFT  BEFT  EEFT  EETT | BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 | HK$’000
R B A Estimate of ultimate costs of claims
RERFR atend of accident year 5 301 9,375 4,263 5,234
—E% one year later 5 236 7,875 4977
—ERB two years later 6 249 8,132
=Fig three years later 3 249
ImEf four years later 3
SHET 2 25TE(E  Current estimate of cumulative claims 3 249 8,132 4977 5234 | 18,595
ZEEHNT Cumulative payment to date 3) (249) (7,875) (4,263) (559) | (12,949)
- - 257 714 4,675 5,646
WI5EEFZEME  Liabilities in respect of prior years
before 2015 -
5,646
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EBPR7AE] Min Xin Holdings Limited

The Group has in place a series of effective reinsurance
covers on a number of short-term insurance products.
The placement of reinsurance is diversified such that
the Group is neither dependent on a single reinsurer
nor are the operations of the Group substantially
dependent upon any single reinsurance contract. The
Group also considers the long-established business
relationship with the reinsurers.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Insurance risk (Continued)

(iv)  Sensitivity analysis — sensitivity of insurance claims
development tables (Continued)

The Group has also limited its exposure to a certain
level by use of reinsurance arrangements in order
to limit exposure to catastrophic events, such as
earthquakes and flood damages. The purpose of these
underwriting and reinsurance strategies is to limit
the exposure to catastrophes to a pre-determined
maximum amount based on the Group’s risk appetite.
For a single realistic catastrophic event, the maximum
exposure is less than 5% of the shareholders’ equity of
the wholly-owned subsidiary, Min Xin Insurance, on a
net basis.

(b) Market risk

Market risk is the risk of loss that results from
movements in market rates and prices. The risk
includes potential losses arising from changes in
foreign exchange rates, interest rates, equity prices and
commodity prices.

The Group’s risk management objective is to enhance
shareholders’ value by maintaining risk exposures
within acceptable limits. The Group’s control of market
risk is based on restricting individual operation
to invest within a list of permissible instruments
authorised by the Board to ensure all risks arising
are thoroughly identified, properly measured and
adequately controlled.

(8
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Market risk (Continued)

(i) Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk of loss due to adverse
movements in foreign exchange rates relating to
investments denominated in foreign currencies. The
Group mainly operates in Hong Kong, Mainland China
and Macau and is exposed to foreign exchange risk
arising from recognised assets and liabilities and
net investments in foreign operations measured in
Renminbi (“RMB”).

In respect of receivables, payables and cash balances
held in currencies other than the functional currency of
the operations to which they relate, the Group ensures
that the net exposure is kept to an acceptable level,
by buying and selling foreign currencies at spot rates
where necessary to address short-term imbalances.

The Group’s borrowings are in the functional
currency of the entity taking out the loans. Given this,
management does not expect that there will be any
significant currency risk associated with the Group's
borrowings.

The following table details the Group’s exposure to
foreign exchange risk arising from recognised assets
and liabilities measured in a currency other than the
functional currency of the entity to which they relate
at the reporting date:

2019 2018
AEB¥TTT ABREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000

WA FEF AHMEE  Financial assets at fair value through
W e EE other comprehensive income 378,492 500,805
H i pEURBE X Other debtors 3,182 1,252
RE NIRITER Cash and bank balances 135,925 176,714
Hib ER BRI N FEETE A Other creditors and accruals (6,816) (8,787)
FET AR HRF 18 Current income tax payable (20,929) (20,929)
489,854 649,055

{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Market risk (Continued)

(i) Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

The following table indicates the approximate changes
in the Group’s profit after taxation (and retained
profits) and other components of equity in response to
reasonably possible changes in the foreign exchange

rates to which the Group has significant exposure at
the reporting date:

2019 2018

HERRE HEREGEIR HNEHBE  HEREGENR
LR/ (TH) REERNEE HEREM A/ (TH) RBENSHZE HiEsHh
Increase/ Effecton ARBINTE Increase/ Effecton AREIBHHFE
(decrease) in profit after Effect on (decrease) in profit after Effect on
foreign  taxationand other foreign taxation and other
exchange retained  components exchange retained components
rate profits of equity rate profits of equity
BAlt VL BETT Bt BT BT
% HK$'000 HKS'000 % HKS'000 HK$'000
AR Renminbi 5 6,228 21,167 5 8443 28,521
(5) (6,228) (21,167) (5) (8,443) (28,521)
FHGRESTIREEXZEH N2 The above sensitivity analysis has been determined

HABEENERERBEFTT=AEE
FEMEMmITAEZINERR  mMAEE
HEE (FFRIERE) Bl T E -

assuming that the change in foreign exchange rate had
occurred and had been applied to remeasure those
financial instruments held by the Group which expose
to foreign exchange risk at the reporting date, and that
all other variables, in particular interest rate, remained
constant.

N

L
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{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Market risk (Continued)

(i) Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

The stated changes represent management’s
assessment of reasonably possible changes in foreign
exchange rates over the period until the next reporting
date. In this respect, it is assumed that the pegged
rate between the Hong Kong Dollars and the United
States Dollars would be materially unaffected by
any changes in movement in value of the United
States Dollars against other currencies. Results of the
analysis as presented in the above table represent
an aggregation of the effects on profit after taxation
and equity of each of the Group’s entities measured
in the respective functional currencies, translated into
Hong Kong Dollars at the exchange rate ruling at the
reporting date for presentation purposes. The analysis
is performed on the same basis for 2018.

The Group is also exposed to foreign exchange
risk from its investments in investees which are in
Renminbi.

(ii)  Pricerisk

The Group is exposed to price risk on investments held
by the Group classified in the consolidated statement
of financial position as financial assets at amortised
cost, at fair value through other comprehensive income
or at fair value through profit or loss.

The Group’s financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss comprise listed equity investments and
unlisted investment funds. Decisions to buy or sell
these investments are based on the performance of
individual investment compared to that of the index
and the Group’s liquidity needs. Financial assets at
fair value through other comprehensive income
comprise listed equity investments. These investments
have been chosen based on their long term growth
potential and are monitored regularly for performance
against expectation.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Market risk (Continued)
(i) Pricerisk (Continued)

At 31 December 2019, it is estimated that if the quoted
prices of investment funds increased or decreased
by 5%, with all other variables held constant, would
increase or decrease the Group’s profit after taxation
and retained profits by approximately HK$4.07 million
(2018: Nil).

The following table indicates the approximate changes
in the Group’s profit after taxation and retained
profits and other components of equity in response
to reasonably possible changes in the relevant stock
market index for listed investments to which the Group
has significant exposure at the reporting date:

2019 2018
REERZY HHRERZEAR WERAM BREREH HERRENR HER A
LR/ (TH) RERNNYE ARSINFE LA/ (TH) RIEANFE ANHr0ye
Increase/ Effect on Effect Increase/ Effect on Effect
(decrease) profit after on other (decrease) profit after on other
intherelevant  taxation and components in the relevant taxation and components
risk variance retained profits of equity risk variance  retained profits of equity
Al BETr BRTT Bl BETT BEFT
% HK$'000 HK$'000 % HK$'000 HKS'000
EHRE2  Stockmarketindex
BERT  inrespect of listed
EY investments
EEES Hang Seng Index 5 732 - 5 16 -
(5) (732) = (5) (16) -
5 A%E Shanghai Composite
Index 5 - 21,281 5 - 28,637
(5) = (21,281) (5) - (28,637)
mETET R4 Nasdag Composite
5 Index 5 121 - 5 - -
(5) (121) = (5) - -
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EBPR7AE] Min Xin Holdings Limited

INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Market risk (Continued)
(ii)  Pricerisk (Continued)

The above sensitivity analysis has been determined
assuming that the reasonably possible changes in the
stock market index had occurred and had been applied
to the exposure to equity price risk in existence at the
reporting date. It is also assumed that the fair values
of the Group’s equity investments would change in
accordance with the historical correlation with the
relevant stock market index and that all other variables
remained constant. The stated changes represent
management’s assessment of reasonably possible
changes in the relevant stock market index over the
period until the next reporting date. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2018.

(iii)  Cash flow and fair value interest rate risks

Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a
financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market interest rates. Cash flow interest rate risk is
the risk that future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates.

The Group’s interest bearing assets and liabilities
mainly comprise bank deposits, over-the-counter
("OTC") bond, bank borrowings and loan from the
controlling shareholder, bore in fixed or floating rates,
which expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk
and cash flow interest rate risk respectively. The Group
manages these risks primarily through maintaining
the maturity profile of these assets and liabilities
within a short to medium period and monitoring the
market interest rate movements so that the Group can
react accordingly when there are adverse interest rate
movements.
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OB b b 165 B 8 B (4 4 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 PREg R BB IR B R R (48) 4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) TIEB (4E) (b) Market risk (Continued)

(i) Bz mERIFEFERE (&) (i) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risks (Continued)
Ti\%ﬁlj RAEEBRE2HBRERITEF The following table indicates the approximate changes
T RITER RIS R E AR R in the Group’s profit after taxation and retained
BRAIEA RS - MATA e profits in response to reasonably possible changes in
BIAE s WAREBRNBRRERN RRE interest rates with all other variables held constant
/ﬁnT‘JE’EEﬁﬁfﬁ%’i‘ : for bank deposits, bank borrowings and loan from the

controlling shareholder at the reporting date:

2019 2018
HERBRENR HERBE R &

RBEENNFTE RERNHOTE

Effect on profit Effect on profit

FIEEE after taxation = after taxation

Changein and retained Changein  and retained

interest rates profits interest rates profits

2& BETT 28 BETFT

Basis points HK$’000 Basis points HKS$'000

BITER Bank deposits 100 7,393 100 11,442
(100) (7,393) (100) (11,442)
SRITIE Bank borrowings 100 (2,075) 100 (2,055)
(100) 2,075 (100) 2,055

ERIREEF  Loan from the controlling shareholder 100 (1,343) 100 -
(100) 1,343 (100) -

v~
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EBPR7AE] Min Xin Holdings Limited

INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Market risk (Continued)

(iii)  Cash flow and fair value interest rate risks (Continued)

The above sensitivity analysis has been determined
assuming that the changes in interest rates had
occurred and had been applied to the exposure to
interest rate risk for financial instruments with variable
interest rates held by the Group at the reporting date.
The 100 basis points increase or decrease represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
changes in interest rates over the period until the next
reporting date. The analysis is performed on the same
basis for 2018.

(c) Creditrisk

The Group is exposed to credit risk, which is the risk
that a customer or counterparty will be unable to
or unwilling to fulfill its repayment obligations for
amounts due to the Group. The Group’s credit risk
is primarily attributable to loans to customers and
interest receivable, insurance related receivables, OTC
bond and other receivables.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each customer
and therefore significant concentrations of credit
risk primarily arise when the Group has significant
exposure to individual customers.

In respect of the insurance related receivables and
other receivables, the Group limits its exposure
to credit risk by screening the counterparties, on-
going monitoring and acquiring collateral from
counterparties. These receivables are required to meet
the Group’s established financial requirements and
the Group will obtain third party guarantees when it
considered necessary.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)

(c) Credit risk (Continued)

The Group has recognised an impairment allowance at
an amount equal to lifetime ECLs for loans to customers
and interest receivable. At 31 December 2019, the
Group'’s impairment allowances on loans to customers
and interest receivable were HK$252.16 million (2018:
HK$266.93 million) and impairment allowances to
loans to customers and interest receivable ratio was
92.32% (2018: 92.11%).

In respect of the OTC bond, the Group will only invest
in investment grade bond with certain selection

criterion imposed.

At 31 December 2019, bank balances were placed with
reputable financial institutions with diversification.

The Group does not provide any guarantees which
would expose the Group to credit risk.
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4 PR S BAEs R (48 4 INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 PRBa B s R B R (4 4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(c) fEEERE () (c) Credit risk (Continued)
AN AEAFAENER M E Mk E The maximum exposure to credit risk at the
SN REFRENEERROZS reporting date without taking into account of any
ERERNGEVBRAARACREE collateral held or other credit enhancement is the
MEREFE - EERRONSESES M net carrying amount of the financial assets stated in
T the consolidated statement of financial position. A

summary of the maximum exposure is as follows:

2019 2018
BT JBMEF T
HK$'000 HKS'000

BEEXNATEDN Financial assets at amortised cost
TREE 3,115 3,129
1R FEWGR Insurance receivable 23,025 13,134
BIRMEE Reinsurance assets 8,976 6,337
ZEEER N ERFE Loans to customers and interest receivable 20,981 22,875
SRITRAESE Banker’s acceptance - 56,186
H{th e U BR 7k Other debtors 23,577 2,927
NE NIRITER Cash and bank balances 1,352,644 1,405,380
1,432,318 1,509,968
BERAREERREERFEERR E’JL* Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
FTHEBEBEREHENTE2 MEFPEN Group's exposure to credit risk arising from insurance
JEUF 215 B b 3 — *%@FTBZE&% receivable are set out in Note 21 and that arising from
REERE23 - loans to customers and interest receivable are set out

in Note 23.

202 {5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(d) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter
difficulty in meeting its cash flow needs or
commitments. Liquidity risk may result from either
inability to raise new funds, sell financial assets quickly
at their fair value, a counterparty failing on repayment
of a contractual obligation or an insurance liability
falling due for payment earlier than expected.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash, readily realisable marketable
securities and adequate committed lines of funding
from reputable financial institutions to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

Individual operating entity within the Group is
responsible for its own cash management, including
the short-term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands.

ZZ—NFFR Annual Report 2019

203

7,

\

Y-




ARG TR LR
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R B b P 655 JEL B 7 B ()

4.1 PRBg B JE R R &R (48)
(d) HEVES AR (4)
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)
(d) Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturity value at the reporting date of the Group’s
reinsurance assets and financial liabilities which
are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows
(including interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current
at the reporting date) and the earliest date the Group
can be required to pay:

2019 2018
£o£7 o5z
Er v FRER BAFITE ERER
FEiEE  E-E4 (BF FEigE A (85
Tt FEEX  EERE) Tt ZEEX  BERE)
EE  contractual  Withinone  Inthe second BEE  contractual  Withinone I the second
Carrying  undiscounted yearor tofifthyear Canrying  undiscounted yearor — tofifthyear
amount cashflow  ondemand inclusive amount cashflow ~— ondemand inclusive
ir  BETL BEFL BEFn | EEFT BEET BEFT R
HK$000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKs'000 HKS000 HKS'000
(] Assets
BRREE Reinsurance assets 8,976 8,976 7947 1,029 6337 6337 4791 1,546
&f Liabilities
Raah Insurance contracts 87,870 87,870 68,554 19,316 83,005 63,005 65,523 17482
(R Insurance payable 16,147 16,147 16,147 - 9,19 9,196 919 -
EERESRETER  Other ceditors and accruals 33,106 33,106 33,106 - 24498 24498 24498 -
HERE Lease liabilities 256 263 198 65 - - - -
i Bank borrowings 259,965 272,856 66,721 206,135 398770 422,968 210619 12349
BRRFER Loan from the controlling
shareholder 199,886 215,066 57,683 157,383 - - - -
597,30 625,308 242,409 382,899 515,469 539667 309836 29831

204 {5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited




AR A IR AR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R B b P 55 JEL B 7 B ()

4.1 PREgE I EBE IR (4

(e) Bt 5 < Al B G P B 5 J B
H

e

)

AREENB LSRR BEREBRR
BRI L EHE B IRAMBR A

(i) Bk

EREENKLETHEEAESBEK

m%%ﬂ Ex%ﬁ%ﬂ ‘m@
MERMNTSRER (BFEIMNERR - B
REREFERR) o EREEFEM

Bl AN EE LSRR o EiREE
#8122 E B E e B 2 TR S )T
o - RREER S EHMBEREBNTH

I=E
rmE°

EREENEZS ([EREZS]) 4
TRRERHE HsREREREE
fE%?ﬁTZ/EE’JH EIREES - HIEAR
FEEI’]J—L EIBER &%‘%F% - BIESNER
7T'JYH ERRER - ERTES
mﬂlﬂ&#@IEimﬂIA—rﬁiﬁﬂﬁﬁé
BHER - sERREERRLEFEE
REFSMERASAHFIBENT - 1t
S - A BEPERTRRFT B B B E R E IR
MIZEFIRFEITEULNED ©

INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)

(e) Financial risk management of associated
financial institution

The financial risks exposure and management
objectives and policies of the Group’s associated
financial institution, XIB Group, are summarised as
below:

(i) Overview

The activities of XIB Group expose it to a variety of
financial risks including credit risk, liquidity risk and
market risk (including foreign exchange risk, price
risk and interest rate risk). XIB Group continuously
identifies, evaluates and monitors these risks. XIB
Group’s aim is to achieve an appropriate balance
between risk and return and minimise potential
adverse effects on its financial performance.

The board of directors of XIB Group (“XIB Board”)
provides strategy for overall risk management.
Its senior management establishes related risk
management policies and procedures under the
strategy approved by the XIB Board, including written
policies covering specific areas, such as foreign
exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, use of
derivative financial instruments and non-derivative
financial instruments. Those risk management
policies and procedures are implemented by various
departments after XIB Board’s approval. In addition,
its Internal Audit Department is responsible for the
independent review of risk management and control
environment.

(X
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{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)

(e) Financial risk management of associated
financial institution (Continued)

(ii)  Creditrisk

Credit risk is one of the main risks that XIB Group faces
in its operations which arises primarily from loans
and advances, investment portfolios, trade finance,
guarantees and other payment acceptance.

The credit approval policies and procedures of
XIB Group are standardised. Credit rating, risk
measurement, economic capital, various post-lending
management, indicator control, collective assessment,
risk warning and risk reporting are measures for
managing credit risk.

(iii)  Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that XIB Group has to
ensure the availability of adequate funds to meet
its needs to funding deposit withdrawals and other
liabilities as they fall due, as well as being able to
meet its obligations to funding loan originations
and commitments and to take advantage of new
investment opportunities.

XIB Group has set up a series of liquidity indices to
assess and monitor its liquidity risk and reviewed such
indices on a timely basis.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)

(e) Financial risk management of associated
financial institution (Continued)

(iv)  Market risk

XIB Group's market risk arises from open positions in
the trading book and banking book in interest rate,
foreign exchange rate, equities and commodities. The
trading book consists of financial instruments and
commodities that are free of any restrictive covenants
on their tradability and held with trading intent, and
in order to or for the purpose of hedging market risk
of the trading book. The banking book consists of
financial instruments not included in the trading book
(including those financial instruments purchased with
surplus funds and managed in the investment book).

XIB Group has established a structural system of limit
controls including regulatory limits, position limits
and risk limits to identify, monitor and control market
risk. XIB Group performs sensitivity analysis on a
regular basis to assess the interest rate risk and foreign
exchange risk of its trading book and banking book.

Foreign exchange risk

XIB Group conducts the majority of its business
in Renminbi with other transactions in foreign
currencies, therefore XIB Group is exposed to the
fluctuations in the prevailing foreign exchange rates
on its financial position and cash flows. XIB Group
manages its exposure to foreign exchange risk through
management of its net foreign currency position.
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{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Insurance and financial risk factors (Continued)

(e) Financial risk management of associated
financial institution (Continued)

(iv)  Market risk (Continued)
Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that XIB Group’s assets,
liabilities, revenue and economic value would suffer
losses or have the risk of contingent losses due to
fluctuations of interest rates and changes of interest
rates structure. The re-pricing risk, the primary and
most common interest rate risk, arises from the
difference between maturity terms (for fixed interest
rates) or between the re-pricing terms (for floating
interest rates) of XIB Group’s assets, liabilities and off
balance sheet commitments. Cash flow interest rate
risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates.

XIB Group mainly manages its exposure to the interest
rate risk arising from fluctuations in the prevailing
market interest rates on re-pricing, fair value and cash
flows. XIB Group’s business in Mainland China operates
under the interest rate scheme regulated by the
People’s Bank of China. XIB Group controls its interest
rate risk primarily through controlling the distribution
of the maturity date or re-pricing date of loans and
deposits and the asset-liability re-pricing gap.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders of
the Company and benefits for other stakeholders and
to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the
cost of capital.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as total borrowings divided by
total net assets. Total borrowings comprise all bank
borrowings and loan from the controlling shareholder
as shown in the consolidated statement of financial
position. Total net assets comprise all components of
equity attributable to shareholders of the Company
as shown in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

During 2019, the Group’s strategy, which was
unchanged from 2018, was to maintain the gearing
ratio at a healthy level of 30% or below. In order to
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders
of the Company, issue new shares, raise new debt
financing or sell assets to reduce debt.

The gearing ratio of the Group at 31 December 2019

MERBGELERINT : and 2018 were as follows:
2019 2018
BT BT T
HKS’000 HKs'000
B Total borrowings 459,851 398,770
wEERE Total net assets 7,043,337 6,731,820
EARBMEHR Gearing ratio 6.5% 5.9%

BERBELR FATER2019F12 A
31 HA R EE A E RGN (FEFE 28
. 29) FTEK -

The increase in the gearing ratio resulted primarily
from the increase in total borrowings outstanding at
31 December 2019 (Note 28 and 29).
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{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.2 Capital risk management (Continued)

The capital requirements of Min Xin Insurance, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, are mainly
set and regulated by the Insurance Authority and these
requirements are put in place to ensure sufficient
solvency margins. Min Xin Insurance is required to
maintain the value of its assets to be greater than the
aggregate amount of its liabilities and the relevant
amount within the meaning of Section 10 of the
Insurance Ordinance. Min Xin Insurance is also required
to maintain assets in Hong Kong with an amount that is
not less than the aggregate of a prescribed percentage
of its liabilities arising from Hong Kong insurance
business and the relevant amount determined
in accordance with Section 25A of the Insurance
Ordinance.

In addition, the Macau Branch of Min Xin Insurance is
required by the Macau Insurance Companies Ordinance
to set up technical reserves and to maintain a margin
of solvency sufficient to meet the liabilities arising
from its activities in Macau. The technical reserves shall
be guaranteed by equivalent and congruent assets
located in Macau, unless authorised by Autoridade
Monetaria De Macau to utilise overseas assets.

Min Xin Insurance also maintains a healthy capital
ratios in order to support its business objectives and
maximise shareholder’s value. Min Xin Insurance may
adjust the dividend paid to the Company or issue new
shares to the Company to fulfill these requirements.

Min Xin Insurance manages its capital requirements
by assessing any shortfalls between the reported
and required relevant amounts on a regular basis.
Min Xin Insurance fully complied with the externally
imposed requirements of the Insurance Authority and
Autoridade Monetaria De Macau during the reported
financial periods.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.2 Capital risk management (Continued)

Capital risk management of associated financial
institution

XIB Group’s objectives when managing capital are: (i)
to comply with the capital requirements set by the
regulators of the markets where the entities within
XIB Group operate; (ii) to safeguard the ability to
continue as a going concern so that it can continue to
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders; and (iii) to maintain a strong capital base
to support the development of its business.

Capital adequacy and regulatory capital are monitored
by XIB Group’s management, employing techniques
based on the guidelines developed by China Banking
and Insurance Regulatory Commission, for supervisory
purposes.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.3 Fair value of financial instruments

(a) Financial instruments carried at fair value

Fair value estimates are generally subjective in nature,
and are made as of a specific point in time based on
the characteristics of the financial instruments and
relevant market information. The Group measures fair
values using the following hierarchy of methods:

- Level 1: fair value measured using only
unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for
identical instruments at the measurement date.

- Level 2: fair value measured using inputs other
than quoted prices included within Level 1 that
are observable either directly (i.e., as prices) or
indirectly (i.e., derived from prices). This category
includes instruments valued using: quoted market
prices in active markets for similar instruments;
quoted prices for identical or similar instruments
in markets that are considered less than active; or
other valuation techniques where all significant
inputs are directly or indirectly observable from
market data.

- Level 3: fair value measured using inputs that
are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs). This category includes
all instruments where the valuation technique
includes inputs not based on observable data
and the unobservable inputs have a significant
effect on the instrument’s valuation. This
category includes instruments that are valued
based on quoted prices for similar instruments
where significant unobservable adjustments or
assumptions are required to reflect differences
between the instruments.
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INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.3 Fair value of financial instruments (Continued)

(a) Financial instruments carried at fair value
(Continued)

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets (such as listed equity securities measured at
FVPL and FVOCI and listed investment funds measured
at FVPL) is based on quoted market prices at the
reporting date. The quoted market price used for
financial assets held by the Group is the current bid
price. These financial instruments are included in Level
1 of the fair value hierarchy.

The fair value of unlisted investment funds is measured
at quoted price provided by the fund administrators or
published by the fund management companies. Such
quoted prices represent the net asset value per share
of the investment funds which are derived from the fair
value of the underlying assets and securities measured
using value or price provided by independent verifiable
pricing sources. The Group adopted the quoted prices
of the funds as their fair value at the reporting date
and these financial instruments are included in Level 2
of the fair value hierarchy.

During the year there was no transfer of financial
instruments between Level 1 and Level 2 of the fair
value hierarchy, or transfer of financial instruments into
or out of Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. The Group'’s
policy is to recognise transfers between levels of fair
value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period in
which they occur.

The following table presents the carrying value
of financial instruments held by the Group at the
reporting date measured at fair value across the three
levels of the fair value hierarchy, with the fair value of
each financial instrument categorised in its entirety
based on the lowest level of input that is significant to
that fair value measurement:
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43 M THEAVE () 4.3 Fair value of financial instruments (Continued)
(a) DA TEZIMRR 4/ T A (a) Financial instruments carried at fair value
(%) (Continued)
2019 2018
$-20 ECER 258 ag  E-50 £°85 £2EQ ek
Level 1 Level 2 Level3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BRTT  EETT BETT BETT | BEEr B¥Er BEFr 0 BEFr
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
TEUHATEFE  Recurring fair value
measurement
EE Bssets
RATE AR Financial assets at fair value
PANGENER through other comprehensive
BE income 423343 - - 423,343 570417 - - 570417
BATEEBERIE Financial assets at fair value
HeREE through profit or loss 17,020 80,802 - 97,822 306 - - 306
440,363 80,802 - 521,165 570,723 - - 570,723
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B @ABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited

(b) Fair value of financial instruments carried at
other than fair value

The carrying value of financial assets at amortised cost,
trade receivables less impairment losses (if any) and
trade payables are assumed to approximate their fair
value. The fair value of financial liabilities is estimated
by discounting the future contractual cash flows at
the current market interest rate that is available to the
Group for similar financial instruments.

Estimates and judgement are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

In the Directors’ opinion, the fair values of financial
assets and financial liabilities of the Group approximate
their carrying values at the reporting date.
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RERNARMTEEAWZSROT ¢ The amount of each significant category of revenue

recognised during the year is as follows:

2019 2018
BT JBMEF T
HKS$’000 HKS’000
WEIR B F R Net earned insurance premiums
ERBRA Gross insurance premiums 89,815 60,573
RimBEIREEH Movement in unearned insurance premiums (14,289) (5,310)
BRES>HNBER Reinsurance premiums ceded and
B A FE{ R BA reinsurers’ share of movement in
1R E & E) unearned insurance premiums (7,887) (5,372)
,,,,,,, 67,639 | 49,891
BEBEZFEWA () Interest income from loans to customers (a) 5,266 4,708
KEMEHSWA Rental income from investment properties 8,623 9,245
AT EFAEMEE  Dividend income from financial assets
War el EERE at fair value through other
WA comprehensive income 7,714 8,420
RE S Sales of motor vehicles 11,045 930,621
,,,,,,, 32,648 | = 952,994
H bz Other revenues
RITIF R BUWA Interest income from bank deposits 46,819 33,197
BEEXNATEDN Interest income from financial assets at
EEEEFMBUA amortised cost 101 101
BATEFEIBIEZY|BER Dividend income from financial assets
SREER WA at fair value through profit or loss 2,294 20
BT 4 Bh Government grants 2,625 2,229
ERB Management fee - 4
HAth Others 358 262
,,,,,,, 52,197 | 35813
Wi E Total revenues 152,484 1,038,698
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{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL
INFORMATION (Continued)

(@) The interest income from loans to customers for
the year included an interest income accrued for
impaired loans to customers of HK$3,861,000
(2018: HK$4,664,000).

(b) Revenues from sales of motor vehicles to two
customers in Mainland China were approximately
HK$471,101,000 and HK$420,965,000 respectively,
which exceeded 10% of the Group’s revenue for
2018.

The Group identifies its operating segments based on
the reports reviewed internally by the chief operating
decision-makers which include the Board, Executive
Committee and the General Manager Meeting that are
used to make strategic decisions, allocate resources
and assess performance.

The reports to the chief operating decision-makers are
analysed on the basis of business entities, investments
held and investees. For business entities and
investments held, operating performance evaluation
and resources allocation are based on individual
business activity operated and investment held by
the Group. For investees, operating performance
evaluation is based on individual investee of the
Group.
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REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL
INFORMATION (Continued)

The Group has the following reportable operating
segments:

- Financial services: this segment includes the
engagement of banking business through
the Group’s major associates, XIB, CYB and
LIB in Mainland China, Hong Kong and Macau
respectively, and the provision of micro credit
business in Mainland China.

- Insurance: this segment includes the general
insurance business in Hong Kong and Macau.

- Property investment: this segment includes the
leasing of high quality office space in Mainland
China.

- Strategic investment: this segment represents the
Huaneng A-Shares held by the Group.

- Others: this segment includes results of
operations not directly identified under other
reportable segments and corporate activities.

- Trading in motor vehicles: this segment includes
the trading in motor vehicles business ceased in
March 2019.

(8
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{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL
INFORMATION (Continued)

(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, the
Group’s chief operating decision-makers monitor
the results, assets and liabilities attributable to each
reportable segment on the following bases:

Revenues derived from customers, products and
services directly identifiable with individual segment
are reported directly under respective segments. All
direct costs incurred by different segments are grouped
under respective segments. Indirect costs and support
functions’ costs related to the strategic decision
making and day-to-day management of the business
of the Group and corporate activities that cannot be
reasonably allocated to other segments, products
and services are grouped under others. Transactions
between segments are priced based on similar terms
offered to or transacted with external parties. Inter-
segment income and expenses are eliminated on
consolidation. The measure used for reporting segment
profit is “profit for the year”, i.e. profit after taxation
of the business entities, net income generated from
investments held and share of results of investees.

Segment assets include all tangible, intangible and
current assets held by the business entities, net book
value of investments held and share of net assets of
and loans to investees. Segment liabilities include
insurance liabilities, creditors and accruals, income
tax payable and deferred tax liabilities attributable to
respective segments and borrowings managed directly
by the segments or directly related to those segments.
An asset and a liability are grouped under same
segment if the liability is collateralised by the asset.
Dividend payable to shareholders of the Company is
treated as unallocated liabilities in reporting segment
assets and liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL
INFORMATION (Continued)

(%) 5

(a) AR BEERAME () (a) Segment results, assets and liabilities
(Continued)
) ) HEER: AR
SRl AR hERe RHRE it Trading n Inter-segment S
Financial services Insurance Property investment ~ Strategic investment Others motor vehicles* elimination Consolidated
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 219 2018 219 2018 219 2018
BETR | BET | BRI | BEFT| BEFL | BETL | BETR | BRI | BEFL | BEFL| BETR | BETL| BETn | BEr| BEFL | BETL
HKS'000 | HKS000 | HKS'000 | HKS000 | HKS'000 | HKS'000 | HKS'000 | HKSO00 | HKS$'000 | HKSO00 | HKS'000 | HKS000 | HKS'000 | HKS000 | HKS$'000 | HKS000
BZ1A31  Yearended
i34 31 December
& Revenue
ERE Net eamed insurance
ki premiums - | en839| 49891 - - - - - - - - - | ane0 | gm0
ZEER Interest income from
gl [oans to customers 5266 | 4708 = - = - = - = - = - = -1 5266 4708
BRI Rentalincome - Soaen| 43| oM 45 - - - - - - - || 9
REHSA Dividend income - - - - - -] s - - - - - S| s
Eha Other revenues 3,850 2305 3242 1137 90 60 - - 44980 | 31639 35 n - - 5197 35813
9,116 7013 75560 | 56,281 4,034 4652 114 8420 44980 | 31639 35 n - - 141439 | 108077
EEEEEEE Disagoregated by
EBZ155 timing of revenue
BUEEZ  recognitionunder
BEAR HKFRS 15
BiY Point in time - - - - - - - - - S| 1,045 930621 - - 1,045 | 930621
fER Over time - - - - - - - - = - s - . - . -
o - o - o - - - - - 11,045 | 930621 - -1 11,085 | 930621
MREE Revenue from external
g customers 9,116 7013 75,560 | 56,81 4,034 4652 114 8420 44980 | 31,639| 11,080 | 930693 - - | 152,484 | 1,038,698
E08 Inter-segments - - M3 197 00 - - S| 3s9a| 3486 - S| (3e8) - -
n2RAHkE Reportablesegmentrevenue| 9,116 T013) 75773 | S6478| 4,254 4652 114 8420| 48574 | 35125| 11,080 | 930693 | (4,027)] (3683)| 152,484 | 1,038,698
i (E8)/ Other losses)lgains
WE-F8  -net - (390)| (4503)) 7061| (3,365)| (8141) - -1 (339 (99%2) - (5 - -1 (26| (142)
ZEETREN Write back of mpairment
FISEESBE  lossonloansto customers
] and interest receivable 625 | 4016 - - - - - - - - - - - - 6255|4016
BERY Operating expenses (3453)|  (4508) (68,252)| (53972)) (1,531)| (1733 - - (33813)f (31578)| (11,328)f (923851) 3,951 3683 | (114,426)|(1,011959)
SL37)/(FE) Operatingprofitfloss) | 11,918 | 6131|308 9%67| (64d)| (22| ama|  saw| n3er|  645|  (e8)| 687 (76) |05t 1938
BEW Finance costs (10135) 730 (119 - - - - -1 50| (16429 - - m -1 (18,645)|  (26,165)
[EIEBEDNE  Shareof resultsof
2 associates 575,167 | 614071 - - - - - -loam| 3m - - - -| 519179 | 617363
BEAEA/  Profit/loss) before
(BB taxation 576950 | 610465 2,899 9,567 (642)| (522) 174 8420 6877 | (19541) (48)] 6837 35 -| 593,585 | 610526
FI5H (%) Income tax expensel/
Vs cedit (16076)| (s60|  sso| aea| 3s0r|  smal g )| eam| s exf 0939 - -1 2099)| (32430)
KEEER/  Proftfloss) for
(BB the year 560,874 | 585003 | 3449 8303 3,265 (108)f 6,943 7578 | (2,894)| (27584) (186)] 489 35 - | 571,486 | 578090
HEHA Inerestincome oo | 79| 2301 1 - - - - 8365 - - - | sa16 | 38006
KEEFE  Depreciationand
R amortisation for the year 28 7 3,081 1,146 - - - - 846 668 4 4] (1932) -0 1999

* 201993 BERIEE

Business ceased in March 2019
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5 WsR SR ERERE (7E) 5 REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL
INFORMATION (Continued)
(a) T EBEAR - EEMEME (4) (a) Segment results, assets and liabilities
(Continued)
hiiUN Pt
SHER i VL RHRE i Tradingn Inter-segment b
Financial services Insurance Property investment  Strategic investment Others motor vehicles* elimination Consolidated

019 2008 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2008 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 008 2019 218

BRTR | BRTT | BETL | BRTT | BRTE | BRI | B | BRTT | BETE | ERTL | BETR | ERTT | BEFR | ARTT| BETE | BETT
HKS000 | HKSO00 | HKS'o00 | RKSOc0| RSO0 | HESOOD| HKSIO00 | HKSO00 | HKSO0D | HSOGD| RSO0 | HKSOOD| HKS'O00 | HKSO00 | HKSO00 | HESO

R12A31E  At31December

KRAR  TheCompanyand
HERF subsidiaries 135,083 | 126644 | 390,661 | 300349 | 61,391 | 65051 | 423,343 | 570417 (1,162,654 | 1177148 - 68608 | (2134
REBELE  Ivestmentsinassociates | 5,482,955 | 4,942,748 - - - S| a9 | 4595 - - -

2,170,998 | 2308217
5,332,029 | 4988673

bEg Total assets 5,618,038 | 5069392 | 390,661 | 300349 | 61,391 | 65051 | 423,343 | 570417 1,211,928 | 123073 - | 68608 (2134) - | 7703,227 | 7296890

ARAR The Company and

BT subsidiaries 40513 | 224422\ 124965 | 100257 | 18461 | 22293 - -| 278120 | 216432 - 1706 (2,169) -| 659,890 | 565,070
Bef Total liabilities 240,513 | 224422 | 124965 | 100257 | 18461 | 22053 - - 278120 | 216432 S| 1706]  (2169) - 659,890 | 565,070
FEEER  Addtions tonon-current

FEOAT seqmentassets

BE during the year 9% 40| 439 §l - - - -om| % - -1 (3865) -oe| s

* R 20194F 3 AR ILER

Business ceased in March 2019

B @ABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

W i oy A E R (48 5 REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL
INFORMATION (Continued)
(b) HiF &k} (b) Geographical information
TXREINBEEG)AEEREIINARLH The following table sets out the information about
Wogs & (i) NERE R YIS - e R - the geographical location of (i) the Group’s revenues
B EE BKREWENKEHRZ QA from external customers and (ii) the Group’s property,
([$ETEIERBEE]) TEMENER - plant and equipment, intangible assets, investment
BB R IR AR IS sk E Y ek E P properties and investments in associates (“specified
EHE D - IEEIFREEENEMIED non-current assets”). The geographical location of
2y ME ERNRERREDER customers is based on the location at which the
BEERMEME Y  EEEERKE services were provided or the goods delivered. The
BN T Bl LA B T &5 o geographical location of the specified non-current
assets is based on the physical location of the assets,
in the case of property, plant and equipment and
investment properties and the location of operations,
in the case of intangible assets and investments in
associates.
i hER AR g8
Hong Kong Mainland China Macau Consolidated
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
BEFr| EXTL | BEFr| BR T | BEFx| BETL | BEFr| EETL
HK$'000|  HKS'000 | HKS$'000| HKS'000 | HKS'000| HKS'000 | HK$'000|  HKS'000
BZ12831HLEE  Yearended 31 December
HREPYE Revenues from external customers | 17,198 16317 |  75,585| 976784 | 59,701| 45597 | 152,484| 1,038,698
R128318 At 31 December
NSNS NG The Company and subsidiaries 115,434| 119448 | 71,021 71,983 194 709 | 186,649 192,140
REBENT Investments in associates - -15,532,229| 4,988,673 - -15,532,229| 4,988,673
EEFRBEE Specified non-current assets 115,434 119,448 | 5,603,250| 5,060,656 194 709 |5,718,878 5,180,813

(R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6 HAbEHE —

6 OTHER LOSSES — NET

2019 2018
BT JBEMEF T
HK$'000 HKS’000
RATFEFBIEZVIEE  Netrealised and unrealised (losses)/gains
MEMEEMSEIR on financial assets at fair value through
RAEE (BER) profit or loss
s F 58 (1,317) 1,547
WEYEEHATFE Fair value losses on revaluation of
igi=] investment properties (7,109) (186)
HERBEERE Loss on disposal of repossessed assets = (390)
FE o BB F %8 Net exchange losses (2,836) (12,398)
(11,262) (11,427)
7 IRBEEBEAEWMBEETFELM 7 NET INSURANCE CLAIMS INCURRED
%2 AND COMMISSION EXPENSES INCURRED
ON INSURANCE BUSINESS
2019 2018
BT T BT T
HKS’000 HK$'000
1RER ZETFE £ HESE Net insurance claims incurred on
JEEE (a) insurance business (a) 3,179 5,125
RISEBELTFMES  Net commission expenses incurred on
£ (b) insurance business (b) 42,849 31,848
46,028 36,973

222 {5 EHBR A5 Min Xin Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NET INSURANCE CLAIMS INCURRED

AND COMMISSION EXPENSES INCURRED
ON INSURANCE BUSINESS (Continued)

(a) Net insurance claims incurred on insurance

business
2019
e ) BRE FE
Gross Reinsurance Net
BEFIT BEFIT BEFIT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
REZEERIEAFHE  Currentyear claims and loss
R adjustment expenses 4,210 (91) 4,119
AFEEEREX Additional cost for prior years’
AEE RN claims and loss adjustment
PR expenses 4,207 217 4,424
BEEBREMMRE  Decrease in claims incurred but
Vs not reported (2,870) (1,840) (4,710)
KRR 2B EEE  Decrease in the expected cost of
PR AR claims for unexpired risks (654) - (654)
4,893 (1,714) 3,179
2018
B iRk T
Gross Reinsurance Net
BT T JBEETFT BB TFT
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
REZEEREAFAEL  Currentyear claims and loss
AR adjustment expenses 7,827 (1,552) 6,275
FFEEREREX Additional cost for prior years’
AEE BRI claims and loss adjustment
AR expenses 1,466 135 1,601
BEABRERUERE  Decrease in claims incurred but
L not reported (717) (1,752) (2,469)
FmEER 2 TBETEEE  Decrease in the expected cost of
PR AR claims for unexpired risks (282) - (282)
8,294 (3,169) 5,125

ZZ—NFFR Annual Report 2019 % i
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7 PRBg SRS E AR Y SR AR 7 NET INSURANCE CLAIMS INCURRED
AND COMMISSION EXPENSES INCURRED
ON INSURANCE BUSINESS (Continued)

M ()

(b) PRBgSEDS & A m i & 2 H

insurance business

(b) Net commission expenses incurred on

2019 2018

BT JBEMEF T

HK$’000 HKS’000

B MERHEESE Gross commissions paid and payable 43,568 32,654
B B R AR Less: Commissions received and receivable

B ANE from reinsurers (719) (806)

He BB %5 Net commission expenses 42,849 31,848

B @ABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 2E %S | 8 OPERATING PROFIT
2019 2018
EBEFT JEIT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
BEFFEF AN Operating profit is stated after crediting
TFH&IE and charging the following:
A Crediting
BEWMED W FEU Rentals received and receivable from
e HKREEER investment properties less direct outgoings 7,740 8,227
BR Charging
EINA > BIEESZME Staff costs, including directors’ emoluments 41,913 36,625
— F  EERIEAT - Salaries, allowances and bonus 40,361 35,161
— RIKEFL A (a) — Retirement benefit costs (a) 1,552 1,464
IZ BRI & Auditor’s remuneration 2,086 2,086
— BEEE - provision for current year 1,787 1,813
— PR EGET — interim attestation work 299 273
5 & AR Costs of sales 10,996 920,394
— FEKAK — Cost of inventories 12,473 918,224
— (FEHERE) ~ - (Reversal of write down)/write down of
FEE inventories (1,509) 1,552
— Eit - Others 32 618
e N Bk Depreciation and amortisation 2,227 1,999
— YF - EEREE - property, plant and equipment 2,100 1,999
— (FHEESE - right-of-use assets 127 _
EIBE (3 10()(i))  Management fee (Note 10(a)(iii) 1,880 1,880
HEME  #EKLEME  Loss on disposal of property, plant and
B8 equipment 29 57
FEE 5, 518 /¢ 58 Net exchange losses 2,836 12,398
FEHIHE R 2019F Expense relating to short-term leases and
12 A31 Bk Z A& R other leases ended on or before
MEMHEEZHEER 31 December 2019 110 _
EiiE 2 LE¥FHLTEE  Operating lease rentals in respect of
land and buildings - 520

(R

-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8 EumA (4 8  OPERATING PROFIT (Continued)
(@) 71£20004E11 A30HE] » AEHM (@) The Group contributed to a defined contribution
—IEEQET TEtEl ([ REMHZE scheme (“DC Scheme”) which was available
2] ) k- ﬁﬁﬁ/\é%Z%i,%{E to all eligible Hong Kong employees prior
BEEA2M ATHAKFEZE to 30 November 2000. The assets of the DC
EERNEEZEED Eﬁ?—fﬁ 52 Scheme were held separately from those of the
BYEBEBRESRE - EE20004F Group in an independently administered fund.
11)EJ3OE|§'\1ET#% Kt 2R (A Contributions to the DC Scheme by the Group
M ATE S FTEMED] ) B /Y58 and employees were calculated at 15% of the
(LN ,\j—:u-l—%u (g8 ) employees’ basic salary until 30 November
FIRRE BHIE AEEREEBH 2000 when the DC Scheme was replaced by
REMETIETE 2 # f}’\%ELME,%% a mandatory provident fund scheme (“MPF
KAFzBD 2 THFE Scheme”) set up under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance.
NREBFGARGESE 2 HK The Group’s monthly contributions (mandatory
2 ( 2 5 & B FE) ?§1E§%$H, and voluntary) to the MPF Scheme for each
"5 2+ (200059 A30H & N employee are calculated at the higher of 10% (or
AMEE CHAREANREELRA 6% for employees who joined after 30 September
FAREDZN) HEEFABKWAR 2000) of the monthly basic salary and 5% of the
BOoZRANESEAETE (R monthly total income, subject to a maximum
AR EETRSHREAES contribution of HK$2,000, HK$3,000 or HK$4,000
#2,0007C ~ 75 ¥ 3,000 7T 3 B based on the internal grading system. The Group’s
4,0007T) ° fE,J:EHX S EMHFF] contributions to the MPF Scheme can be reduced
A G ST EI TR 2 by the Group’s voluntary contributions forfeited
I EE A LA B VER A AN &£ B [ 58 in relation to those employees who leave the MPF
HeitsElz BB - R20194F Scheme prior to vesting fully in the contributions.
&2018@12)5] 31 =& eI At 31 December 2019 and 2018, there were no
RENF 2R U TR - material unutilised forfeited contributions.
THRERNNEEMS AEH For Mainland China employees, the Group
TR B E B A & RS ¥ participates in the employee pension schemes
B2 MmEHm BTN ESE administered by the respective municipal
WE‘I’%U o ZJS’EIHMEE\%/\ZE government in various locations in Mainland
DEhEmEEEL S A HR China where the Group operates. The Group
ﬁﬁ*ﬂﬂmﬂ(ﬁ‘jﬂ% R E RN EF makes monthly contributions calculated at
FrERERRIKENET - a percentage of the monthly payroll costs to
these schemes and the respective municipal
government undertakes to assume the retirement
benefit obligations of the employees of the
Group.
9 RERA 9  FINANCE COSTS
2019 2018
BT BT T
HKS’000 HKS’000
RITERA B H Interest expenses on bank loans 13,735 26,165
? A% A% 58 B R 2 Interest expenses on loan from
*H the controlling shareholder 4,902 -
HEABNEXH Interest expenses on lease liabilities 8 -
18,645 26,165
{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SENIOR EXECUTIVES” EMOLUMENTS
AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

(a) EHEHEME (a) Directors’ emoluments
ERES ERHEEE
As director As management
¥E ERB
REMZE -
RENFZ
Salaries,
housing
E=nd and other 2019
Directors’ allowances, and ®e bl
fees benefits in kind Bonus Total
BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
HITESE Executive Directors
BRIESE (£/E)  MrYan Zheng (Chairman) = - - -
TIekA (B/£/E) MrWang Fei (Vice Chairman) = - - -
BRFiLE Mr Chen Yu 60 1,489 520 2,069
FHTESR Non-executive Directors
BERLE Mr Hon Hau Chit 60 - - 60
BWEBLE Mr Yang Jingchao - - - -
BIEHITEE  Independent Non-executive Directors
ERARE Mr Ip Kai Ming 250 - ; 250
RXELE Mr Cheung Man Hoi 350 = - 350
ZellBs% 4 Mr Leung Chong Shun 250 = - 250
970 1,489 520 2,979
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10

e ARAT BN B M <8 B 4% B e
P <2 2 AR 3l £ (A1)

(a) FEFHME (/)

10

SENIOR EXECUTIVES” EMOLUMENTS
AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

(Continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

EREZ ERERE
As director As management
ok BE
PELp=
REWMM =
Salaries,
housing
Yok and other 2018
Directors’  allowances, and ®e ek
fees  benefitsin kind Bonus Total
JBETT BETT BETT BT
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$000
HTESR Executive Directors
B4 (£/)"  MrYan Zheng (Chairman)' - _ _ ~
TIEkA (B/£/E) MrWang Fei (Vice Chairman) - - _ _
RFE4’ Mr Chen Yu® 2 582 220 824
485 (£/2)* Mr Peng Jin Guang (Chairman)? - - - -
Bl Mr Liu Cheng’ 78 1,090 390 1,558
FNITESR Non-executive Directors
BERKLE Mr Hon Hau Chit 60 - - 60
BHEE L Mr Yang Jingchao® - - - -
e M Liu Lur ] ) - -
BUIEHTEE  Independent Non-executive Directors
R LAE Mr Ip Kai Ming 250 _ _ 250
KX EEE Mr Cheung Man Hoi 350 - - 350
2ellExSE Mr Leung Chong Shun’ 167 - - 167
FEBEE® Mr Sze Robert Tsai To® 86 - - 86
BAmELE’ Mr So Hop Shing’ 112 - - 112
1,125 1,672 610 3,407
1 R2018F4ANRHET AR EHNTES 1 Appointed as Chairman and Executive Director on 12 April 2018
2 R2018F4 A NNEBEERERNTES 2 Resigned as Chairman and Executive Director on 12 April 2018
3 R2018F 910X T ARITES 3 Appointed as Executive Director on 10 September 2018
4 2018F 9B 10HETHITES 4 Resigned as Executive Director on 10 September 2018
5 R2018F 12 A7HEEAIERITES 5 Appointed as Non-executive Director on 7 December 2018
6 12018F 11 A 15 HEHTHENITES 6 Resigned as Non-executive Director on 15 November 2018
7 R2018F5A3HEZTABYIERNITES 7 Appointed as Independent Non-executive Director on 3 May 2018
8 M2018F4 A1 HEEBYIENITES 8 Resigned as Independent Non-executive Director on 1 April 2018
9 201856 A13BEMBIUINITES 9 Retired as Independent Non-executive Director on 13 June 2018

B @ABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited
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AR A IR AR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ARAT BN B M <5 B T4 B e
Pl <5 2 AN ()

(a) HEFEME (4H)

(i) FRESE: ZFHRBEBEE/LR
AIEMBARMNERMEMHRE
AR T A SRR BN S

(iy FREERE: ZFHEAREHE
I AN B % P HR 4 O B A AR A
S S EV B o

(iiy ARARM—ERBRREEIHE
BEEE188& T (20184F : B
1888 T)  tERERE—MHER
WEREH - LEERSE  B1ER
HEETARAEEST 2B -

(b) &&= E 2 A AL

FIiFE (@) 2 AT RFE ABE R IASMNE
HeRAEERMAEREME 2 ERA
T XNTFHFEALZMESFHBWT

10 SENIOR EXECUTIVES” EMOLUMENTS
AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
(Continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

(i) As director: The amounts represented
emoluments paid or payable for the services as a
director of the Company or its subsidiaries.

(i) As management: The amounts represented
emoluments paid or payable for other services in
connection with the management of the affairs of
the Company.

(iii) An amount of HK$1.88 million (2018: HK$1.88
million) was paid to Vigour Fine, the controlling
shareholder of the Company, for the provision of
certain management services which include the
provision of directors to the Board of Directors
of the Company pursuant to a management
agreement.

(b) Five highest paid individuals

The analysis in note (a) above does not include
those individuals who are not directors but whose
emoluments are among the five highest in the Group.
Details of the emoluments paid to those individuals
are as follows:

2019 2018
BT T BT T
HKS’000 HKS’000
e - BENEAMEEL «  Salaries, housing and other allowances,

NEYH &= and benefits in kind 4,968 4,427
RIREFET 2R Contributions to retirement benefit scheme 96 96
R"e Bonus 5,400 5,126

10,464 9,649

NG
(§
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10 SHATEAN B4 K A4 e
Pl 45 2 AR AN £ (48)

10 SENIOR EXECUTIVES” EMOLUMENTS
AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

(Continued)
(b) AL A EM4E 2 MA A+ (b) Five highest paid individuals (Continued)
(%)

MesEsE Emoluments Band 2019 2018
AE A%
Number of Number of
Individuals Individuals
75 #£1,000,001 7T — 7% 1,500,000 7T  HK$1,000,001 - HK$ 1,500,000 = 1
511,500,001 7T — 75%5 2,000,000 HKS$1,500,001 - HK$2,000,000 2 1
7B # 2,500,001 7T — 75%5 3,000,000 HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 1 1
1

75 ¥ 3,500,001 7T — /8 ¥ 4,000,000 7T
755 4,000,001 7T — 7B 4,500,000 7T

(c) HMEHAR

BNTARASHRERBABZME (1
#HE) FBWOT -

HK$3,500,001 - HK$4,000,000
HK$4,000,001 - HK$4,500,000

(c) Senior management

Details of the emoluments payable to senior
management of the Company by band are as follows:

[ e Emoluments Band 2019 2018
A# AZ

Number of Number of

Individuals Individuals

181,000,001 7T — 751,500,000 7T HK$1,000,001 - HK$1,500,000 = 2
FE 81,500,001 7T — 781 2,000,000 7T HK$1,500,001 - HK$2,000,000 2 1
713,500,001 7T — 784 4,000,000 7T  HK$3,500,001 — HK$4,000,000 = 1
7515 4,000,001 7T — 7B 4,500,000 7T HK$4,000,001 — HK$4,500,000 1 -

B @ABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EHFEBRBERHZHBAND

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated
income statement represents:

2019 2018
BT BT T
HKS$’000 HKS’000
EHRiE Current tax
EEFER Hong Kong profits tax 358 281
R A TS Mainland China corporate income tax 8,218 8,184
BN TRIR FTIS Mainland China withholding tax 1,826 18,016
JEPITHIR Macau taxation 522 441
10,924 26,922
AFEEERBBS Over provision in prior year
SRPIREIE Macau taxation (441) _
EAET IR Deferred tax
FREEENES N Relating to the origination and reversal
&2 [ of temporary differences 11,616 5,514
FrEHixH Income tax expense 22,099 32,436

EBFER IR BENG T ERT T
73 Bl W A% R 15 5 7 2 8.25% % 16.5%
(20184F : 8.25% K2 16.5%) 2B EM -

PRI S AT IR IR AhET R
N FT SRR R 25% (2018 4F © 25%)
B A A S B B A R IR EH R
#2008 F 1 A1 B1&BREA F B S &K
B AEEEDFIFBKREWAR 5%
K 10% 4070 B A FE IR FT 158 ©

MRPI R 2 B3R Rl % AR & U ET B AR AR
PRISERMORPIZIRITIH R E -

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate
of 8.25% and 16.5% respectively under the Two-tiered
Rates of Profits Tax (2018: 8.25% and 16.5%) on the
estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong
during the year.

Mainland China corporate income tax has been
calculated at the rate of 25% (2018: 25%) on the
estimated taxable profits for the year.

Mainland China withholding tax is levied at 5% and
10% on dividend income received from subsidiaries
and investees incorporated in Mainland China
respectively when these subsidiaries and investees
declared dividend out of profits earned after 1 January
2008.

Taxation on Macau profits has been calculated on the

estimated taxable profits for the year at the rates of
taxation prevailing in Macau.
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11 gl (4) 11

RE BB BRI A A 2 BIR B RS R
ABEBZREMAE 2 ERRBLLER

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise

O using the taxation rate in Hong Kong as follows:
2019 2018
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FR A5 AT A Profit before taxation 593,585 610,526
IRBEMBEREEER  Notional tax on profit before taxation,
BB R E R calculated at the rates applicable to
Alm M 2 BERIA profits in the jurisdictions concerned 114,816 116,358
R 2 A Income not subject to taxation (98,200) (104,237)
IR a3 Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes 6,138 9,224
RIERFIE N AT R (Decrease)/increase in unrecognised tax losses
TREE=RE (Bd) /1IN and deductible temporary differences (194) 11,121
FFEEEEBS Over provision in prior year (441) _
Hiftb Others (20) (30)
R Income tax expenses 22,099 32,436

B @ABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited
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Rz 5 12 DIVIDEND
2019 2018
BT B TT
HK$’000 HKS$'000
PEIHREBERAHM S Final dividend proposed after the
FIEE 1010 reporting date of 10 HK cents
(2018 4F : B 101l) (2018: 10 HK cents) per share 59,726 59,726

25 AR FR HO RS I R AR S B
BREANIIERE - HERHREE 2020
F12A3BEFRIIERBEN DR -

B I A

FREREFEREHE2019F 12 A
31 AIEFEAR AR E BN GFEE
57,148.6 & JT (20184F : & ¥ 57,809 &
TT) RFERE BTG 2 N FH &
597,257,252 (2018 4F : 597,257,252) B&
AEBAFERBEFEHEDREITA
BEBE NG AURBEEFENS
g R T EGRERZFER -

13

The dividend proposed after the reporting date has
not been recognised as a liability in these consolidated
financial statements, but will be reflected as an
appropriation of retained profits for the year ending
31 December 2020.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based
on the profit attributable to shareholders of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2019 of
HK$571,486,000 (2018: HK$578,090,000) and the
weighted average of 597,257,252 (2018: 597,257,252)
shares in issue during the year.

The Group has no dilutive potential shares in issue
during the current and prior years and therefore
diluted earnings per share is the same as basic earnings
per share for the years presented.

(8
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14 W3 - AN Skt 14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
FREEE-
HERER  BA-%6-
RELHE R LES HEER
THERE Right-of-use ERE
Leasehold B assets - Furniture,
lands and BRET otherproperties  fixtures, office RE
landuse  Buildings held leasedfor  and computer Motor ag
rights for own use own use equipment vehicles Total
FETT FETT BRI BRI BRI BB
HKs'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
RNBETAE At January 2018
s Cost 28621 851 - 9,149 3052 49333
ZANERAE Accumulated depreciation and
ER impairment losses (14,338) (7,594) - (7,981) (2542) (32,455)
BEFE Net book value 14,83 917 - 1,168 510 16,878

HZ2018%12 831 81EE  Yearended 31 December 2018

HREEE Opening net book value 14,283 917 - 1,168 510 16,878
EHES Translation differences - 4 - 3 - 7
1R Additions - 1,019 - 51 607 2137
BEBEEENIE Reclassified from repossessed assets - 3,050 - - - 3,050
REEHE Charge for the year (284) (135) - (48) (201) (1,068)
HE Disposals - - - t] (61) (69)
HREESE Closing net book value 13,999 4,855 - 1,226 855 20,935
R2018E128318R At 31 December 2018 and

201951718 1 January 2019
e Cost 28,621 12,580 - 8928 2591 52720
ZAMERAE Accumulated depreciation and

BB impairment losses (14622) (7,725) - (7,702) (1,736) (31,789)
BEFE Net book value 13,999 4855 - 1,226 855 20,935
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14 Y ~ Wy St (48)

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)
fEREEE-
HERER  BA-£6-
RELHR Mm% HERR
ThERE Right-of-use ElRE
Leasehold B assets - Furniture,
lands and EREE otherproperties fixtures, office RE
landuse  Buildings held leasedfor  and computer Motor ok
rights for own use own use equipment vehicles Total
BEFm BEFn BEFn BEFn BEFn BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BZ2019512 831 ALEE  Yearended 31 December 2019
HEEEE Opening net book value 13,999 4,855 - 1,226 855 20,935
EiEE Translation differences - (69) - @ - n)
i Additions - 89 380 729 - 1,198
TEEHE Charge for the year (281) (456) (127) (354) (171) (1,389)
k= Disposals - - - (29) - (29)
BRENZETE ) Reclassified from investment properties (a) - 6,048 - = - 6,048
EARERRERREES Fair value gains credited to leasehold
LBFEWE (b) buildings revaluation reserve (b) 2,692 55 = = = 2,747
ENABARENE (b) Reclassified to investment properties (b) (2,708) (232) = = = (2,940)
BREATE Closing net ook value 13,702 10,290 253 1,570 684 26,499
R2019%12831R At 31 December 2019
KA Cost 28,543 18,263 380 9,540 2,569 59,295
ZNERAE Accumulated depreciation and
BR impairment losses (14,841) (7,973) (127) (7,970) (1,885) (32,79)
REFE Net book value 13,702 10,290 253 1,570 684 26,499
(@) MRAFBEAMMN—BEHEDER (@) A commercial property located in Mainland China

FARRENEEHDBE/ET
BRYME - ZVMEREFRZA
MRFEERRFIEEAETH
DN

(b) MAFEABH—HEETWER
FAREEIARDEENOER
BREWME - EFF BN RFE
ERBEE R HEEEERLFHB

SRR

was reclassified from investment property to
owner-occupied property during the year and
its fair value at the date of change in use was
recognised as cost of building held for own use.

A residential property located in Mainland China
was reclassified from owner-occupied property
to investment property during the year and a fair
value gain on revaluation immediately before
the reclassification was recognised in leasehold
buildings revaluation reserve.

ZZ—NFFR Annual Report 2019 E i/:/ |
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14 W3~ o Ssehs (55)

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)
(0 MELMETHEREMNRTF (c) The net book values of leasehold lands and land
BT : use rights are analysed as follows:
2019 2018
BT BT T
HK$’000 HKS$'000
ERERAELD Leases held in Hong Kong
50F A £ Over 50 years 4,297 4,317
10FE504F Between 10 and 50 years 9,405 9,664
EEBUIMNFEBRLD Leases held outside Hong Kong
10FE504F Between 10 and 50 years - 18
13,702 13,999
15 L EE 15 INTANGIBLE ASSETS
B4
Software
2019 2018
BT B F T
HK$’000 HK$’000
HE12A3AEFE Year ended 31 December
BRFIER AR (B Opening net book value 1,573 2,504
NG Charge for the year (838) (931)
HARERME F1E Closing net book value 735 1,573
»12A31H At 31 December
DE Cost 2,850 2,850
B i Accumulated amortisation (2,115) (1,277)
BREDFEE Net book value 735 1,573

B @ABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited
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16 HEYE

16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

2019 2018
BT T B TT
HK$’000 HKS$'000
~E At fair value
®R1A1H At 1 January 169,632 169,818
NFEEE Fair value losses (7,109) (186)
EFDEAYE  HEE  Reclassified to property, plant and
&1 (7 14(a)) equipment (Note 14(a)) (6,048) _
B - MR R Reclassified from property, plant and
FHFHHE (FEE14(0b)) equipment (Note 14(b)) 2,940 _
M12H31H At 31 December 159,415 169,632

AEENREME R KREED T

The Group’s interests in investment properties at their

I carrying amount are analysed as follows:
2019 2018
BETFT BETT
HKS’000 HKS$’000
EEBREMEY Leases held in Hong Kong
10FE504F Between 10 and 50 years 98,200 102,000
EBBAIMNGE L Leases held outside Hong Kong
10FE504F Between 10 and 50 years 61,215 67,632
159,415 169,632

—XMBRFFENQFEE9,820
&7r (20184 : B¥ 10,2008 7T) W —
BUNREBNIEEMENERZYAR
BMEETRAE  UNSEEKRENAE
BRE °

The title deeds in respect of an investment property in
Hong Kong with a fair value of HK$98.2 million (2018:
HK$102 million) held by a subsidiary are placed in the
custody of the Insurance Authority pursuant to the
relevant regulatory requirements.

ZZ—NFFR Annual Report 2019
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16 EWE () 16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
(a) APHEEHE (a) Fair value hierarchy
TREFR2019F 12 A31 BIRK&EE T The following table presents the fair value of
BEEASHANEFRREYENAFE - investment properties held by the Group measured at
BEANRATERMA=RSEE GEE 31 December 2019 on a recurring basis, categorised
43(@) (TEEB BV BREELFE 13 into the three-level fair value hierarchy (Note 4.3(a))
FINFEFZE]) 2 A FEFHES as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement. The
FEMEL TR EZGEE T EBEIER A level into which a fair value measurement is classified
BIRMEREEMEBET - is determined with reference to the observability
and significance of the inputs used in the valuation
technique.
2019 2018
BT JEEF T
HK$’000 HKS$'000
REMNAFETE Recurring fair value measurement
FZER Level 3
A [ P Mainland China
SEXES Commercial properties 53,683 63,044
FEME Residential properties 5,810 2,800
==Xy Car parks 1,722 1,788
61,215 67,632
0 Hong Kong
[EEXZES Commercial properties 98,200 102,000
159,415 169,632
AEERFEREAFEIERENAEREYD All the investment properties carried at fair value held
¥ERAATEEBNE=SH:1E - by the Group were measured using Level 3 of the fair
FRIWEERATFEERBE=SHNE value hierarchy. During the year there was no transfer
%o AEBMBERARELEBHNER into or out of Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. The
HRERAFERESSRENER - Group's policy is to recognise transfers between levels
of fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting
period in which they occur.
{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited
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BUEYISE (A1)
(b) AFEZEME =R EOR

REMERBL FETHED - F—AF
AN EEBERBR AR LA
HEEMNMBERARAR - 220195
NRANEWAFEEEER - AEH
ENEFE 2R A BFT FRF(EEN
in A B AERRLGEES

AR BERMAEEDERBEAHRF
BERBRABREAETE - BARGE
ER ZSEREVENBEMNMNEES
AERSES A AER RN TS AME
T (HEDENEREENT43E
Z45FE (2018F : 43EE45F) ™
SABRENTHBFHFRARE2TE
ARBET767T (20184 : ARBS2TTE
AREE77IL) (VBN E AR A
28E (2018 : 28[E) B AHEES A
FHEMUAREG6307T (2018F : AR
6407C) c AEFFEEHERNMEEE R
B1% - B AHES EIEEEER -

IR B AR EEYE SR FERA
MIZLBOAEE » WREALRYER
RGP OKNHEEER  YHRHAKE
EE/E RN Y I SRS HPSE 2
(Blanfr E R E8) (EH R B kIR m T
o EANLEER - TEXNTA
BRFBBEALTEE -

MR E B EEYEN R FEERMAT
BHEOREE - Y2 ER LB RIE
BEVPHTRNEEER L AKE
HY P 5 B A] B ) 36 LE BB B R TE R 3=
(I RERLREAEERRE) FLd
BITEORE - IrBR WA - 2FE
BAK - ARG EER @ TEXNE
Eﬁﬂ%ﬁ%@%@%%’?ﬁm%(zmsi )
10%) °

16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(b) Information about Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy

The investment properties were revalued based on
their fair values at 31 December 2019 by independent
professional valuers, namely Savills Valuation and
Professional Services Limited and Vigers Appraisal &
Consulting Limited. The Group has discussed with the
independent professional valuers on the valuation
assumptions and valuation results at each annual
reporting date.

The fair values of commercial properties and car parks
located in Mainland China were determined by income
capitalisation approach. The significant unobservable
inputs applied in valuation measurement are (i)
capitalisation rates ranged from 4.3% to 4.5% (2018:
4.3% to 4.5%) and monthly market rental ranged from
RMB52 to RMB76 (2018: RMB52 to RMB77) per square
meter for commercial properties and (ii) capitalisation
rate of 2.8% (2018: 2.8%) and monthly market rental
of RMB630 (2018: RMB640) per unit for car parks
respectively. The fair value measurement is negatively
correlated to the capitalisation rate and positively
correlated to the monthly market rental.

The fair value of residential properties located in
Mainland China was determined by market comparison
approach with reference to recent sales price per
square meter of comparable properties, adjusted for
a premium or a discount specific to the factors such
as the location and quality of the Group's properties
while compared to the comparable properties. The
unobservable input for discount applied in valuation
measurement was immaterial.

The fair value of commercial properties located in Hong
Kong was determined by market comparison approach
with reference to recent sales price per square foot
of comparable properties, adjusted for a premium or
a discount specific to the factors such as the longer
period of tenancy and the larger floor area of the
Group's properties while compared to the comparable
properties. Larger discount will result in a lower fair
value measurement. The significant unobservable
input for discount applied in valuation measurement
was approximately 10% (2018: approximately 10%).
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16

17

EIEES

BEYSE (A1)
(b) A PAEZRMEE =S5 AR E R

(%)
FRZEATFEEEE =SHNEH
E PN

16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(b) Information about Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy (Continued)

The movements in the balance of Level 3 of the fair
value hierarchy during the year are as follows:

2019 2018
mENE  fizhE EEnE FENE
Commercial ~ Residential Bfy %8  Commerdal  Residentia B g
properties  properties  Car parks Total  properties  properties  Carparks Total
BEFT  BEFT BEFT EETT | BRIr BETr BEfr AR
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
®MA1R At1January 165,044 2,800 1788 169,632 165,632 2300 1,886 169818
DTG (BE) /U Fairvalue (losses)/gains (1113) 70 (66) (7,109) (588) 500 (%8) (186)
ENEAME R Redlassified to property, plant and
RRE (iB14@)  equipment (Note 14(a)) (6,048) - - (6,048) - - - -
BNE  BERZE  Redlassified from property, plant and
B (R1b)  equipment (Note 14(h) - 2,940 - 2,940 - - - -
M2A318 At31December 151,883 5810 1,122 159,415 165,044 2,800 1,788 169,632
ERNGABARN  Total unrealised fair value (losses)/
[EHEE - 38 qainsforthe yearrecognisedin
NEZNFEHATE  the consolidated income statement
(EB) /&8 aspartof Otherlosses - net’ (7,113) 70 (66)  (7,109) (568) 500 (99) (186)
i ) 17 ASSOCIATES
2019 2018
BT T JBMEF T
HK$’000 HKS'000
FE1h iéfé)%’rﬁ Share of net assets 5,521,512 4,977,956
BT —FKE<Z /Al (b) Loantoan associate (b) 10,717 10,717
5,532,229 4,988,673

EBPRAA] Min Xin Holdings Limited




AR A IR AR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17 ASSOCIATES (Continued)

() AEBERBENR ZKEDITIN (@) The Group’s investments in associates are
N analysed below:
EfR&EE Hitb k|
XIB Group Others Total
BEFT BEFT BT
HKS’000 HKS’000 HKS’000
7201841 A1H At 1 January 2018 4,540,907 44,393 4,585,300
PE 5 E5E Translation differences (232,232) (1,744) (233,976)
FEBRT R A Share of profit after taxation
R A A1 g ) Profit before taxation 736,275 3,643 739,918
s Income tax expense (122,204) (351) (122,555)
EEIRRE Dividend declared (153,195) - (153,195)
NERES Increase in fair value reserve
(RIMEIR) $E N (recycling) 172,154 - 172,154
NEHERES Decrease in fair value reserve
(TAER) (R (non-recycling) (155) (16) (171)
i —REE A RN Share of movement in capital
BAFELE reserve of an associate 1,198 - 1,198
72018512 A31HK  At31 December 2018 and
20191 A1H 1 January 2019 4,942,748 45,925 4,988,673
[EN =58 Translation differences (88,501) (655) (89,156)
FEIGBR B 5 F Share of profit after taxation
B 75 Al A Profit before taxation 650,838 4,587 655,425
Fri5fisz i Income tax expense (75,671) (575) (76,246)
NFERES Increase in fair value reserve
(AJ1E3R) 380 (recycling) 54,215 - 54,215
NEEFES (RAfER) Increase/(decrease) in fair value
2 CRd) reserve (non-recycling) 954 (8) 946
FE(E—REE QAN Share of movement in capital
BARFES reserve of an associate (1,628) = (1,628)
®2019F12831H At 31 December 2019 5,482,955 49,274 5,532,229

(b)) HERRAEBHZBLERRZ (b)
RE THRERAHW R2ERE

PREEAE -

REBMALESEKEHENTHE
THERRBESREE  LER
FERBERES RBTEFEAN (G
¥36(a)) °

()

The loan represented the Group’s investments in
that associate and was unsecured, interest free
and had no fixed repayment terms.

Bank deposits placed by the Group with
associated financial institutions in the normal
course of business are included in cash and bank
balances (Note 36(a)).
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17 WiE 2w (4E) 17 ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(d ATHEZERBFENR2019F 12 A 31 (d) The following list contains the particulars of those
HEAEENEERXEEFEE A associates at 31 December 2019 which principally
FEMNBELNT  WEEEEE affected the results or assets of the Group. All
HRIIELTRAIRUAEZEEE of these entities are unlisted corporates and are
ABR © accounted for using equity method.

FRai BEIR AEEM

B HRRARE BiER
Place of Particulars Group's TEER
incorporation of issued and effective Principal

il YNGIPA Name of associates and operations paid up capital interest activities

B#RE Directly held

EFBEETRE Xiamen International Bank Co, Ltd, ~ REARLAE 8386.26 BBl 9.7635% FIRREER

BRAT and its subsidiaries (NR% 838626 70)
REWEBAA The People’s 8,386.26 million shares Banking and
Republic of China (RMB8,386.26 million) investment holding
BRI RT Luso International il 261 BERER 4.7880% 17
R ERAR Banking Ltd. (&F%26.1 E7T)
Macau 2.61 million shares Banking
(MOP2,610 million)
ERBTERAA Chiyu Banking Corporation ok 186825 55 6.3014% idh)
Ltd. (% 324598 B 7T)
Hong Kong 1,868.25 million shares Banking
(HK$3,245.98 million)
EFEREE Xiamen International % 4807.19BER 9.7635% RERR
BRAT Investment Limited (M 480m9ET)
Hong Kong 4,807.19 million shares Investment
(HK$4,807.19 million) holding
REHE Indirectly held
HEEERS Min Faith Investments B 1000 40% A
ERAF" Limited" (B%10070)
Hong Kong 100 shares Investment
(HK$100) holding
(1) WBERRWIFEEEFHSAMEGIEF (1) This associate is not audited by KPMG. Both the aggregate net

1% o [EAE ML= R R 2 B EIFE KR AT
BANEEARESS BT LZ07% °
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assets and profit before taxation attributable to this associate
represent approximately 0.7% of the Group’s consolidated

totals.
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17 ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Summarised financial information of the
material associate prepared in accordance with
the accounting policies adopted by the Group

FET and reconciled to the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements is disclosed
below:

EREMR
XIB Group
2019 2018
BT T JEMT T
HKS’000 HKS’000
BENT T YIS IEHAEE Gross amount of the associate’s
BE Assets 1,027,204,506 918,564,205
BE Liabilities (957,661,654) | (856,199,285)
SRR Non-controlling interests (13,385,170) (11,740,161)
IR R FE(G Equity attributable to shareholders 56,157,682 50,624,759
Wik 4aEa Total revenues 42,461,440 38,160,897
BERSERETR Profit from continuing operations 5,890,999 6,289,451
Efb 2K Other comprehensive income 656,964 1,972,960
2HEWESEEE Total comprehensive income 6,547,963 8,262,411
TR E Dividend declared - 153,195
HEZAEER Reconciled to the Group’s interest
BE QT MELS in the associate
N NRIEEFERE Gross amount of net assets of the associate 56,157,682 50,624,759
REENERER Group’s effective interest 9.7635% 9.7635%
SEMBHEN Carrying amount in the consolidated
BREE financial statements 5,482,955 4,942,748

(N
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17 W&~ w () 17 ASSOCIATES (Continued)
(f) IWIFERIERAEE R AAELR (f)  Aggregate information of associates that are not
BEREFENAT individually material is disclosed below:
2019 2018
BT BT T
HKS’000 HKS’000
REr B BIIG3RARANIIE  Aggregate carrying amount of individually
{(EhlEEw N 0]/ immaterial assocates in the consolidated
WEREEETE financial statements 49,274 45,925
REBFEGZER S AT Aggregate amount of the Group’s share
T3 &IEAEE of those associates’
FEISEETE = Profit from continuing operations 4,012 3,292
Hi 2w Other comprehensive income (663) (1,760)
e L Total comprehensive income 3,349 1,532

18 & FE FE A HoAth 4 1 Ui £ 1Y

18 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

B A THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME
2019 2018
BT T B F T
HKS’000 HKS’000
M1A1H At 1 January 570,417 503,514
RAFE#ES Fair value (loss)/gain recognised in

(PAER) BBk 2 fair value reserve (non-recycling)

AEE (B18) W (147,074) 66,903
M12H31H At 31 December 423,343 570,417
BAFE At fair value

It E 2 Equity securities listed on

— R EBEERSA - the Shanghai Stock Exchange (a)
£ (a) 423,343 570,417
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18 & PE FE A HA 2 T i 45 Y
EREE (4)

(@) 7N £ E R 20194F %2018 12 A
BMHEER EEEERGH LT
R AT ¢

NGIET

Company name

18 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME (Continued)

(@) The equity securities listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange held by the Group at 31 December
2019 and 2018 are as follows:

i TEXB AEENENER
Place of Principal Group's
incorporation activities effective interest

ERERENRD

BRAE ([#])

Inc. ("Huaneng”)

AEERETHEERABRRERR
FEFAEMEEEE (TAE
R) > WHIRRBRRER/RERF
BERAKBER -

AR R AR & B n FE e
A RS B BR 1S A B A A R T A A
BHENMFRERTER -
o AREREHREMEE K
AR TEAFERES (T
AIER) AR A FEZS
R -

Huaneng Power International,

hEARHAMNE HENHEES 0.43%
(816,795 BIRAIR)

The People’s  Generation and sale (approximately
Republic of China of electric power 67.95 million
A-Share)

The Group designated its investment in A-Share
of Huaneng as FVOCI (non-recycling) as the
investment is held for long-term and strategic
purposes.

The tax bureau in Beijing, Mainland China had
issued certificate of tax exemption for the gain
from partial disposal of A-Share of Huaneng by
the Company in previous year. Accordingly, the
Group has not provided any tax provision against
the fair value movements recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in the fair value reserve (non-recycling).
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19 5§ BUAS FHE 19 2 Al

(a) AEEFENESREEF2016F
BANZERBSIMES - HII
BEHRUNETHE BEE@mEX
BEFRER3I125F @ FFFELNHF
B - Wi 20205 4 BEIE] -

(b) 2019 2018512 A831H ' 5

SME IR B FRF BORGH B # SHAK
A REHBRRE °

20 ARIEHUAF A

(a)

19 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED COST

The financial asset held by the Group was an
investment grade OTC bond acquired in 2016.
The OTC bond is in United States Dollar, carries
fixed coupon interest rate at 3.125% per annum
payable half yearly and will mature in April 2020.

At 31 December 2019 and 2018, the OTC bond
carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method and had neither past due nor

impaired.

20 DEFERRED ACQUISITION COSTS

2019 2018

BT JEEF T

HK$’000 HKS$'000

Mm1A1H At 1 January 21,242 16,868
FE R Increase during the year 50,512 36,222
FREE Release during the year (42,849) (31,848)
R128318 At 31 December 28,905 21,242

B @ABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited
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21 PREBgEIGK 21 INSURANCE RECEIVABLE

2019 2018
BT JBMEF T
HK$'000 HKS'000

REERN A RS #1EH A Due from insurance intermediates and
R contract holders 22,743 11,276
BRE AKX Due from reinsurers 282 1,858
23,025 13,134
RIBIEWHRAKEBD 2 EEHR—MH60 The credit period for the majority of insurance
REIORTE o RIBIEUGR 2 EEIEHK receivable normally ranges from 60 to 90 days.
(BPREREEEZEhmFE-a0AER BS The credit terms of insurance receivable, including
BREBABIRE ° whether guarantees from third parties are required, are

determined by senior management.

72019F 12 A31 8 © REBEWTO R At 31 December 2019, the ageing analysis of insurance
o (IREZAEH) T receivable by invoice date was summarised as follows:

2019 2018

BETT B F T

HK$’000 HK$'000

30HIA Within 30 days 6,583 4,245
31260H 31-60 days 6,560 5,751
61290H 61-90 days 4,313 2,746
H#BiE90 H Over 90 days 5,569 392
23,025 13,134

2019F 12 A31 8 EBHERBE At 31 December 2019, the ageing analysis of the
B R 2 FE R B9 BR R D ATl 0 TS past due but not impaired insurance receivable was

summarised as follows:

2019 2018
BT BT T

HK$’000 HK$'000

90 B Within 90 days 6,674 2,744
#BiE 90 H Over 90 days 633 316
7,307 3,060

r—
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22 FRBERE

23

EIEES

22 REINSURANCE ASSETS

2019 2018
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HKS'000
HIRBAE(EREEE  Reinsurers’share of insurance liabilities
(712 26) (Note 26) 8,976 6,337

BREARNAEERDREHODE N
M EE B RE RV IR I R BRI B E A
R o AR ARBR YR (FEE21)
W o

The amounts due from reinsurers in respect of claims
already paid by the Group on the contracts that are
reinsured are not recognised in the reinsurance assets.
They are included in insurance receivable (Note 21).

&P R I EWOR) S LOANS TO CUSTOMERS AND INTEREST
RECEIVABLE

2019 2018
BT T JBMEF T
HK$’000 HKS’000

INEERERER Micro credit business
— ERER - guaranteed loans 149,847 161,479
— EHREXK - secured loans 96,864 101,249
— B NGIERER - pledged and guaranteed loans 10,738 10,934
— I B RIEIRERK - secured, pledged and guaranteed loans 4,250 4,387
ZEEXR Loans to customers 261,699 278,049
JFE Y 1 B, Interest receivable 11,442 11,753
273,141 289,802
B ZE Impairment allowances (252,160) (266,927)
20,981 22,875

MN2019%F % 2018512 310 » BF &
AR EWF S EEiB36sHAR
ZERIE -

EBPR7AE] Min Xin Holdings Limited

At 31 December 2019 and 2018, the loans to customers
and related interest receivable were overdue over 365

days and credit-impaired.
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23 LOANS TO CUSTOMERS AND INTEREST
RECEIVABLE (Continued)

EEEEEINT The movement of impairment allowances was as
follows:
2019 2018
BEZESN BEFESHN
BEHEEER EHEERE
nEAEYE FEHE (PREDEEEL:: EERE
FEEE  Lifetime FEER Lifetime
12-month  ECL credit @%  12-month  ECLcredit ek
ECL impaired Total ECL impaired Total
A¥Fr  BETT  BEFT | BETr BETr BETI
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
m1A1H At 1 January - 266,927 266,927 1 289,944 289,945
ERZES Translation differences - (4,651) (4,651) 1 (14,339) (14,338)
EEFEEBRR  Credited to current year's
LR income statement - (6,255) (6,255) 2) (4,014) (4,016)
RFHBEL  Unwinding of discount of
BYENHE impairment allowances
ERERR recognised as
[MEHA] “interest income” - (3,861) (3,861) - (4,664) (4,664)
R128318  At31December - 252160 252,160 - 266927 266927

—ZT—HFFR Annual Report 2019
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24 ¥RONVE 5 18 15 5 IR ) 4 Fl

24 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

& THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
2019 2018
EBEFIT BB F T
HKS$’000 HKS’000
BAFE At fair value
AR 7 Equity securities listed on
— RBEBERZT L™ - the Hong Kong Stock Exchange 6,739 306
— RBABZFRRZP LM — the New York Stock Exchange 2,412 -
wEES Investment funds listed on
— NEBBH LT - the Hong Kong Stock Exchange 7,869 -
EHISmE At quoted price
IELTREES (a) Unlisted investment funds (a) 80,802 -
97,822 306

(@ EFHSEALEBERTFANERBD
RPBEANRENIELTIREER
T REREBEEENFUETLR
ARBEEE - R2019F12 A 31
B Z&EREESEDP—HER
FEOBE I BTHESHRE
AERRE 18 @ A A EHT -

25 4 MEBRATETE

(@ AEBZHEESRBITHEGTBEELS
ERHPBER  HEKRMET
RIT 2 FHH AR 105,965 8 7T
(HEHHEK 1185228 7T) (2018
FHARE1062288 T ZE
#7518 120,994 B 7T) ©

B @ABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited

(@) The amount represented unlisted investment
funds subscribed by the Group in Hong Kong
and Mainland China during the year. These
investment funds are in United States Dollars and
Renminbi respectively. At 31 December 2019, one
of these investment funds with carrying amount
of approximately HK$7.41 million had a lock-up
period of 18 months from the subscription date.

25 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

(@ The cash and bank balances of the Group
included deposits of approximately RMB1,059.65
million (equivalent to approximately HK$1,185.22
million) (2018: approximately RMB1,062.28
million, equivalent to approximately HK$1,209.94
million) placed with certain banks in Mainland
China, Hong Kong and Macau by the Group.
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25 Bla LRITHiAF ()

(b)

BERBEEERZAT IH
EEN—RE2EWNBRAISKS
BAEABRNLREE1,6008TT2E
CURBREEEREREFEAERB
RITFER - 7 2019F12 A31 8 -
ZHBRRINEE —RIBITUR
REEERRPEBRTFTHER
1,600 8 7C (2018 4F : B 1,600 &
L) ZEMFEFUNREEBBRE -
ZHB AR TR’ 11,5328
7T (ZE4) B 11,4878 70) (2018
F ORI 5108 ZELB
14668 7U) KB 26218 T
(20184 : #HE#1,7108 7T) 2 R
TEFAFE R URBIZEE
ERD) 2 ETHE

MN20195F 128318 BEHEARQ
AIR2018F H£FTMWEREE (5
E28) MRE —RE2EHBA
RIEEHE=ZFHRTERAR
20,000 & 7T (FEAE 22,370
gBr) (20184 + AR ¥ 20,0008
TT  BEAEN 22,780 B T) T
FEETRFAERE DT B
FEZDTEBUERRITARE
ARBERERE -

—REEMBRARN2018F 12 A
3TEEFERARE 1008 T (ZED
B 1148 TT) METTERIEAR
B AR BB HENRT P RIVE
BITHHNRESE RN TR -

25 CASH AND BANK BALANCES (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Pursuant to the requirements from Insurance
Authority, a wholly-owned subsidiary shall
maintain at all times a portion of its funds of not
less than HK$16 million in the name of Insurance
Authority account in bank deposits. At 31
December 2019, that subsidiary has placed fixed
deposits of HK$16 million (2018: HK$16 million)
in the name of Insurance Authority account
with a bank in Hong Kong for fulfillment of such
requirements. That subsidiary has also maintained
bank deposits of MOP15.32 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$14.87 million) (2018: MOP15.1
million, equivalent to approximately HK$14.66
million) and HK$26.21 million (2018: HK$17.1
million) for fulfilling certain requirements under
the Macau Insurance Companies Ordinance.

At 31 December 2019, a wholly-owned subsidiary
had pledged its three-year bank deposit of
RMB200 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$223.7 million) (2018:RMB200 million,
equivalent to approximately HK$227.8 million)
to a branch of the lending bank in Mainland
China for the issuance of a standby letter of
credit in favour of the lending bank pursuant to
the requirements of the loan facilities (Note 28)
entered into by the Company in 2018.

The bank deposit of RMB1 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$1.14 million) placed by
a wholly-owned subsidiary to guarantee the
application to the local court for legal actions
against default customers at 31 December 2018
was released during the year.

(N

4
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26 fRBEE ) MR ERE 26 INSURANCE CONTRACTS AND

252

REINSURANCE ASSETS
2019 2018
BT BB F T
HK$’000 HKS$'000
EH Gross
D2HRERIBLFAE  Claims reported and loss adjustment
&H expenses 11,122 17,022
BEABEKREFRRE Claims incurred but not reported 28,620 31,490
39,742 48,512
RmEiRE Unearned premiums 47,223 32,934
7 Joh B JEL B B 4 Unexpired risks provision 905 1,559
REEEE 8 Total insurance liabilities, gross 87,870 83,005
B REARIE Recoverable from reinsurers
BERRENIBLFARE  Claims reported and loss adjustment
== expenses (5) (572)
BELBAREHRRE Claims incurred but not reported (7,359) (5,519)
(7,364) (6,091)
FmiA R & Unearned premiums (1,612) (246)
BRBAEGERBEE  Total reinsurers’ share of insurance
(1 22) liabilities (Note 22) (8,976) (6,337)
FEE Net
BEE2ERREKRIELFAE  Claims reported and loss adjustment
E=4is expenses 11,117 16,450
OEEBAEREE Claims incurred but not reported 21,261 25,971
32,378 42,421
KmERE Unearned premiums 45,611 32,688
7R HA L B & 4 Unexpired risks provision 905 1,559
REEEHEE BE Total insurance liabilities, net 78,894 76,668

EE2RREEH  BLAABRBAKDHE
EERERRESEENEEDRE
HA A (AR R M A Az R UK [l O BRRE

{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

The liabilities for gross claims reported, loss adjustment
expenses and claims incurred but not reported are net
of expected recoveries from salvage and subrogation.
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26 REREH MERBERE (5)

(a) MEME IR0 2 s )

26 INSURANCE CONTRACTS AND
REINSURANCE ASSETS (Continued)

(a) Movement in claims and loss adjustment expenses

W1A1H
FRUREEN
MERE
B/ (B2)
EFELRE
AFELRE
BRLERER
BEerg

R12A831H

E2HEHE
EELERZR

R12A318

Notified claims
Incurred but not reported

At 1 January

Cash paid for claims settled
during the year

Increase/(decrease) in liabilities

Arising from current year claims

Arising from prior year claims

Movement in provision for claims
incurred but not reported

At 31 December

Notified claims
Incurred but not reported

At 31 December

2019 2018
X BRRE B 8 BRE et
Gross Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance Net
BEFT  BETn  BEFT | E¥TT BEFT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
17,022 (572) 16,450 25,978 (2,339) 23,639
31,490 (5,519) 25,971 32,207 (3,767) 28,440
48,512 (6,091) 42,421 58,185 (6,106) 52,079
(14,317) s (13,876) (18,249) 3,184 (15,065)
4,210 (91) 4,119 7827 (1,552) 6,275
4,207 217 4,424 1,466 135 1,601
(2,870) (1,840) (4,710) (717) (1,752) (2,469)
39,742 (7,364) 32,378 48,512 (6,091) 42421
11,122 (5) 1,117 17,022 (572) 16,450
28,620 (7,359) 21,261 31,490 (5519) 25,971
39,742 (7,364) 32,378 48,512 (6,091) YRyl

—ZT—HFFR Annual Report 2019
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26 PRERGH L REEE (A])

(b) SR 2 4 52

26 INSURANCE CONTRACTS AND
REINSURANCE ASSETS (Continued)

(b) Movement in provision for unearned premiums

2019 2018
£ BRRE ik 8 BiRR 8
Gross Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance Net
A¥Frn  EETT  BEFL | BETr EETrT BEFT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
W1A1H At 1 January 32,934 (246) 32,688 27,624 (206) 27418
EREM/ (52) Increase/(decrease) during the year 46,293 (1,608) 44,685 39,657 (384) 39,273
FRED Release during the year (32,004) 242 (31,762) (34,347) 344 (34,003)
R12A31H At 31 December 47,223 (1,612) 45,611 32,934 (246) 32,688

KRB EES RANKEAEAZER
WA HARBNANEIRBRENEIE

(c) A T S JL o M A < 5 )

Provision for unearned premiums represented the
liabilities for short-term insurance contracts for which
the Group’s obligations are not expired at the reporting

date.

(c) Movement in provision for unexpired risks

2019 2018
% BRRE ik 8 Bk 8
Gross Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance Net
A¥Frn  EETT  BEFL | BETr EFTrT BEFT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
w1A1H At 1 January 1,559 - 1,559 1,841 - 1,841
ERED Decrease during the year (654) - (654) (282) - (282)
R12A31H At 31 December 905 - 905 1,559 - 1,559

ENGEE A YN S SRR R
BB AR R AR BEEBSORR
BHHER -

254 {5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

The provision for unexpired risks related to the
insurance contracts for which the Group expected
to pay claims in excess of the related provision for
unearned premiums.
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27 PREEEAT K 27 INSURANCE PAYABLE
M2019F 12 A31H  REBEMNZAE At 31 December 2019, the ageing analysis of the
oM (REZEAE) #hnT insurance payable by invoice date was summarised as
follows:
2019 2018
BT T BT T
HKS’000 HKS’000
30HA Within 30 days 7,566 3,376
31%60H 31-60 days 4,152 2,863
61290 H 61-90 days 2,738 1,900
HBimoo H Over 90 days 1,691 1,057
16,147 9,196
28 SRATHE K 28 BANK BORROWINGS

2019 2018
EBEFT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000

REJIRITE R Long-term bank loans
BER  LABITAEEN (b) Secured, in HK Dollars (b) 199,965 199,966
IR - BT BB Unsecured, in HK Dollars = 198,804
199,965 398,770

FEHERITE R Short-term bank loans
BER - UBTTRERL (o) Secured, in HK Dollars (c) 60,000 -
259,965 398,770

B BIERRBAERNZ Less: Amounts due within one year
—F R E| BRI FRIE included in current liabilities (60,000) (198,804)
199,965 199,966
(a) WBIEBEEXRBEEMEMNEHENRAD (@) The maturity profile of the principal of bank loans
B RITERNAS BB A M based on the scheduled repayment dates set out
N in the loan facilities was summarised as follows:

2019 2018
BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE—FA Within 1 year 60,000 200,000
ZR—FERWEN More than 1 year but within 2 years 200,000 -
ZIRMFEREFR More than 2 years but within 5 years - 200,000
260,000 400,000

v~
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28 SRATMERK (4)

(b)

RITEREARARR2018FEE
B RRITENMZEAHER
MABELH BEZEREE
R BEEREAN T HE
(NExFEARE) EE: ()IRRA
HERIE36MEA (i) BARRAE
MERBEEHRER@AER
K (i) B RRITHR P E R —RD
TRENEREHAEI A s @EE
E i

ZIRITEFUABREBTRFARA
H—ROITEENEREREE
KIFABITARNANEREET -
ZERERZEHAARAIFRBEAM
M—RE2EMBRAEFZ - R
201912 A31H  ZWEA AN
= FHRITFE R AR 20,0008
7t (Z{ELH1 22,3708 7) (2018
F: ARY20,0008 7T SEY
7E1k 22,780 BT) B T IEFKIRTT
R AH—FK DT o

ZIRITERNAEREBRITR
¥/KBEMEBEEFE R2019F
12A318 EBREFEHN X E35E
(20184 : 3.1[&) »

BRIBZEREENIER  KNAF
EARFEEENEEEEANZE
REEBHANERS (EREZXH
B) BEARFBEITRATDR
35% M EmiED o

{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

28 BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

(b)

The bank loan represented the outstanding
balance of a floating rate term loan obtained from
a bank in Hong Kong by the Company in 2018.
Pursuant to the terms of the loan facility, the
term loan shall be repayable on the earliest of (i)
36 months after the drawdown date of the term
loan; (ii) the date falling 42 months from the date
of the Company’s acceptance of the loan facilities;
and (iii) 5 business days prior to the expiry date of
the standby letter of credit issued by a branch of
the lending bank in Mainland China.

The bank loan was secured by a standby letter
of credit issued by a branch of the lending bank
in Mainland China for the fulfillment of the
Company’s repayment obligations. The standby
letter of credit was applied by a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company in Mainland China.
At 31 December 2019, a three-year bank deposit
of RMB200 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$223.7 million) (2018: RMB200 million,
equivalent to approximately HK$227.8 million) of
that subsidiary was pledged to the branch of the
lending bank in Mainland China.

The bank loan bore interest at a spread over Hong
Kong Interbank Offered Rate and the effective
interest rate was 3.5% per annum at 31 December
2019 (2018: 3.1%).

Pursuant to the terms of the loan facility, the
Company shall procure FIDG to maintain (whether
directly or indirectly) not less than 35% beneficial
interest in the issued share capital of the
Company during the tenor of the loan facility.
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28 SRATMERK ()

(©)

RERN > KRABIREBS —KIETT
B HSE TR E FUE 6,000
BT e

ZEBETHEREEFUN—REE
WEAREAMNE AN G B
ERMEEET - ZWER2019
FNRANHEHWEEFELNBE
941 87T °

ZEBETHRRERNAERS
BIRTRAERBEMEEZAHE - I
AREBMBEZE=ZEAAREE - ®¥
201912 A31 8 » ZEHARITHE
REFNERENERISE -

BEZERBEENKR  AAFA
EARFERERENEESEAEANZE
FEEHAGSHEEARAAR (BR
BEELEE) BEBITRAT DR
35% M B i o

28 BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

()

During the year, the Company has drew down a
short-term revolving bank loan of HK$60 million
from a bank in Hong Kong.

The short-term revolving bank loan was secured
by the self-use office building owned by a wholly-
owned subsidiary in Hong Kong with a net book
value of approximately HK$9.41 million at 31
December 2019.

The short-term revolving bank loan bore interest
at a spread over Hong Kong Interbank Offered
Rate and shall be repayable within three months
from the drawdown date. The effective interest
rate was 3.8% per annum at 31 December 2019.

Pursuant to the terms of the loan facility, the
Company shall procure FIDG to maintain (whether
directly or indirectly) not less than 35% beneficial
interest in the issued share capital of the
Company during the tenor of the loan facility.

(8

ZZ—NFFR Annual Report 2019 ‘ i

-
)

"



258

ARG TR LR
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29

EIEES

$2E I R R K

RER - NAR AR R EEIREUE
BAEHERBE® 20,0008 T ([IREE
;) e ARREAREEREEDHN
RITER - REBEHBZOIER - REER
Ao HERZ - B () RIERE R HE BE
W28 A E REZEB% 500087t (ii)
RIERER A Htm24 @A E BEEE
#5000 8 7T : & (i) RIEREZ B H
FHm36(E A 2 HEEB 10,0008 7T ©
ARRBENEEZZBERREERHR
SRAEEIsBLTERE -

BREERSEERBRFBILIERES
RITREFZM2IEFE - 20194
NANAH BREERNEBRFNEA
45 o

RERNBREERNABRE S HEK
4908 7T - MM 201912 A31 H B HH
AR F BB 54 8T -

REERBEEAHOERMERAY - IR
REFNASIMBEFANT :

29 LOAN FROM THE CONTROLLING

SHAREHOLDER

During the year, the Company has drew down
a floating rate term loan of HK$200 million (the
“Shareholder’s Loan") from Vigour Fine, the controlling
shareholder of the Company. The Shareholder’s Loan
was utilised by the Company to repay its matured bank
loans. Pursuant to the terms of the agreement, the
Shareholder’s Loan shall be repayable by instalment,
namely (i) HK$50 million on the date falling 12 months
after the drawdown date; (ii) HK$50 million on the date
falling 24 months after the drawdown date; and (iii)
HK$100 million on the date falling 36 months after the
drawdown date. The Company has reimbursed Vigour
Fine for the transaction cost of HK$0.15 million directly
attributable to the Shareholder’s Loan.

The Shareholder’s Loan was unsecured and bore
interest at 3 months Hong Kong Interbank Offered
Rate plus 2.1%. The effective interest rate was 4.5% per
annum at 31 December 2019.

The related interest expense of the Shareholder’s Loan
was HK$4.9 million for the year and the related interest
payable was HK$0.54 million at 31 December 2019.

The maturity profile of the principal of Shareholder’s
Loan based on the scheduled repayment dates set out
in the loan facility was summarised as follows:

2019 2018

BT T B F T

HKs’000 HK$'000

E—FN Within 1 year 50,000 -
ZH—FERMERN More than 1 year but within 2 years 50,000 -
ZRMFERAEFA More than 2 years but within 5 years 100,000 -
200,000 -

EBPR7AE] Min Xin Holdings Limited
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30 HEAE 30 LEASE LIABILITIES
MR2019F12 A31 B RBEZEFBME The remaining contractual maturities of the lease
L£EAE 165 EE - HEBBENTI liabilities at 31 December 2019 and the date of
SHRNEEEMAT - transition to HKFRS 16 was summarised as follows:
12A31H 1RA1RH
31 December 1 January
2019 2019
REHE =EHE

HRNEE BEHEE RHEE HEHE

Present  {IRMAE Present  [IFAEE

value of the Total value of the Total

minimum minimum minimum minimum

lease lease lease lease

payments payments payments payments

BETT BETT BEFT BEFT

HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000

F—FA Within 1 year 191 198 - -
ZR—EBRBMER More than 1 year but within 2 years 65 65 - -
256 263 - -

ZZ—NFFR Annual Report 2019 e F

k

p

S



260

ARG TR LR
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31

1R A T 150

BEAMSHRAABEINEREZRIES
HETIE 2 B E16.5% (20184F : 16.5%)
Ko /R B gt A5 T8 2 B %R 25% (2018 4F -
25%) tEZ 8 HEE - EBETRAIATH
SN EEERENTEAGEE  ®
EIEFRSES K B — RIS R 5 R — (&
ERTAEEE - BIRIIRIEFS T & i
EIEFSRH A EE AR -

EILFSRAE / (BIE) 2 2B
mT

31

DEFERRED INCOME TAX

Deferred income tax is calculated in full on temporary
differences under the liability method using a taxation
rate of 16.5% (2018: 16.5%) for Hong Kong taxation and
25% (2018: 25%) for Mainland China taxation. Deferred
income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is
a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred
income taxes relate to the same taxation authority on
the same taxable entity.

The movement on the deferred income tax assets/
(liabilities) was summarised as follows:

2019 2018

BT T BT T

HKS’000 HKS’000

®1A1H At 1 January (23,571) (18,247)

PE N =58 Translation differences (6) 190

EEFEERRNR Deferred income tax charged to

ZIREFTIEEE current year’s income statement (11,616) (5,514)
FHEEEEMHES Deferred income tax charged to leasehold

N 2 RS buildings revaluation reserve (732) -

M®12A31H At 31 December (35,925) (23,571)

BEFTBREE YA EHABREF R
B OB 3B R K FE AR T v B B3R m LA
e BHIBIERERR - 102019412 A 31
B AEERERNA A RKE
IR AT IB 4B ¥ 3.93 87T (2018
F KB 38T - MBI ER
/Hﬂ °

{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax
losses carried forward to the extent that realisation
of the related tax benefits through future taxable
profits is probable. At 31 December 2019, the Group
did not recognise tax losses of approximately HK$393
million (2018: approximately HK$380 million) that can
be carried forward against future taxable income and
have no expiry date.
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31 RIS RL (FH) 31 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)
RENELEFMEREENAGBGZEZD The movement in deferred income tax assets and
(HERE—EFME 2 &R sERT) Bt liabilities (prior to offsetting of balances within the
o same taxation jurisdiction) during the year was

summarised as follows:
IR SE PT A5 F B 1E Deferred income tax liabilities
MERERER
RENEER
Accelerated tax depreciation
and revaluation of BREKA B
investment properties Dividend income Total
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
BETL | BEFT | BEFR | EEFT | BEFL | EETr
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
m1A1H At 1 January 35,484 39,328 - - 35,484 39,328
EXER Translation differences - (1) - . - 1
EEEEEZR  (Credited)/charged to current year's
(i8) /1% income statement (4,518) (3,843) 16,076 - 11,558 (3,843)
HREBEER  Charged to leasehold buildings
RESMR revaluation reserve 732 - - - 732 -
R12A31H At 31 December 31,698 35,484 16,076 - 47,774 35,484
R HIE T 15 Deferred income tax assets
EFENRENAE

BROVERBERNE HEER
MEMEEATESE  Impairment allowances on HERE

EitER Fair value adjustment loans to customers Write down of HE ot

Accrued expenses for FUPL and interest receivable inventories Tax losses Total
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
BEFL| BETr| BEFr| BETr | BEFr| RETr | BEFL| E¥Tr | BEFL| BRTn | BEFL| AETr
HKS000 HKS'000 | HK$'000 HKS'000 | HKS'000 HKS'000 | HKS'000 HKS'000 | HKS'000 HKS'000 | HK$'000 HKS'000
®1A18H At January (188) (308) - - - (9924) (367) - (11,358) (10849 (11,913) (21,081)
EiEE Translation differences - - 16 - - (210) (10) N - - 6 (189)

EEEERAE  Charged/(credited) to curtent

R/ (2%) year'sincome statement = 120 (346) - - 10,134 377 (388) 7 (509) 58 9357
28318 At31 December 189) 18 330) - - - c B | (130 _msse| _nsaf e

—ZT—HFFR Annual Report 2019
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31 ARIEFTISEL (48) DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)
AR ABESIREELESHREENREE The following amounts, determined after appropriate
% THESEEESTBIRRAEARNT offsetting of deferred income tax assets and liabilities,
-~ are shown in the consolidated statement of financial
position:
2019 2018
BT T BT T
HKS’000 HKS’000
FIEPTSTHE E Deferred income tax assets
#5512 8 A & Y El To be recovered after 12 months 405 122
#5512 8 A Rk El To be recovered within 12 months 46 413
,,,,,,,,,,, as1 | s
RIEFTISREE Deferred income tax liabilities
12 8 B A& S To be settled after 12 months (20,300) (24,106)
R 121ELA RS To be settled within 12 months (16,076) -
. (36,376) | (24,106)
(35,925) (23,571)
32 EAR Sk 4 32 CAPITAL AND RESERVES
(a) A (a) Share capital
2019 2018
BREGEE BT K& H BT T
No. of shares HK$’000| No. of shares HKS'000
ERTRBZRE Ordinary shares, issued
LER and fully paid 597,257,252 _ 1,715,377| 597257252 1,715,377
BRIE CARUEDI) 8B1351% - AAFIER In accordance with Section 135 of the Companies
ARt I AR E(E - Ordinance, the ordinary shares of the Company do not
have a par value.
LTERFEE AR RERERTRS KK The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
B WEARANKRREAE ERERE dividends as declared from time to time and are
—RIBRE - A ERRROEAD entitled to one vote per share at general meetings of
AR EERBRSER ° the shareholders of the Company. All ordinary shares
rank equally with regard to the Company’s residual
assets.
B @ABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited
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B N il (48)

(b) flfi &R MR K %
() JEERER
EERESTERRE

- —FEESREERE CRFE
TR R AEBIR) (R E A
Bz ARl D EEEE HRE o

- —REZEeREEIRER KR
M (EMEEERBSFTIRER
P70 (B4 (201212098 ) s 8 —
MEE - Z—REFREANEBES
BopR 28 + 0 1F & AR SR A 2 4 AR 30
53+ PR LA SR A A R R 9 B9 B TE R
B8 -

- —FEEECREBRERESR
EERHRERREENEL
EERE -

(i) EEFEHEL

BREEHES IR SN B A E—R
P& ©

(i) EAXF L
BERRHLERE

- 20001 BB URBERS G
RIEEBERRMEENHTER
AREBEERKEENITZRHKE
E-BERIXABBENAFEFE
R EREEE

- BEARRKKBLRARNK
ENE EIN LT S
CES L

32 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)
(b) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i) Statutory reserve
The statutory reserve mainly comprises the following:

- Non-distributable reserve set aside by an
associated financial institution from its retained
profits in accordance with the Financial System
Act of Macau.

- General reserve established and maintained
within shareholders’ equity of an associated
financial institution pursuant to Caijin [2012]
No. 20 “Regulation on Management of Financial
Institutions for Reserves” issued by Ministry of
Finance. The general reserve was established
through the appropriation of income to cover
unidentified potential impairment losses.

- Regulatory reserve set aside by an associated
financial institution from its retained profits in
accordance with the requirements of the Hong
Kong Monetary Authority.

(i) General reserve

The general reserve is transferred from retained profits
and is available for general use.

(iii)  Capital reserve
The capital reserve comprises the following:

- goodwill and the excess of the Group’s interest
in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
over the cost of business combination and the
investments in associates prior to 1 January 2001;

- capitalisation of retained profits and reserves
for the purpose of increasing the share capital
and capital reserve of associates and their
subsidiaries;

ZZ—NFFR Annual Report 2019
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32

EIEES

EA Ll (A1)

(b) flMEERITEE X ME ()

i) BALEEE ()

- EEBERAETEBEELN
B D AR A Y BB AR A M 2
SECES TR

(v) AFEHES (THEE)

ATEEES (TEER) DFER 28

RIS AED T EH AL ELSEE

ERR AR R D FEZDFE (1

FARBEEBUEE M) -

() AFEEES (TTEE)

AFEREES (FTRER) BER2H

B HE G 1 2 TEE A E 2 E e

SEMBER AN RH AT ELZDFE

CEAARBET BB ) -

(v HEESEfES

MEEEEGEELOBRERRERE

TEMMEBNSBAREMEY A

EAEMATESEFE -

(vii) SNEFH R

SNEFTH S BIEREIH B AR

LEERRNPBHRREARRZRE
EHELNMBENLZH

EBPR7AE] Min Xin Holdings Limited

32

CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)
(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(iii)  Capital reserve (Continued)

- share of movement in reserves recorded in equity
of associates for the change in the interest in
their subsidiaries that do not result in a loss of
control.

(iv)  Fairvalue reserve (recycling)

The fair value reserve (recycling) comprises the
cumulative net change in the fair value of debt
investments measured at FVOCI (less related deferred
tax charge) held at the end of the reporting period.

(v)  Fairvalue reserve (non-recycling)

The fair value reserve (non-recycling) comprises the
cumulative net change in the fair value of equity
investments designated at FVOCI (less related deferred
tax charge) held at the end of the reporting period.

(vi)  Leasehold buildings revaluation reserve

The leasehold buildings revaluation reserve comprises
the net change in the fair value of leasehold buildings
at the date of reclassification from owner-occupied
property to investment property.

(vii) Exchange translation reserve

The exchange translation reserve comprises all
foreign exchange differences arising on translation of
the financial statements of foreign subsidiaries and
associates into the reporting currency of the Company.
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R

MN2019F 12 A31 8 » REEHAEN
—|T:

33 COMMITMENTS

At 31 December 2019, the Group had commitments as
follows:

2019 2018
BT T B TT
HKS’000 HKS’000
EELEREE Contracted but not provided for
— Y MBI ERE - property, plant and equipment - 13
— B - investment properties 185 189
185 202
FHE R YE 34 LEASE COMMITMENTS
(a) ZRFHA (a) Aslessee

AEEAETHEVENEBA  ZZ
HELREBERESSTERFE 7RSS
BAKENE - ZSHERERNEER
tHEF@MEE LR %ZER
EANHAERFGEHEERN2019F
NRANBRZAEROEMAE (5
22) - REBFE28SHHE " A
2019F 1 B 1 B - RIRBEENFHAER
BUBRRARABRATEAE B
AEBRKRBENKOFBEHNEIE30
ﬂq °

M2018F 12 A31H @ REEBREAA
BSE 2 e EMBER KRR I 2 &K
MENZET :

The Group is the lessee of certain leased properties
which were previously classified as operating leases
under HKAS 17. These leases were commitments
relating to leases exempt from capitalisation since they
were short-term leases and other leases with remaining
lease term ending on or before 31 December 2019
(Note 2.2). From 1 January 2019 onwards, future
lease payments are recognised as lease liabilities in
the consolidated statement of financial position in
accordance with the policies set out in Note 2.8 and
the details regarding the Group's future lease payments
are disclosed in Note 30.

At 31 December 2018, the Group had future aggregate
minimum lease payments payable under non-
cancellable operating leases as follows:

BT
HKs'000

5 b E Land and buildings
E—FNA Within one year 104

(R
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34 FHAESE (4)
(b) HAHA

M2019F12 A31H » REEREAA
BSH 2 e TE & i pA R SR FEUNER 2 S K

34 LEASE COMMITMENTS (Continued)

(b) Aslessor

At 31 December 2019, the Group had future aggregate
minimum lease payments receivable under non-

MENRET - cancellable operating leases as follows:
2019 2018
BT BT T
HKS’000 HK$'000
= HE Land and buildings
F—FNRN Within one year 6,652 8,880
E_FEEFRFA In the second to fifth year
(BEEEMS) inclusive 1,596 8,237
8,248 17,117

AEBEE BAEME CHEFHE—
FE2N\FAE  HEMAZESHEE

B -

B @ABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited

The lease terms for commercial properties leased out
by the Group range from one to eight years and with

fixed rentals throughout the lease periods.
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e Bl E R AR

(a) BRB I A1) B AR 8 0 B B
(JLih) WA B IR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to net
cash (outflow)/inflow from operations

2019 2018
BT T JBBTFT
HK$’000 HKS'000
R B B Profit before taxation 593,585 610,526
I Adjustments for:
V= A YNGIE - Share of results of associates (579,179) (617,363)
BEMESHATE Fair value losses on revaluation of
K38 investment properties 7,109 186
e N Depreciation and amortisation 2,227 1,999
BEFERMEWTIE Write back of impairment loss on loans to
NERIEN =] E customers and interest receivable (6,255) (4,016)
(FERERR) (Reversal of write down)/write down of
FERIE inventories (1,509) 1,552
HEME - s M RE Loss on disposal of property, plant and
518 equipment 29 57
FEHA Interest income (46,920) (33,298)
BEREFENRHE Interest income from impaired loans to
WA customers (3,861) (4,664)
HMExH Interest expenses 18,645 26,165
0 3 B8 %58 Net exchange losses 2,836 12,398
REBETEEEN Changes in working capital:
&R Decrease in inventories 11,944 73,170
EIEEE A AN 12 0 Increase in deferred acquisition costs (7,663) (4,374)
1REE FE U ZRAE N Increase in insurance receivable (9,891) (2,280)
BREEE Increase in reinsurance assets (2,639) (25)
REERRERFE Decrease in loans to customers and
VR interest receivable 11,657 10,546
BEEERD Decrease in repossessed assets - 687
IRITAH [EZE Decrease/(increase) in banker’s acceptance
A (3E) 56,186 (56,186)
Hh FEUAR X TERTER Decrease in other debtors, prepayments
MR & and deposits 154 92,835
RAFEEBREBRYR Increase in financial assets at fair value
B & R E ELE N through profit or loss (97,516) )
REea43Em/  Cad) Increase/(decrease) in insurance contracts 4,865 (4,645)
FRB FEAS FRAE 0 Increase in insurance payable 6,951 1,946
H b e BR T N B AT Increase/(decrease) in other creditors and
BREM CRd) accruals 8,274 (3,983)
RESEENIRS ()~ Net cash (outflow)/inflow from
MAHEE operations (30,971) 101,231

ZZ—NFFR Annual Report 2019
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35 HZeBlenERia (4)

(b) TR G A AL E A ELE S )
rEAAENEE N 0
B4 R IR B 4 ) o

35 NOTES
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

TO THE CONSOLIDATED

(b) The table below details changes in the Group’s
liabilities arising from financing activities,

including both cash and non-cash changes.

2019 2018
BRER
LE gl e
BOHER Loanfomthe  HEEE  BOER Bafs BOER
Bank  controlling lease  Pledged FE Bank  Pledged BE
borrowings  shareholder liabilities bank deposits Net  borrowings bank deposits Net
B B BT BT BETn | BEFT BEFr BT
HKS000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$000 HKS'000 HKs'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
1A At 1 January 398,770 - - (227,800) 170,970 552,212 (49,239) 503,033
BEREREY Changes in financing cash flows;
HERREREET  Loanobtained from the controlling
shareholder - 200,000 - - 200,000 - - -
ESTER Bank loans obtained 60,000 - - - 60,000 200,000 - 200,000
EERED Bank loans repaid (200,000) - - - (200,000 | (356,880) - (356,880)
BRARESHEA Other borrowing costs paid (16) (150) - - (166) (1,34) - (1,34)
EEGE Lease payments - - (124) - (124) - - -
FHEREAER Placement of pledged bank depost - - - - - - (g0 (227,800)
RRERRIER Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits - - - - - - 46,699 46,699
FReRY: Non-cash changes:
EiZE Translation differences - - - 4,100 4,100 - 2540 2540
ERiTUAEEM Increase in lease liabilities from entering
ENNRERE into new lease during the year - - 380 - 380 - - -
A AEs Amortisation of other borrowing costs 1.1 36 - - 1,47 4612 - 4612
R128318 At 31 December 29965 199886 26 (237000 26407 | 3870 (2800 170970

268 {5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited
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36 BB

BRI AER S M R B B D B IN
AEBAELREEEENET 2 EXR

ki

(a)

RHMEBMT

MR2019F12 318 » &K % B 4
GFRER SR FBIR (2EAK
SECEERR) NFREFHEE
33,676 BT (20184F : & 26,004
BT c WEFEROFE A —KE
EFEFE  AEBRFAAL
FTEAMNF WA ESBE11518
70 (2018 4F : B¥E801 & TT) ©

M2019F12 8310 A& B JE
NER (REBE - E o mi
B MKEEBRTERESRAE
" 6,0008 7T ° ZIRITEFIA—F
2EMBRAEEMLRNEBNE
RAMERDEFEER  ZOWER
2019412 A 31 BB FELB
o4 BT - ARFIERFEARNEZE
BERN 2018912 A31 BERMEKR
MAREZEERBRTERESRS
#10,000 8 7T °

ZERITERNF BB AR
FEEFLEIMBETE  1B2019F
12A318 ERFHN X E38E
(2018F :52E) s REFRNZH
RITE AR R E X B 446
B0 (20184 : B8 2,10987T) °
MM 20194 12 A 31 BB E
BB 22 87T (20184 : B e

i —

EIT) e

36 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the
consolidated financial statements, significant related
party transactions which were carried out in the
normal course of the Group’s business are as follows:

(a)

At 31 December 2019, the Group had deposits
with XIB, CYB and LIB, all are associates of
the Group, totalling HK$336.76 million (2018:
HK$260.04 million). These deposits carried
interest at normal commercial rates and had
generated interest income of HK$11.51 million
(2018: HK$8.01 million) to the Group during the
year.

At 31 December 2019, the Group had
outstanding bank loan of HK$60 million from
CYB, an associated financial institution of the
Group. The bank loan was secured by the self-
use office building owned by a wholly-owned
subsidiary in Hong Kong with a net book value of
approximately HK$9.41 million at 31 December
2019. The outstanding unsecured bank loan of
HK$100 million from CYB at 31 December 2018
was fully repaid by the Company during the year.

These bank loans bore interest at a spread over
Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate and the
effective interest rates was 3.8% (2018: 5.2%)
per annum at 31 December 2019. The related
interest expense of these bank loans was HK$4.46
million (2018: HK$21.09 million) for the year and
the related interest payable was HK$0.22 million
(2018: HK$0.06 million) at 31 December 2019.

(X

d
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RERN AEB—R2EWBA
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36 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(c)

A wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group
underwrote insurance policies with gross
insurance premiums less discounts of HK$4.59
million (2018: HK$4.32 million) to the associated
financial institutions of the Group at prices and
terms not less favourable than those contracted
with other third party customers of the Group
during the year. That subsidiary also paid
commissions of HK$8.11 million (2018: HK$6.29
million) to an associated financial institution for
business referred to the Group during the year.

Key management personnel
The senior executives’ emoluments for the year

ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 are detailed
as follows:

2019 2018

BT T BT T

HK$’000 HKS$'000

=Y Directors’ fees 970 1,125
i - BENEAM  Salaries, housing and other allowances,

2L - REYAIZE  and benefits in kind 5,576 6,036

RIREFETZIEZ  Contributions to retirement benefit scheme 926 96

R’e Bonus 3,956 4,135

10,598 11,392

{5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited
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37 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position

B of the Company at the end of the reporting year is as
follows:
2019 2018
BT BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FRBEE Non-current assets
M - HER N EERE Property, plant and equipment 6,250 3,657
KEM=E Investment properties 61,148 64,832
L hpEEPNG) Subsidiaries 1,433,786 1,364,631
/N Associates 972,776 972,776
BATEFAEMAEE  Financial assets at fair value through
W e EE other comprehensive income 423,343 570,417
HuhEWBR R KT8t Other debtors and prepayments 3,385 6
e RIRTTEE Cash and bank balances 114,534 -
3,015,222 | . 2,976,319
REBEE Current assets

Hip U iRax - TR

KZE

B HEE BRI R

Other debtors, prepayments and
deposits 739 1,971
Financial assets at fair value through

NemEE profit or loss 8,514 306
Re RiRITHEF Cash and bank balances 53,472 248,495
,,,,,,, 62,725 | 250,772

REEE Current liabilities
HiENBER L EETE A Other creditors and accruals 16,703 15,782
HEEE Lease liabilities 2,602 -
SRITER Bank borrowings 60,000 198,804
PR E R Loan from the controlling shareholder 49,943 -
e AN ERFR IR Current income tax payable 23,409 23,838
,,,,,, 152,657 | 238424
B (BE) BESE Netcurrent (liabilities)/assets . (89,932) | 12,348
BEERABERE Total assets less current liabilities 2,925,290 2,988,667

ZZ—NFFR Annual Report 2019
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THE COMPANY (Continued)

37 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

2019 2018
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FREBEE Non-current liabilities
RWITER Bank borrowings 199,965 199,966
ERRIREE R Loan from the controlling shareholder 149,943 -
B ERAsE Deferred income tax liabilities 35,510 21,423
,,,,,, 385,418 | 221,389
EEFE Net assets 2,539,872 2,767,278
s Equity
A& 2 Share capital 1,715,377 1,715,377
HEmFEES Other reserves 202,297 349,371
IREB A Retained profits 622,198 702,530
R Total equity 2,539,872 2,767,278
BR1E YAN Zheng
s Director
BRF CHEN Yu
s Director

B @ABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited
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37 ARNFIBIRILE () 37 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY (Continued)
@ FHFARFEERZAEHEZHER (@) Information on the movement of the total equity
s during the year is as follows:
Aftffae
Other reserves

N HERE Eft

fiee  EfifES e
(FU@ER)  Leasehold o RS
R& Fair value buildings Total RE&EF &8
Share reserve  revaluation other Retained Total
capital (non-recycling) reserve reserves profits equity

E¥Fr  E¥Tr  ERFr ERTn EEFr ERTx
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

R2018E1A1H At 1January 2018 1,715,377 280,128 2,340 282,468 637,351 2,635,196
KEEEN Profit for the year - - - - 112,960 112,960
Hi2EdE Other comprehensive income - 66,903 - 66,903 - 66,903
e Dividend - - - - (47,781 (47,781)
P 2018%F12 4318 At 31 December 2018 1,715,377 347,031 2,340 349,371 702,530 2,767,278
20191818 At 1January 2019 1,715,377 347,031 2,340 349,371 702,530 2,767,278
TEEER Loss for the year - - - - (20,606) (20,606)
B2 EhE Other comprehensive income - (147,074) - (147,074) - (147,074)
RE Dividend - - - - (59,726) (59,726)
R2019E128318  At31December 2019 1,715,377 199,957 2,340 202,297 622,198 2,539,872

—ZT—HFFR Annual Report 2019
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38

UTREIEER2019F12A31 B
AEBRNEE EESBBREEATE

BB AR

SUBSIDIARIES

The following list contains the particulars of those
subsidiaries at 31 December 2019 which principally
affected the results, assets or liabilities of the Group.

iR EEITRE A5E
BEny RRAEE bR
Place of Particulars Group's TEER
incorporation ofissued and equity Principal
INGEA Name of company and operation paid up capital interest activity
BEER Directly held
SERRERAR Dorfine Development Limited &% 2R (B%27T) 100% nERE
Hong Kong 2 shares (HKS2) Property investment
BREEREERAR Fujian Minxin Investments Co, Ltd. hE ARLAE EWAR 100% REER
(74%1,010,536,2007C)
The People’s Paid-in capital Investment holding
Republic of China (HK$1,010,536,200)

>
e

HEREAR

W= TRREMEEH

ERAA

TEERARAT

Min Xin Insurance Company Limited

Sanming Sanyuan District Minxin

Micro Credit Company Limited

Take Chance Company Limited

Thousand Limited

Welljet Development Limited

274 {5 EHBR A7 Min Xin Holdings Limited

Bk

Hong Kong

hEARHEAE

The People’s
Republic of China

&b
Hong Kong

&b
Hong Kong

&b
Hong Kong

5500 8% 100%
(%2358
55 million shares
(HK$235 million)

BYER 100%
(AE®3(ET)
Paid-in capital
(RMB300 million)

2% (B ) 100%
2 shares (HKS2)

1% GE%17) 100%
1 share (HKS1)

2% (%) 100%
2 shares (HK$2)

I

—HRB xS
Writing of general
insurance business

REER
REZEFER
Provision of
micro credit and
entrusted loans

VESE

Property investment

RERR

Investment holding

VESE

Property investment
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AEBEP2019F1 A1 HIEEEZTNE
AR ERE BB REERE 16
R RIBML L - EBRERNRBET ©
EASHECRERMNE — THFBENE
220 -

e 1% 55 0H

BRI A SR B B R LA AR D RS -
BERRNBEEZENHEREWT

R20195F 12 A3 B BEHEEEIE -
EEREHSBEEREINBRABGE
%o 520206 1 AVIF A TR ENF
Bl b R 3 30 M) EL A 5 R AL - HERR
¥ REESER) o 2020 FIRIEE IS
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M A ERE N R EMF ERIEEKA

BEFE -

39

40

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 January
2019 using the modified retrospective method. Under
this approach, comparative information is not restated.
Further details of the changes in accounting policies
are disclosed in Note 2.2(b).

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in these
consolidated financial statements, a summary of
significant events after the reporting period are
disclosed as follows:

The ECL at 31 December 2019 was estimated based on
a range of forecast economic conditions as at that date.
Since early January 2020, the coronavirus outbreak
has spread across Mainland China and beyond,
causing disruption to business and economic activity.
The impact on gross domestic product and other
key indicators will be considered when determining
the severity and likelihood of downside economic
scenarios that will be used to estimate ECL under
HKFRS 9 in 2020.

(8
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ALERA 2 ERY)SERE R IR
SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTY INTERESTS HELD BY THE GROUP

KREER2019F12A3TEFAEREZ T

EYEERFBOT

Details of the Group’s principal property interests held for
investment as at 31 December 2019 are as follows:

P31 | Baes
ik 3§ BER
ERE Group's Approximate
Lease attributable gross floor RERR
fi Location expiry interest area Existing use
BAL% Fiksq.

1 NERERE 847865 % Shops 7 &8 on ground floor including 2049 100 17,190 [EES
KEREH T AL 7R85 store 8 on the cockloft therein and Commercial
BV EE 18R the whole of 15t and 2nd floors
ZE Winfield Building

847-865 Canton Road, Yaumatei
Hong Kong

) PEARANERERERMNT 22/F (excluding partial area of unit no. 1) 2044 100 37,090 53
AR 158 FRINES 28 and 23/F, Worldwide Plaza Commercial
(FeE1EEIhER) 158 Wusi Road, Fuzhou, Fujian
R3E The People’s Republic of China

3 REARENEREERMD Carpark Nos. #24 to #28 and #42 to #48 2044 100 5,207 [
AME1I8RN B S T =8 Basement Level 3, Worldwide Plaza Commercial
B 424 2 428 [ #42 % #48 158 Wusi Road, Fuzhou, Fujian

The People’s Republic of China

4 HEARANERRERMT West Half of 14/F, Reliance Building 2043 100 3025 S
AMEN9REERE14E 119 Wusi Road, Fuzhou, Fujian Commercial
FEE The People’s Republic of China

5 hEARANERREREMT Unit C2 & D2, 25/F, Huafu Building 2063 100 2450 fr=
ARBINFERAE 121 Gutian Road, Fuzhou, Fujian Residential

BEQRDET

The People's Republic of China

B @ABMR2AF] Min Xin Holdings Limited



Min Xin Holdings Limited
HMESKEBRLE

17th Floor, Fairmont House
8 Cotton Tree Drive
Central, Hong Kong

ERAPBRARKSHERERE17E
Tel ET5E ¢ (852) 2521 5671
Fax {&HE : (852) 2530 5488

Website #83t : http://www.minxin.com.hk
Email  Z|E : mxhl.enquiry@minxin.com.hk
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